
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

ORDINARY MEETING OF THE 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

In the The Arts Centre, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton on 

Tuesday, 21 February 2017 at 7.15 pm

Public Document Pack



Councillors are hereby summoned to an ORDINARY MEETING OF THE HIGH PEAK 
BOROUGH COUNCIL at The Arts Centre, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton at 7.15 pm on Tuesday, 21 
February 2017.

Monday, 13 February 2017

Page No.

1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matter before the Council 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting 3 - 6

4. Mayor's announcements 

5. Questions of which notice has been given 

6. To approve the recommendations from The Executive meeting held on 16th 
February 2017 relating to: 

7 - 8

a) Budget 2017/18 and Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18 to 
2020/21 

9 - 128

7. To approve the recommendations from the Audit and Regulatory Committee 
meeting held on 14th February 2017 relating to: 

129 - 130

a) External Audit Plan 2016/17 131 - 148
b) Appointment of External Auditors - Public Sector Audit Appointments 

Opt-in 
149 - 180

c) Treasury Management Update: Mid-Year Report 2016/17 181 - 190
d) Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2017/18 191 - 220

8. To set the Council Tax for the financial year beginning 1st April 2017 

9. Pay Policy Statement 2017/18 221 - 238

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

High Peak Borough Council



High Peak Borough Council

MINUTES OF AN ORDINARY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Meeting: Thursday, 15 December 2016 at 7.15 pm in The Arts Centre, Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton

Present: Councillor G. Wharmby (Mayor)

Councillors T Ashton, R Atkins, A Barrow, C Boynton, G Claff, J Douglas, 
L Dowson, P Easter, S Flower, A Fox, D Greenhalgh, L Grooby, J Haken, 
P Hardy, S Helliwell, C Howe, I Huddlestone, P Jenner, C Johnson, E Kelly, 
T Kemp, D Kerr, D Lomax, N Longos, J McCabe, A McKeown, G Oakley, 
J Perkins, J Pritchard, D Robins, K Sizeland, F Sloman, M Stone, E Thrane, 
J Todd, J Walton, J Wharmby and S Young

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Kappes, 
R McKeown, R Quinn and E Siddall

17/18 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTER BEFORE 
THE COUNCIL
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no disclosures made.

17/19 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

It was moved by Councillor Ashton and seconded by Councillor Kemp that 
the minutes of the Ordinary and Annual meetings of the Council held on 6 
October 2016 be approved as a correct record.

The motion was carried and the Mayor was authorised to sign the minutes.

17/20 MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
(Agenda Item 4)

The Mayor announced that all councillors were invited to attend a reception 
to honour the admission of Mr Peter Matthews as a Freeman of the 
Borough.  This would take place at 1.00pm on 13 February 2017 at Glossop 
Cricket and Bowling Club.  In the absence of sending Christmas cards 
councillors were also invited to make donations towards the Mayor’s charity 
funds.

17/21 QUESTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN
(Agenda Item 5)

There had been no questions received.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Thursday, 15 December 2016

17/22 TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATION FROM THE AUDIT AND 
REGULATORY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 29 SEPTEMBER 2016 
RELATING TO:
(Agenda Item 6)

a) Appointment of Mayor 2017/18

It was moved by Councillor Pritchard and seconded by Councillor Robins 
that the Labour Group be invited to make a nomination for the appointment 
of Mayor of the Borough and Chairman of the Council for the municipal year 
2017/18.  It was announced that the Labour Group would propose 
Councillor Stone as Mayor at the next Annual Council meeting.

When put to the meeting it was RESOLVED accordingly.

17/23 TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 17 NOVEMBER 2016 RELATING TO:
(Agenda Item 7)

a) Standards Committee - Annual Report 2015/16

It was moved by Councillor Johnson and seconded by Councillor Sloman 
that the report be noted.

When put to the meeting it was RESOLVED accordingly.

17/24 NOTICES OF MOTION
(Agenda Item 8)

a) Dying to Work Campaign

It was moved by Councillor Kelly and seconded by Councillor Sloman:

That this council notes the TUC Dying to Work Campaign which has raised 
the following concerns:

1. That the Equality Act provides protections against discriminatory 
treatment based on the concept of 'Protected Characteristics.’

2. Currently workers with a terminal illness are not classified as having a 
Protected Characteristic and therefore have very limited legal protection 
against employers dismissing them due to illness.

3. That employers are therefore free to dismiss terminally ill workers once 
they have made 'reasonable adjustments' to the employee's job to assist 
with the illness. 

4. This council agrees that the last thing a terminally ill worker would need 
is the distress at the same time as facing up to a terminal illness is to 
have to fight for the right to continue working and not to face the indignity 
of being sacked.

5. In addition, this council notes that the loss of death in service benefits to 
terminally ill workers sacked before death is a further distress at a time 
when security for a family for the future should be protected.

Page 4



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Thursday, 15 December 2016

This council resolves that in response to the TUC Dying to Work Campaign, 
this Council commits to signing up to the Dying to Work Voluntary Charter 
that sets out an agreed way in which their employees will be supported, 
protected and guided throughout their employment, following a terminal 
diagnosis.

The Charter states the following:

 We recognise that terminal illness requires support and 
understanding and not additional and avoidable stress and worry.

 Terminally ill workers will be secure in the knowledge that we will 
support them following their diagnosis and we recognise that, safe 
and reasonable work can help maintain dignity, offer a valuable 
distraction and can be therapeutic in itself.

 We will provide our employees with the security of work, peace of 
mind and the right to choose the best course of action for themselves 
and their families which helps them through this challenging period 
with dignity and without undue financial loss.

 We support the TUC’s Dying to Work campaign so that all employees 
battling terminal illness have adequate employment protection and 
have their death in service benefits protected for the loved ones they 
leave behind.

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Haken, seconded by Councillor 
Flower:

That this Council is aware of the TUC Dying to Work Campaign and the 
associated Voluntary Charter which organisations are encouraged to 
endorse ‘to help ensure peace of mind for any of their employees battling 
terminal illness’.

The Council resolves to note that the principles set out in the Charter have 
guided its approach to employees with terminal illness for some years now. 
Council employees can therefore take assurance both on the basis of that 
experience and through the Council’s values and culture which have been 
regularly endorsed by all political groups.

After considerable debate it was further proposed to forward the amended 
resolution to the Member of Parliament for the High Peak.

When put to the meeting it was RESOLVED accordingly.

b) Bus Services Bill

It was moved by Councillor Stone and seconded by Councillor A. McKeown:

That this council notes:

1. That the Bus Services Bill currently passing through Parliament includes 
Clause 21 that will effectively “prohibit a local authority from forming a 
company for the purposes of providing a local bus service”. 

2. That the Localism Act (2011) provides general powers of competence to 
local authorities. Page 5



Minutes of the Proceedings of a Meeting of the Council
Thursday, 15 December 2016

3. That municipal bus companies like Reading and Nottingham provide 
some of the best bus services in the country and have a successful track 
record of increasing bus passenger numbers and providing high quality 
bus services, with Nottingham winning this year’s UK bus awards for best 
operator.

4. That polling by We Own It found that a majority of the public (57%) 
oppose clause 21, whilst just 22% support it. The opposition to Clause 21 
is consistent across voters from all political parties.

 
This council believes:
 
1. Clause 21 contradicts the general powers of competence and the spirit 

of the Localism Act 2011.
2. If there is a need and a demand from their public, then Councils should 

be able to provide their own bus services  
3. Should they wish, Councils should be legally able to follow the model 

developed by Reading and Nottingham. 
4. Consequently, Clause 21 should be omitted from the Bus Services Bill.
 
This council resolves:
 
1. To write to Lord Ahmad and to call on the Department for Transport to 

omit Clause 21 from the final legislation
2. To write to Andrew Bingham MP to ask him to oppose clause 21 when 

the Bus Services Bill reaches the House of Commons and ask them to 
write to Lord Ahmad and the Department of Transport to raise concerns 
about Clause 21.

3. To work with any organisations such as We Own It to publicise our 
opposition to clause 21 in local media.

When put to the meeting the motion was declared lost.

The meeting concluded at 7.43 pm

MAYOR

Page 6



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Council 

21 February 2017

To approve the following recommendation of the Executive:

1.        Councillor Thrane to move the following recommendations:

a) BUDGET 2017/18 AND UPDATED MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 
2017/18 TO 2020/21

RECOMMENDED:

That Council:

 Approves the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Budget for 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8)

 Approves the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2017/18 to 
2020/21) as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital 
Programme (attached at Annex A & B)

 Approves the proposed HRA Business Plan – Financial 
Improvement Plan 2017/18 – 2020/21 as detailed in Appendix B

 Approves the proposed Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy for 
2017/18 – 2020/21 as detailed in Appendix C

 Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2017/18 as detailed 
in Appendix D

 Approves a Band D Council Tax of £181.11 for 2017/18 (increase of 
1.9%)

TITLE: Recommendation from the Executive – 16 
February 2017

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo, Executive Director (People) & 
Monitoring Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: As detailed in the attached report

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 Approves the following HRA charges:

- Dwellings rents to reduce by an average of 1% (over 52 weeks) 
from £71.47 to £70.73 average per week

- Garage rents to be increased by 1% (over 52 weeks) from £6.10 
to £6.16 average per week

- Other Charges including service charges to increase by a 
maximum of 1%

- Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed based on 
2015/16 fuel costs, the individual charges are detailed in 
paragraph 8.4 of Appendix A

 Notes the view of the Chief Finance Officer that the level of 
reserves is adequate for the Council based on this budget and the 
circumstances in place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A 
section 7)

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Page 8



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive

16th February 2017

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18 to 2020/21)
 Appendix B (HRA Business Plan – Financial Improvement Plan)
 Appendix C (Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy 2017/18 – 2020/21)
 Appendix D (Proposed Fees & Charges 2017/18)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to present the proposed Budget for 2017/18 
updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2017/18 – 2020/21, present the HRA 
Financial Improvement Plan 2017/18 – 2020/21, proposed Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy 2017/18 – 2020/21 and proposed Fees and Charges 
for 2017/18.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Executive recommends that Council:

 Approves the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget 
for 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8)

 Approves the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2017/18 to 2020/21) 
as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme 
(attached at Annex A & B)

TITLE: Budget 2017/18 and Updated Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2017/18 to 2020/21

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 
Manager
Keith Pointon – Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Planning)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 9

Agenda Item 6a

http://smdcintranet/committeeagendas/2012-13/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Resources/10Oct12/SMDC%20-%20MTFP%20Oct%202012%20(2)Agenda%20Item%207.doc
http://smdcintranet/committeeagendas/2012-13/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Resources/10Oct12/SMDC%20-%20MTFP%20Oct%202012%20(2)Agenda%20Item%207.doc


 Approves the proposed HRA Business Plan – Financial Improvement Plan 
2017/18 – 2020/21 as detailed in Appendix B

 Approves the proposed Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy for 2017/18 – 
2020/21 as detailed in Appendix C

 Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2017/18 as detailed in 
Appendix D

 Approves a Band D Council Tax of £181.11 for 2017/18 (increase of 
1.9%)

 Approves the following HRA charges:

- Dwellings rents to reduce by an average of 1% (over 52 weeks) from 
£71.47 to £70.73 average per week

- Garage rents to be increased by 1% (over 52 weeks) from £6.10 to 
£6.16 average per week

- Other Charges including service charges to increase by a maximum of 
1%

- Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed based on 
2015/16 fuel costs, the individual charges are detailed in paragraph 8.4 
of Appendix A

 Notes the view of the Chief Finance Officer that the level of reserves is 
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in 
place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A section 7)

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report makes recommendations to Council for the budget and the level of 
council tax and council dwelling rents for 2017/18.  The report also provides 
an update on the Council’s medium-term financial position through to 2020/21. 
Additionally, it proposes a HRA Business Plan Financial Improvement Plan for 
2017/18 – 2020/21, a new Efficiency and Rationalisation programme for 
2017/18 – 2020/21 and sets out the fees and charges proposed for 2017/18.

3.2 The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the 
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in 
accordance with local priorities and against the backdrop of unprecedented 
public sector financial constraint.

3.3 Having completed the annual budget exercise, a balanced General Fund 
budget for 2017/18 has been achieved, with the inclusion of an efficiency and 
rationalisation target of £310,000 (as per the proposed Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy) and the drawdown of £547,020 in reserves.  A 
balanced HRA budget for 2017/18 has been achieved (with a contribution to 
balances of £57,000) with an interim reduction to the capital programme with 
schemes included on a priority basis pending stock condition information.  

Page 10



3.6 The final General Fund budget proposals for 2017/18 provide for a net budget 
of £10,795,870 and a Council Tax increase of 1.9%.  Consequently, the Band 
D Council Tax increases to £181.11. The final HRA budget proposals for 
2017/18 provide for a net budget of £15,113,270 and a Council Dwelling Rent 
decrease of 1%.

3.7 The Medium Term Financial Plan projections have incorporated the reduction 
in income from central government through revenue support grant, which is to 
be phased out by 2020, adverse changes to the New Homes Bonus funding 
system and the impact of a 1% annual rent reduction imposed until 2019/20.

3.8 Consequently, there is a cumulative deficit on the General Fund of £1,699,480 
by the end of 2020/21. Additionally, there is £431,200 of unachieved 
efficiencies from 2016/17 carried forward into 2017/18.  Therefore, an overall 
balanced MTFP position has been achieved from the proposed efficiency 
programme (see Appendix B) which targets £2,130,680 in savings.  

3.9 However, due to the estimated timing of the achievement of the savings, it is 
necessary to drawdown from general contingency reserves: £547,020 in 
2017/18, £833,420 in 2018/19 and £715,350 in 2019/20.  This results in a 
reduction in the General Fund contingency reserve to £1.4 million by 2020/21; 
which still remains above the minimum contingency requirement of 
£1.3million.

3.10 The HRA remains unbalanced in 2018/19 to 2020/21, with an annual deficit of 
£770,430 by the end of 2020/21.  This is the position after applying an interim 
reduction to the capital programme pending stock condition information.  

3.11 The future financial position of the HRA is subject to a detailed review in order 
to identify plans to reduce the annual deficit position to ensure the HRA 30 
year business plan is financially sustainable. The HRA Business Plan – 
Financial Improvement Plan is presented at Appendix B.  

3.12 The proposed General Fund Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 2017/18 – 
2020/21 (Appendix C) will have the effect of both reducing expenditure and 
increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a priority as the 
Council moves more towards being self-financing i.e. not reliant on direct 
government funding such as revenue support grant.

3.13 The strategy has been developed with the underlying principle of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable 
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

3.14 The Medium Term Financial Plan includes an updated General Fund capital 
programme of £14,216,440 over the period 2016/17 – 2020/21 and an 
updated HRA Capital Programme of £19,881,970 over the five years.

Page 11



4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 A number of options have been considered throughout the financial planning 
process. Any changes to the provisions made would have to be self-financing.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2 Workforce
None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans. The assessment will be 
further developed to take into account the new Efficiency & Rationalisation 
Strategy and HRA Business Plan – Financial Improvement Plan. 

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None.

16.6 Sustainability
None.

6.7 External Consultation
The Council’s budget plans are the subject of an annual public consultation 
exercise. Full details are contained within the plan

6.8  Risk Assessment
A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within the plan

Page 12



ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details
Various background working papers Buxton Town Hall Claire Hazeldene 

Finance & Procurement Manager
01538 395400 Ext. 4191

Keith Pointon 
Principal Finance Officer (Financial 
Planning)
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

2017/18 BUDGET & 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 

2017/18 to 2020/21

February 2017

Page 15



INDEX

1 Introduction

2 Strategic Priorities

3     Current Spending Levels 

4 Transformation Programme
4.1 Introduction
4.2 Capital Programme
4.3 Housing Revenue Account Review 
4.4 Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
4.5 Member Priority Projects

5 Financial Forecasts
5.1 Interest Rates
5.2 Inflationary Projections
5.3 Budgetary Demand
5.4 Budget Growth
5.5 Pensions
5.6 HRA - Other Operating Expenditure

6 Funding & Income Generation
6.1 Council Tax 
6.2 Business Rates Retention 

        6.3    Collection Fund
6.4 Income from Government Grants
6.5 Fees & Charges

7 Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves 

8 Budget 2017/18

9 Revenue Financial Projections 
9.1 General Fund Revenue Position
9.2 HRA Revenue Position

10 Consultation

ANNEX A Proposed Capital Programme – General Fund
ANNEX B Proposed Capital Programme – HRA
ANNEX C Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy (2017/18 – 2020/21) Summary
ANNEX D       Fees and Charges policy categories
ANNEX E MTFP Principal Risks
ANNEX F Proposed Revenue Budget (General Fund)
ANNEX G       Proposed Revenue Budget (HRA)

Page 16



1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It 
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and 
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next 
4 years.  

1.2. The medium-term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with the Council’s priorities which 
have been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and 
other stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.  

1.3. The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This review of the 
MTFP builds on the existing plan and updates assumptions to reflect known 
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and 
capital financial projections over the four years 2017/18 to 2020/21. It also 
includes an assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer-term financial 
issues which have the potential to impact on the Council. 

1.4. The Council will demonstrate economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
application of its resources. Value for Money (VFM) is maximised when there is 
an optimum balance between economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

 Economy: the price the Council pays for providing its services 
 Efficiency: how much the Council gets out of what’s put in (productivity) 
 Effectiveness: value of the impact achieved (quantitative or qualitative) 

2. STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by 
members of the Council.

2.2. Following the elections in May 2015, there was a fundamental review of the 
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2015-2019 (up to the end of the current 
political administration).

2.3. The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate 
objectives and key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect determines the 
Council’s commitments in the delivery of services and community leadership to 
the citizens of High Peak.

Page 17



2.4. The Council’s Corporate Plan has been developed after taking into account the 
views and aspirations of High Peak citizens and having come to a clear 
understanding of empirical evidence. The plan has taken due recognition of the 
national and regional policy framework.  It has taken on board learning from the 
progress made by the Council and has benefitted from input from councillors at 
a priority setting event which was held in July 2015.

2.5. The Council’s vision is expressed as:   

“Delivering excellent services to High Peak residents and demonstrating value 
for money”

This vision is articulated further by four aims:

 Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and 
work

 Meet financial challenges & provide value for money
 Support economic development & regeneration
 Protect and improve the environment

2.6. These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the 
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are 
summarised below: 

Aim Objectives

1 Help create a safer and 
healthier environment 
for our residents to live 
and work

 Effective relationship with strategic partners
 Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the needs of 

tenants
 Effective support of community safety arrangements
 Provision of high quality leisure facilities

2 Meet its financial 
challenges and provide 
value for money

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money

 Ensure our services are easily available to all our 
residents in the appropriate channels and provided ‘right 
first time’

 A high performing and highly motivated workforce
 More effective use of Council assets

3 Support economic 
development and 
regeneration

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
 Promote tourism
 High quality development and building control with an 

‘open for business approach’

4 Protect and improve 
the environment 

 Effective recycling and waste management
 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets 

and environmental health
 Provision of quality parks and open spaces
 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of 

residents, businesses and visitors

Page 18



2.7. The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area. 
In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this 
role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to 
ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and 
aspirations of citizens. The priorities for the Council’s influencing role will be 
focused in the following areas:

 Work with the private sector on regeneration schemes including: The 
Crescent, Woods Mill and Torr Vale Mill

 Press for more regular and faster rail links and road infrastructure
 Provision of accessible health and social care
 Effective snow clearance
 Support the police in dealing with anti social behaviour
 Work with partners to bring additional funding into the borough

2.8. The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the 
development of performance targets and key actions.  A significant proportion 
of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them: 

Aim Priority Outcomes

1 Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for our 
residents to live and work

 Good quality social housing provision
 Improved health

2 Meet financial challenges and 
provide value for money

 Balanced and sustainable medium 
term financial position

 Council services provide value for 
money

 High level of resident and customer 
satisfaction

3 Support economic 
development and 
regeneration

 Sustainable towns and rural 
communities

 Increased economic growth

4 Protect and improve the 
environment 

 High recycling rates
 Quality parks and open spaces and 

clean streets

2.9. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council, formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of 
efficiency and realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the 
implementation and transformation of a joint management structure and 
services, consequently realising significant efficiency savings. 

2.10. The Council intends to continue to drive savings and service improvements 
through collaboration with its Alliance partner.

Page 19



3. CURRENT SPENDING LEVELS

3.1. The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of 
spending and the approved capital expenditure commitments.

General Fund Revenue Budget  

3.2. The Council’s current year (2016/17) General Fund budget can be summarised 
as follows:

Income and Expenditure 2016/17 
Budget

 £
Employees 11,783,380
Premises 3,432,170
Transport 696,310
Supplies & Services 9,831,890
Benefits 28,960
Borrowing 1,547,970
Parish Grant 51,320
Financing Costs 191,000

Total Expenditure 27,563,000
 
Fees and Charges / Other Income (10,817,340)
Interest Receipts (130,660)
Capital Recharges (231,240)
HRA Recharges (6,197,820)
 
Net Expenditure 10,185,940

 

3.3. The net expenditure is financed as follows: 

Financing 2016/17 
Budget

 £
Council Tax (5,270,520)
Government Funding (1,124,580)
New Homes Bonus (773,320)
Business Rates Retention (2,851,190)
Collection Fund Deficit 529,570
Contribution to / (from) Reserves & Balances (695,900)

Total Financing (10,185,940)
 

 

5.12

Page 20



Housing Revenue Account Budget  

3.4. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ‘ring-fenced’ account that ensures 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded 
from the income generated by rents and other related sources. 

3.5. The Council’s current year (2016/17) Housing Revenue Account budget can be 
summarised as follows: 

Budget Heading 2016/17 
Budget

 £
Repairs & Maintenance 3,096,290
Supervision & Management 3,001,070
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges 130,770
Other Operating Expenditure 1,435,860
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,432,000
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,416,430
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,744,570
Total Expenditure 15,256,990
Dwellings Rents (14,642,120)
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (614,870)
Total Income (15,256,990)
(Surplus) / Deficit for year -

General Fund Capital Budget

3.6. The medium-term projection for General Fund capital commitments approved 
by Council in February 2016 is detailed below:

Service Area 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Housing 241,960 - - - - 241,960
Asset Management Plan 313,060 1,474,350 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000 8,077,000
Growth Fund - - - - - -
Housing Grants 250,000 238,000 238,000    238,000    238,000 1,202,000
ICT Strategy 124,710 100,000 100,000    100,000    100,000 524,710
Other Schemes 569,250 275,600    244,130 - - 1,088,980
Total Programme 1,498,980 2,087,950 2,797,590 3,308,130 1,442,000 11,134,650
Financed by:       
External Contributions 305,360 284,250 238,000 238,000 238,000 1,303,610
Capital Receipts -    679,000    138,000    845,000    240,000 1,902,000
Capital Reserve    750,000 - - - - 750,000
S106 Planning Obligations    291,960      25,000 - - - 316,960
Borrowing 151,660 1,099,700 2,421,590 2,225,130 964,000 6,862,080
Total  Financing 1,498,980 2,087,950 2,797,590 3,308,130 1,442,000 11,134,650

Page 21



Housing Revenue Account Capital Budget

3.7. The medium-term projection for Housing Revenue Account capital 
commitments approved by Council in February 2016 was as follows:

 
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

 £ £ £ £ £ £
Planned Maintenance 2,967,180 3,121,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 15,748,180
Responsive Works 815,750 1,340,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 6,025,750
Aids & Adaptations 319,230 380,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,599,230
Environmental Improvements 150,000 - - - - 150,000
New Build Projects - 194,000 142,000 287,410 200,000 823,410
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000
Efficiency Programme - (504,430) - - - (504,430)
Total Programme 4,407,160 4,685,570 5,107,000 5,252,410 5,165,000 24,617,140

      
HRA Contribution 2,218,850 2,246,570 3,144,000 3,212,000 3,218,000 14,039,420
Major Repairs Reserve 1,421,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 7,149,000
Capital Receipts 30,000 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 2,193,410
Capital Investment Fund 737,310 498,000 - - - 1,235,310
Total Financing 4,407,160 4,685,570 5,107,000 5,252,410 5,165,000 24,617,140
       

4. TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME

4.1. Introduction

4.1.1. The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects 
which meet the strategic priorities of the Authority and have significant 
financial implications, including:
 The capital programme
 Housing Revenue Account review
 The efficiency and rationalisation strategy
 Other large scale projects 
 Member priority projects

4.1.2. The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by a 
Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key 
Corporate Service Managers and officers. A director is allocated as ‘project 
executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project.

4.1.3. The progress and current financial projections of the transformation 
programme is explored below along with any potential revenue 
consequences.  Any further work required to identify the financial implications 
of the programme are discussed and will feed into the 2018/19 budget setting 
process.

Page 22



4.2. General Fund Capital Programme 

4.2.1. The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February 
2016 has been reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position 
in terms of capital projections to 31st March 2021. 

4.2.2. The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major schemes, are 
summarised in the table below. Full detail is attached in ANNEX A.

Service Area 2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/20 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £
New Housing Schemes 241,960 142,000 301,050 454,000 454,000 1,593,010
Asset Management Plan 580,300 4,953,780 2,079,630 1,130,000 455,000 9,198,710
Housing Grants 463,140 414,700 389,000 389,000 389,000 2,044,840
ICT Strategy 318,000 50,000 50,000    50,000    41,520 509,520
Other Schemes 431,230 304,130    45,000 45,000 45,000 870,360
Total Programme 2,034,630 5,864,610 2,864,680 2,068,000 1,384,520 14,216,440
Financed by:       
External Contributions 569,180 460,700 389,000 389,000 389,000 2,196,880
Capital Receipts -    642,000 491,050 1,264,000 734,000 3,131,050
Capital Reserve - - - - - -
S106 Planning Obligations    308,080      10,000 - - - 318,080
Borrowing 1,157,370 4,751,910 1,984,630 415,000 261,520 8,570,430
Total  Financing 2,034,630 5,864,610 2,864,680 2,068,000 1,384,520 14,216,440

4.2.3. The capital projections above include the carry forward of £523,770 capital 
budgets from 2015/16 as approved by Members.

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

4.2.4. The Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme approved by members in 
February 2016 has now been updated based on priority works required and 
an additional year has been added (see ANNEX B).  This is pending the 
results of the stock condition surveys which have now commenced and will 
inform capital investment requirements going forward.

Page 23



 
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total

 £ £ £ £ £ £
Planned Maintenance 2,908,300 3,036,000 3,036,000 3,036,000 3,036,000 15,052,300
Responsive Works 445,000 395,000 395,000 395,000 395,000 2,025,000
Aids & Adaptations 435,670 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,835,670
New Build 194,000 - - - - 194,000
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000
Total Programme 4,137,970 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 19,881,970

      
HRA Contribution 1,580,970 1,997,000 2,078,640 2,325,000 2,386,000 10,367,610
Major Repairs Reserve 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 7,750,000
Capital Receipts 509,000 389,000 307,360 61,000 - 1,266,360
Capital Investment Fund 498,000 - - - - 498,000
Total Financing 4,137,970 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 19,881,970
       

4.2.5. The capital projections above include a £547,600 reduction to the 2016/17 
approved programme relating to a transfer to revenue for specific items of 
expenditure which, as per accounting regulation, should be classified as 
revenue expenditure (as reported to the HRA Member working group in 
September). This has also been applied to any planned expenditure in 
2017/18 – 2020/21 which should be classed as revenue.

  Asset Management Plan (AMP) – General Fund

4.2.6 It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the 
ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable.  This 
is becoming increasingly difficult due to the age of a number of the Council’s 
key buildings and the shrinking amount of financial resources available to 
support service delivery.

4.2.7 A stock condition survey has been undertaken on the Council’s property 
assets.  A report detailing the outcomes and actions emerging was presented 
to Executive in July 2016. This included the potential capital and revenue 
financial implications of maintaining the Council’s current property assets over 
a 30-year period.  This has now been reviewed and updated to take account 
of any changes and updates to stock information since July 2016.   

4.2.8 The surveys confirmed that a number of the Council’s operational assets are 
dated in appearance, have structural issues or urgent health and safety work 
requirements or the electrical and mechanical infrastructure require updating.  
The investment required to ensure the assets remain fit for purpose is 
significant over the-30 year period and consequently impacts on future 
revenue budgets.  

4.2.9 The report discussed the options to either reduce the amount of capital 
expenditure or reduce the impact on revenue of the necessary capital 
spending:

Page 24



 Asset rationalisation
 Shared use of assets
 Reduction in specification and functionality
 Generate additional capital receipts
 Identify grants to support investment
 Generate additional revenue from asset holdings 

4.2.10 Additionally, it also recommended the review of:
 

 Public conveniences and car parks provision, with a view to disposal of 
assets that are surplus to requirements.

 Leisure asset portfolio in the context of the expiry of the existing leisure 
management contract with a view to reducing the on-going assets and 
operating costs

 Operational depot asset portfolio in the context of a potential new 
operating model with a view to reducing overall costs

 Strategic land holdings with a view to developing options to either 
generate additional capital receipts or opportunities to generate ongoing 
financial returns

4.2.11 Consequently, a Member working group has been established to consider 
these points.  The working group has to date agreed proposals to progress 
emergency building works which present significant hazards and the deferral 
of car parks works to focus on other priorities (with the exception of Sylvan car 
park which required early investment).  Additionally, public convenience 
provision has been reviewed and a strategy agreed to maintain current 
standards in recently refurbished locations with a phased scheme of 
improvements at public conveniences which require investment. These 
recommendations have been incorporated into the revised AMP.  

4.2.12. The current capital programme costs of the AMP include approved carry 
forwards from 2015/16, projected spend in 2016/17, revised estimates for 
2017/18-2019/20 and the additional estimated costs of maintaining the asset 
portfolio in 2020/21. The current programme includes significant early 
investment in key public buildings: Pavilion Gardens, Buxton Town Hall and 
Glossop Halls. 

4.2.13. The table below summarises the capital investment requirements on the 
Council’s property portfolio and revenue consequences (cost of borrowing) 
over a 30-year period as reported in July 2016:

Page 25



HPBC AMP Capital Investment & 
Revenue Consequence

2016-17 – 
2019-20

2020-21 – 
2045-46            

(26 years)
TOTAL

£ £ £
Public Buildings 8,450,983 6,188,951 14,639,934
Car Parks 120,000 3,754,462 3,874,462
Public Conveniences 123,400 949,300 1,072,700
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets 671,360 1,230,000 1,901,360
Leisure Centres 45,000 6,825,129 6,870,129
Depots and Parks Buildings 144,700 1,301,785 1,446,485
TOTAL 9,555,443 20,249,627 29,805,070

Revenue Consequences 295,619 592,838 888,457

4.2.14 The table below reflects the updated capital investment requirements which 
have increased by £300,200 over the 30 year period and will therefore have a 
marginal increase in revenue consequences (see 4.2.33) to what was 
reported in July 2016:

HPBC AMP Capital 
Investment & Revenue 

Consequence

2016-17 
(current 

year 
forecast)

2017-18 – 
2020-21 
(MTFP)

2021-22 – 
2045-46            

(25 years)
TOTAL

£ £ £ £
Public Buildings 558,000 7,024,652 6,059,078 13,641,730
Car Parks 120,000 3,754,462 3,874,462
Public Conveniences 123,400 949,300 1,072,700
Waterways & Infrastructure 
Assets 22,300 1,053,310 1,105,000 2,180,610

Leisure Centres 245,000 7,736,945 7,981,945
Depots and Parks Buildings 52,050 1,301,785 1,353,835
TOTAL 580,300 8,618,412 20,906,570 30,105,282

4.2.15. The consequential borrowing costs of capital investment up to 2020/21 have 
been incorporated into the MTFP.  This contributes to the overall budget 
deficit position, therefore, an asset management review project has been 
included within the refreshed efficiency programme.  This will focus on 
assessing and confirming the approach for asset investment in key buildings 
to identify positive revenue implications, for example, reduced annual 
maintenance and utility costs due to fewer and/or more efficient buildings and 
income receipts from shared accommodation partners will be taken towards 
the efficiency programme.

4.2.16 The most significant capital expenditure over the 4 year period of the MTFP is 
in relation to Pavilion Gardens. The phase 1 project to commence works 
required to the Octagon building has been approved and a contractor has now 
been appointed.  The resultant revenue implications of borrowing for this 
scheme have been identified and a programme of cost saving measures at 
the Pavilion Gardens is now underway with the aim of covering these 
additional costs and reducing the overall trading deficit.  This is included within 
the Efficiency and Rationalisation programme 2017/18–2020/21 (Appendix B)   

Page 26



Asset Management Plan (AMP) - Housing

4.2.17 The Executive agreed to complete a full condition survey on the Council’s 
portfolio of housing properties by March 2019.  The last stock condition survey 
was undertaken in 2012 and was based on a 20% sample of properties.  It is 
recognised that reliable and up-to-date stock condition data is critical for 
investment planning and consequently it was agreed to undertake a phased 
prioritised approach to assessing the condition of the stock to validate the data 
currently held.  This will be based on property type and phased in the following 
way:

 Phase 1 – Non Traditional properties (is now underway to be completed           
during 2017/18)

 Phase 2 – Sheltered Accommodation (is now underway to be completed 
during 2017/18

 Phase 3 – Large town concentrations of stock (to be completed during 
2017/18)

 Phase 4 – Rural Stock (to be completed by 2018/19)

4.2.18 Stock condition requirements will then be considered in line with the 
affordability of the HRA Business Plan. The results of the stock condition 
surveys will start to emerge during 2017, which will then feed into the 2018/19-
2021/22 MTFP. The HRA capital programme proposed within this update is 
based on current stock condition information held.  The 2017/18 programme 
has been reviewed using existing internal data and prioritising schemes, 
consequently reducing the overall programme by approximately £700,000 per 
annum.  This has then been applied to 2018/19 – 2020/21 pending the stock 
condition information being presented.      

Buxton Crescent

4.2.19. The Buxton Crescent Hotel and Thermal Spa construction contracts have 
commenced.  The smaller contract to refurbish the Pump Room is now 
virtually complete.  This will eventually become the hub for the proposed visitor 
centre.  The main contract to convert the Crescent and the Natural Baths into 
the hotel and spa is progressing well with a programmed completion towards 
the end of 2018.

4.2.20. Funding arrangements are in place for the project.  It is, however, still 
necessary to identify the potential financial risks to the Council if the project 
failed to complete. The corresponding financial risks relate to mothballing 
costs and ongoing maintenance requirements of the building over a 5-year 
period (the estimated time to end the current project, procure a new partner, 
design and develop to the point of starting on site). These costs remain as 
previously reported but will start to decline as the construction contracts 
progress, therefore the costs are not included in the MTFP, but are flagged as 
a risk.  Estimated costs are shown below:

Page 27



Costs HPBC Liability
Cost over 5 years

£
Mothballing costs (security, insurance, utilities) 257,500
Work to the Nestle pipe* 200,000
Maintenance Costs 1,600,000
TOTAL 2,057,500

*Work to Nestle pipe, as part of phase one. The water pipe from the natural baths running to George Street is 
suspended on steel girders. This is a temporary measure pending phase 2 construction works. If the project was 
cancelled an immediate measure would be to relay the water pipe underground

4.2.21.  As the contracts are progressing and the risks surrounding the project begin 
to reduce, it is proposed to redesignate a proportion of the £1,000,000 
earmarked reserve established to support this project.  As the main contract is 
due to complete during 2018, the MTFP assumes that £800,000 of the reserve 
will be transferred to the general contingency reserve on 1st April 2019.  This 
would leave £200,000 to support the establishment of the proposed new 
tourism delivery model at the Crescent.    

  Housing Grants 

4.2.22. The Borough Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants, 
Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 for the mandatory Disabled Facilities 
Grant and this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All 
eligible applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major 
adaptations to their properties. The funding for these adaptations has 
previously been given directly to the Council but from 2015/16, the funding 
has been incorporated into the Better Care Fund and paid to the County 
Council. In 2016-17 the County Council paid over DFG funding of  £389,000 
which represents an increase of £151,000 from the previous year’s allocation

4.2.23. The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care 
provision and covers the whole range of services including public health, 
social care services and clinical commissioning groups. 

4.2.24. However, it is still not clear what the level of funding or the payment 
mechanism might be for future years. The County Council has launched a 
review of DFG provision in partnership with the District Authorities which 
intends to re-engineer the delivery of adaptation services.  This will lead to the 
development of jointly agreed plans between partner agencies that will 
subsequently inform the allocation of funding. There is a risk that High Peak 
will need to increase its level of funding contribution in future years depending 
on levels of demand and any revised funding regime.  Further updates will be 
provided as this becomes clear 

  ICT Strategy

4.2.25. The framework for a new 3 year ICT Strategy was established in 2014/15.  
The key drivers of which are to support delivery of the Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Plan, provide the infrastructure to support joint working, 
support new ways of working and improve access to services for our 
customers.

5.17

Page 28



4.2.26. Implementation of the Strategy has commenced in order to find an Alliance 
wide solution in regard to IT provision. The aim of which is to reduce the 
number of applications and software and consequently pressure on server 
space. The capital provision for this project has been reprofiled to account for 
the acceleration of the infrastructure and Microsoft compliancy phase of the 
project resulting in higher than originally anticipated expenditure in 2016/17.  
An additional £100,000 has been added to the ICT capital programme overall 
to account for an additional years expenditure. 

4.2.27. Capital investment is required to establish the infrastructure required to meet 
the key drivers. This in turn will identify the revenue consequences of capital 
purchases – increased costs including maintenance, updates and annual 
licence purchases, offset by savings resulting from better usage and 
consolidation of the Council's suite of systems.

  Funding the Capital Programme 

4.2.28.  The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include 
external grants and contributions from third parties, comprising of Government 
and lottery funding streams; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the 
asset management plan and sale of council dwellings; earmarked revenue 
reserves and a planned annual contribution from the Housing Revenue 
Account to finance improvements to council dwellings.

4.2.29.  Borrowing is undertaken to fund the shortfall after the other capital resources 
have been used. The current programme includes estimates of external 
funding of £2.197m towards General Fund projects; capital receipts of 
£4.397m (£3,131m General Fund, and  £1.266m HRA); Housing Revenue 
Reserves of £3.629m are forecast to be applied in 2016/17 and a further 
£14.987m of Housing Revenue Reserves over the following four years 
(subject to review – see 4.3). Borrowing is the main funding option for the 
General Fund programme at £8.570m. The Treasury Management Strategy 
then considers whether this is funded externally or internally - both options 
have a consequence on revenue either through reduced investment income or 
increased external interest liability as highlighted in the table below.

4.2.30. Capital receipts include one-for-one right-to-buy receipts (which is a proportion 
of the overall receipt from the sale of Council housing stock). These have to 
be used to fund capital expenditure on new housing properties. Under 
Government guidelines, these receipts can only represent 30% of overall 
expenditure, with a further 70% being required to be allocated.  The current 
strategy is to fund this via a third party, i.e. a social housing landlord or 
developer, with the third party organisation providing the additional 70% 
expenditure.  

4.2.31 The HRA can also apply capital receipts which are not subject to the same 
restrictions to the overall capital programme.  Therefore these un-ring-fenced 
receipts have been applied to the overall HRA capital programme as a source 
of funding.   

Page 29



4.2.32. There remains a balance of £100,000 within the general fund earmarked 
reserve established specifically to fund capital projects.  It is proposed to use 
this fund where an options appraisal on the acquisition of vehicles, plant and 
equipment has been carried out and suggests that the most financially viable 
option is to outright purchase. Similarly, an increase in the contribution to 
capital is proposed where it is best value to do so for the HRA.      

  Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme

4.2.33. The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue 
consequences as follows:

Revenue Consequences 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Borrowing Costs 54,810 161,110 139,730 117,760
Other (Income)/Expenditure - - - -
General Fund 54,810 161,110 139,730 117,760

HRA contribution to Capital (747,570) 81,640 246,360 61,000
Borrowing Costs (88,660) (124,120) (63,870) (35,600)
Housing Revenue Account (836,230) (42,480) 182,490 25,400

Total (781,420) 118,630 322,220 143,160

4.3.  Housing Revenue Account review

Background

4.3.1 In 2014, the Council made a commitment in its Corporate Plan to undertake a 
fundamental review of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan. 
Consequently the Executive agreed to adopt the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Chartered Institute of Housing (CIH) 
Voluntary Code for Self-Financed HRAs with a commitment to perform a full 
self-assessment against the code, the outcome of which will provide the 
agenda for the development of the HRA Business Plan.

4.3.2 The business plan is being developed in the context of significant financial 
constraints. In 2015, government announced far reaching legislative and 
financial changes for the social housing sector, which will have significant 
implications for the Council and in particular a negative financial impact on the 
HRA. The expected financial impact of these changes, the most significant 
being the 1% rent reduction imposed over 4 financial years, is approximately 
£2.2 million by 2020/21.

4.3.3. Appendix B details the HRA financial improvement plan 2017/18 – 2020/21, 
which includes the scope of the review.

Page 30



 HRA Business Plan Sub-Committee

4.3.4. The development of the business plan is being undertaken through a sub-
committee established by the Corporate Select Committee. The work 
commenced in June 2016 and is expected to be complete by June 2017 when 
a new business plan will be agreed.

4.3.5. Given the significance of the financial position there has been an early focus on 
areas where reductions in financial provisions in the HRA can be made or 
additional income can be generated in order to ensure that the longer term 
financial position can be brought into balance. 

4.3.6. The sub-committee review schedule and the progress made to date is 
summarised in the table below:

Meeting 
Date

Agenda Items Actions

Stock Condition
Financing Transactions

June 2016

Housing & Planning Bill 
Implications

 Full stock condition survey underway, majority 
completed in 2017/18

 Option to vary annual debt repayment – further 
comparative work to be carried out

Capital Programme
Rent Policy

August 
2016

Carelink / Other Support

 2017/18 capital programme reviewed with 
schemes included on a priority basis using 
internal information pending stock data

 Rent Policy currently being written with an 
implementation plan to start during 2017/18, 
which focuses on raising additional income 
streams 

Lettings
Voids

November 
2016

Sheltered 
Accommodation

 Review of voids/tenancies underway to reduce 
loss of income and streamline processes

 Options analysis for the operation of sheltered 
accommodation to ensure service is affordable – 
stock condition information to be incorporated 
when available

Tenancy & 
Neighbourhood 
Management

January  
2017

Repairs

 Emerging findings presented of Tenancy & 
Neighbourhood process and service review 
operational changes and enhancements to the 
allocations process.  Further 
review/consdieration required for some aspects

 Emerging findings presented from the review of 
void and responsive repairs.  Business case for 
rationalisation of systems and integration in 
development.  Revised policy for repairs 
recharges and void repairs required.

Revised HRA Business 
Plan

March 
2017

Tenant Engagement
Housing Need & SupplyApril/May 

2017 Future Development

Page 31



Financial Position

4.3.7. The MTFP summarises the latest financial forecasts for the HRA Business 
Plan and provides a detailed summary of the financial position from 2017/18 
to 2020/21. 

4.3.8. The original forecast annual deficit upon the announcement of the social 
sector rent reduction was some £2.2 million. At this stage, the HRA shows an 
annual deficit position of £770,000 by 2020/21 – which shows an improved 
position by £1.4 million.

4.3.9. The £1.4 million reduction in the deficit is made up as follows:

4.3.10. The 30-year HRA business plan is based upon capital expenditure that is 
derived from the existing stock condition information.  The plan also currently 
makes provision to repay outstanding debt at £1.2 million per annum – 
although alternative options have been presented to the HRA working group 
and further supporting information is being collated for review.   

4.3.11. The financial implications of the recent reforms have resulted in the need to 
fundamentally review all of the current assumptions. The current annual 
repairs and capital programme budget are not sustainable going forward as 
this level of expenditure would create an annual deficit, requiring reserves to 
be applied.  As it stands, the HRA contingency balance would reach its 
recommended minimum £1million by approximately 2026/27 due to 
supplementing the revenue budget through use of reserves.  

4.3.12. Consequently, additional external borrowing is then required to be undertaken 
to support the HRA capital programme.  However, by 2033/34, the Council 
would reach the Government imposed ‘debt cap’ of £68,232,000, at which 
point there is no headroom for further borrowing to fund the capital 
programme.  

Budget Heading Savings Annual 
Reduction

£
Rent Income Reduction to bad debt provision based on recent 

collection rates 80,000

Various Expenditure Headings Reduction to general inflation assumptions 60,000
Employee Costs Reduction to pensions contribution to deficit 

based on recent valuation 200,000

Capital Financing Reduction in interest costs in respect of the 
refinancing of debt at lower levels and the 
removal of loan premiums

320,000

Accommodation Reduction in accommodation charges following 
move from Furness Vale to Buxton Town Hall 40,000

Total Annual Saving before 
reduction in Capital Contribution 700,000
HRA Contribution to Capital Annual reduction in capital contribution (to be 

confirmed upon completion of the stock 
condition survey

700,000

Total Annual Saving 1,400,000

Page 32



4.3.13. Therefore, it is essential that further efficiency measures are achieved in order 
to ensure the HRA Business Plan is financially sustainable over the long-term.  
A high level savings plan to address the remaining deficit position is shown in 
the Financial Improvement Plan (Appendix B).  The final programme of 
financial savings will be dependent upon completion of the sub-committee’s 
work in June 2017.

4.4. Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme 

4.4.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by 
Members in April 2014, which identified a programme of £2.8million in savings 
to be made over the period 2014/15 – 2016/17, of which £300,000 relates to 
the HRA.  

4.4.2. In establishing that plan, importance was placed on ensuring the programme 
of savings was well focussed and recognised the capacity constraints on the 
organisation following the departure of a significant number of staff under 
voluntary redundancy.

4.4.3. During 2016/17, £408,000 in Procurement related savings (reduced spend as 
a result of procurement activity being challenged/increased on contract spend 
etc) have been realised against the efficiency programme.  Additionally the 
majority of the £485,000 targeted service review savings will be relaised by 
the end of 2016/17. 

4.4.4. However, current forecasts suggest that there will be £431,200 outstanding 
against the £2.8 million target at the end of 2016/17.  

4.4.5. In addition to the existing efficiency programme; in order to balance the 
general fund budget in 2017/18-2020/21; there is a new savings requirement 
of £1,699,480.  This results in a new efficiency programme for the general 
fund of £2,130,680.

4.4.6. Consequently, a new Efficiency Programme has been developed to address 
the MTFP budget shortfall and incorporate unachieved efficiencies from the 
previous efficiency programme. The new Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy is attached at Appendix C.

4.4.7. The new Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy will have the effect of both 
reducing expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing i.e. 
not reliant on direct government funding such as revenue support grant. 

4.4.8. The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable 
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

4.4.9. It is intended that there will be five areas of focus:

Page 33



 Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a 
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an 
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming 
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with 
proper consideration of the current financial constraints.  The individual 
projects will focus on Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure 
Management and Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of 
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order 
to allow for the necessary cpaital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic 
growth based upon the established Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yeild from existing sources 
on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income, 
including a savings programme for Pavilion Gardens.

 Rationalisation – a commitment to redcuing expenditure on non-priority 
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-
statutory services. 

4.4.10. The below table summarises the finanical savings requirements and profile for 
achievement (ANNEX C provides more detil of the savings plan):-

General Fund Efficiency 
Strategy 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

 £ £ £ £ £
Major Procurements 100,000 275,000 100,000 500,000 975,000
Asset Management - 30,000 200,000 - 230,000
Growth - 40,000 40,000 190,000 270,000
Income Generation 90,000 190,000 70,000 120,000 470,000
Rationalisation 120,000 46,000 20,000 - 186,000
TOTAL 310,000 581,000 430,000 810,000 2,131,000

4.4.11. A further exercise reviewing the revenue underspends of recent years will also 
take place during the 2017/18 budget setting process. The review will identify 
areas, which have consistently underspent against the base budget, with a view 
to removing the excess provision. Any budget adjustments will be used to 
support the Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy.

4.4.12. The deficit position relating to the HRA is be addressed as part of the Financial 
Improvement Plan (see Appendix B) as discussed in section 4.3 of this report. 
This will be met from savings and additional income identified from the HRA 
review and service review outcomes.

Page 34



4.5. Member Priority Projects

4.5.1. During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions have 
been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows: 

Financial Implications

Member Priority Projects (y/n) Firm - in 
plans

Costs 
understood - 
not in plans

Costs not 
known

Leader  

Adopt an approved Local Plan which will be kept under review Y 
Communicate more effectively with residents N
Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners N
Work with our Combined Authority partners and the Local 
Enterprise Partnership to bring funding to High Peak Y 
Use our influence to secure better health and care services 
through commissioners and from providers N

Parks, Leisure & Recycling  
Establish a developer open space contributions plan  Y 
Work with local residents to improve our parks  N
Take steps to reduce dog fouling and littering Y 
Finance & Corporate Services  
Continually review and implement an efficiency and 
rationalisation programme  Y 
Improve customer service  Y 
Review car parking provision and extend resident concessionary 
parking  Y 
Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing  
Review TIC and tourism service  Y 
Together with partners work for the delivery of the Crescent 
development  Y 
Support the development of the Woods Mill area, Glossop Halls 
and Torr Vale Mill  Y 
Create an “Open for Business” environment in High Peak N 
  
Housing  
Complete and implement a Housing Management and Revenue 
Plan Y 

4.5.2. Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in 
the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration 
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number 
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications.

Page 35



5. FINANCIAL FORECASTS

5.1. Interest Rates

5.1.1. The Bank of England Base Rate was cut from 0.50% to 0.25% following the 
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting of 4th August 2016. Forward 
views are that the Bank Rate could still go up or down depending on how 
economic data evolves in the coming months. Capita (the Council’s treasury 
advisors) are forecasting the rate to remain at 0.25% with the first increase to 
0.50% in June 2019.

5.1.2. Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. Bank Rate forecasts will be liable to further amendment 
depending on how economic data and developments in financial markets 
transpire over the next year. 

5.1.3. Borrowing commentary reports that yields are at historic lows and borrowing 
should be considered where appropriate to the strategy. The general 
expectation for an eventual trend of gently rising gilt yields and PWLB rates 
remains.

5.1.4. Based on the current forecasts, changes in investment income and borrowing 
costs are highlighted below:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020//21
£ £ £ £

Changes in Investment Income 65,940 1,030 (51,850) (58,720)
Changes in Borrowing Costs (177,550) 77,970 (49,150) (66,120)

5.2. Inflationary Projections

5.2.1. The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12-month rate, 
as at December 2016, stood at 2.5% and 1.6% respectively.  Inflation 
forecasts are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, 
resulting in an inflation rate specific to the Council.

5.2.2. The inflation assumptions included in the MTFP presented to members in 
November 2016 have been updated, where appropriate, to reflect the latest 
available information. The additional costs to the Council arising from inflation 
are forecast in the table below:

Inflationary Changes 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £ £ £ £

Employee Costs 320,650 256,970 261,220 255,430
Premises Costs 52,150 62,040 69,390 75,110
Transport 1,540 3,850 8,680 8,800
Supplies and Services 93,660 122,090 127,130 128,820
In-Year Inflation Pressure 468,000 444,950 466,420 468,160
     General Fund 336,600 320,980 337,190 342,670
Housing Revenue Account 131,400 123,970 129,230 125,490
TOTAL 468,000 444,950 466,420 468,160

Page 36



5.3. Budgetary Demand

5.3.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2016 
analysed and projected forward both income and expenditure.  This has been 
revised to reflect known changes in budgetary demand. A small number of 
additional items have been added to those presented in November

5.3.2. The current known changes in budgetary demand are highlighted below:- 

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

 £ £ £ £
Cemetery wall and paths backlog maintenance (20,000) - - -
HRA pension past service deficit costs (22,400) (22,400) (24,400) (25,400)
Uniforms – Customer Services (cyclical) (2,500) 2,500 (2,500) 2,500
Supported Housing – subsidy loss arising out of increase 75,000 - - -
Pavilion Gardens – Octagon closure (50,000) (59,000) (59,000) -
Internal Audit – 5 yearly external review (2,500) - - -
MMI Second levy (funded from earmarked reserve) (61,700) - - -
Pension Fund Deficit Repair – budget adjustment 50,000 - - -
Hathersage Pool – Access grant increase 2,220
Building Control – service change 90,000 - - -
Recharge to HRA re: Buxton Town Hall (50,000) - - -
Local Tax administration support funding (6,240)
Benefits administration – reduced funding 25,050 21,000
DCC - Discontinue on-street parking arrangements - 24,580
 Total – General Fund 26,930 (33,320) (85,900) (22,900)

Major works transfer to revenue from capital* 300,000 - - -
Survey and related minor works transfer to revenue 290,000 - - -
Vacating of Furness Vale (90,310) - - -
Reduction in mobile phone costs (15,410) - - -
Radon Monitoring Programme (funded by HRA savings) (149,760) - - -
Recharge to HRA re: Buxton Town Hall 50,000 - - -
Total – Housing Revenue Account 384,520 - - -
   

*offset by reduction in revenue contribution to capital

5.4. Budget Growth

5.4.1. In previous years, few additions in respect of budget growth have been 
included in the MTFP. It was assumed in light of the financial pressures faced 
by the Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be 
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere. 

5.4.2. No new items of budget growth have been included in this version of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan.

5.24

Page 37



5.5. Pensions

5.5.1. The Derbyshire Pension Fund underwent a triennial actuarial valuation in 
2016 to determine the level of future contributions necessary to achieve a 
balanced position. The final outcome has now been received.

5.5.2. At the last valuation, in 2013, the Derbyshire Fund had a funding level (the 
ratio of assets to liabilities) of 82.5% and a scheme deficit of £663 million. The 
2016 valuation results show that the scheme deficit has improved by £100 
million to £563 million; a funding level of 86.7%.

5.5.3. The High Peak Borough Council portion of the Fund had a funding level of 
69% at the 2013 valuation and a deficit of £25.9 million. The 2016 valuation 
results show that this position has improved in line with the wider Fund 
position (75% funding level and a deficit of £22.1 million). The High Peak 
portion of the Fund remains, however, poorly funded in comparison with the 
Fund as a whole.

5.5.4. The contributions necessary over the next three years have been actuarially 
determined by the 2016 Fund valuation exercise. The Council is required to 
contribute 12.4% of pensionable pay annually over the next 3 years, together 
with secondary contributions totalling £5.445 million over that period. This 
represents an increase of £54,000 (£321,000 less than the position reported in 
November). 

5.5.5. In year 4 of the MTFP (2020/21) the contributions necessary will be 
determined by a further revaluation scheduled to take place in 2019. Provision 
for an increase in contributions of £18,000 has been included in this iteration 
in line with the increases seen in the 2016 valuation.

5.5.6. These additional pension costs are included in the employee inflation element 
of the Plan.

5.6. Housing Revenue Account – Other Operating Expenditure 

5.6.1. There are a number of items that relate only to the HRA. They include some 
direct elements of income and expenditure as well as notional charges for 
asset depreciation and debt impairment.

5.6.2. Increase in Other Operating Expenditure - The updated HRA plan provides for 
a number of changes to operating expenditure as set out in the table below:

    Expenditure / (Income) 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
      £ £ £ £

Provision for Irrecoverable Debts (74,670) (2,180) 560 (1,320)
Charges for Depreciation 118,000 -                   

-   
 -                  
-   

-                      
-   Interest Receipts 53,860 (13,450) (22,420) (22,420)

Past Service Pension Deficit Contribution 22,400 22,400 24,400 25,400
     Increased / (Reduced) Other Operating Expenditure 119,590 6,770 2,540 1,660
    

Page 38



6.  FUNDING & INCOME GENERATION
 

6.1. Council Tax 

6.1.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition 
of capping.  However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more 
than 1.99% is subject to referendum.
 

6.1.2. The MTFP assumes that a 1.9% increase will be implemented in each of the 4 
years covered by this Plan.

6.1.3. Provision has been made in the Plan to reflect anticipated growth in Council 
Tax base over the next 4 years. The table below sets out the additional yield 
from Council Tax as assumed in the Medium Term Financial Plan: 

Increased Council Tax Income 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Revenue from increased Council Tax (100,140) (103,200) (106,210) (109,410)
Revenue from Tax Base growth (60,860) (55,370) (62,060) (57,490)

Total (161,000) (158,570) (168,270) (166,900)

6.2.   Business Rates Retention

6.2.1. The 2013/14 Local Government Finance Settlement saw the introduction of 
the new business rates retention system, replacing the previous system of 
financing with a system based on the retention of business rates. 

6.2.2. Under the current system, the Authority retains 40% of Business Rates less a 
tariff that is payable in to a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. This amount is then 
compared to a Funding Baseline (estimated at £2,209,510 for 2017/18): any 
amount in excess of this Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely if the 
amount of retained Business Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped 
by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling 
below the Baseline.

6.2.3. As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy is made to the Pool instead of Central 
Government. If the Council was not in the Derbyshire Pool it would have to 
pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively limiting the income 
the Council can gain from business rates growth. However, as part of the 
Pool, the Council is able to retain some of this levy. Under the Pool 
agreement, this amount will depend on the amount all members of the Pool 
pay in at the end of the year, and the proportional success of the Council 
against its own baseline.

6.2.4. In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of 
reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local 
government retaining 100% of the rates that they received with an end to 
Revenue Support Grant.

Page 39



6.2.5. In outline the proposals for reform are as follows: 
 Local authorities will retain 100% of Business Rates to fund local spending 

on services; 
 The new system will be in place by the end of the current Parliament;
 Local authorities with be able to retain income from growth – i.e. there will 

be no levy; 
 The reform will be fiscally neutral and local authorities will have new 

responsibilities and / or central government grants will be phased out; 
 Local authorities will have the ability to reduce rates – there will be the 

ability to increase for combined authority mayors; and 
 The new system will retain a system of tariffs and top ups subject to a 

fundamental review of needs. 

6.2.6. In July 2016 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
published two consultation papers: 
 Self-sufficient local government: 100% Business Rates Retention; and 
 Business Rates Reform - Fair Funding Review: Call for evidence on Needs 

and Redistribution. 

6.2.7. The Council responded to the consultation documents, detail of which was 
reported to Executive on 22nd September 2016.

6.2.8. There remains uncertainly surrounding how the new system will be phased in 
and in what form. Further updates will be presented as more information is 
released.  For the purpose of the MTFP, no financial assumptions have been 
included based on the proposed new system, however, any financial benefits 
of the scheme will contribute towards the growth efficiency project as part of 
the new Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy.

6.2.9. A national revaluation of Business Rates premises has taken place and the 
new list of rateable values will be introduced from 1st April 2017. Central 
Government has adjusted the tariff applied to the Council’s Business Rates 
income to take account of this change. The change in this tariff is offset by the 
net change in income following the introduction of the revised rateable values.

6.2.10. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the 
baseline, but is somewhat suppressed due to the extension of reliefs including 
increased small business rate relief, multiplier cap, re-occupied long-term 
empty property relief, and newly built empty relief.  To compensate for the loss 
of business rates income resulting from the reliefs, funding has to date been 
made available to Councils under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 
2003. The MTFP assumes both the extension of reliefs and Section 31 grants 
will continue.

6.2.11. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be impacted by a 
range of factors, including the Derbyshire Pool’s success in generating new 
and retaining existing business within its area. At this stage, predicted levels 
of business rates income are based on known and expected changes to the 
business rates listing. 

Page 40



Business Rates Retention 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
In year:
      Baseline Funding (2,209,510) (2,274,700) (2,347,400) (2,422,430)
      Achievement against Baseline (223,830) (179,240) (120,250) (58,200)
      Section 31 Grant (617,170) (628,510) (639,780) (651,230)

(3,050,510) (3,082,450) (3,107,430) (3,131,860)
Change between years:
      Business Rates retained (178,748) (20,600) (13,710) (12,980)
      Section 31 Grant (20,572) (11,340) (11,270) (11,450)

(199,320) (31,940) (24,980) (24,430)

6.3. Collection Fund 

6.3.1. The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax 
and Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any 
surplus or deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in 
subsequent years.

6.3.2. It is expected that the High Peak’s share of a surplus, in respect of Council 
Tax, will be £64,700 in 2017/18.

6.3.3. There is an anticipated surplus on the Business Rates collection fund; the 
Council’s share is currently estimated at £80,410. 

6.3.4. These and future year movements are set out in the table below:

Changes in Collection 
Fund Income 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Council Tax (7,500) 240 (1,550) (1,630)
Business Rates (667,180) 80,410 - -

Total (674,680) 80,650 (1,550) (1,630)

6.4.   Income from Government Grants

  Revenue Support Grant 

6.4.1. The current approved MTFP, reported to Council in February 2016, includes 
the phased elimination of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) announced by the 
Government in October 2015.

Page 41



6.4.2. This revision of the MTFP maintains the profile of RSG reduction proposed by 
the Government as part of the 4 year settlement in February 2016. Reductions 
of £544,480 (33%), £334,340 (21%) and £245,760 (15%) in 2017/18, 2018/19 
and 2019/20 respectively are included. This results in no RSG being included 
in the Authority’s funding by 2019/20.

6.4.3. Local Authorities were required to submit an efficiency plan to Government by 
14th October 2016 if they wanted to accept the 4 year settlement.  The plan 
should set out what the Council intends to do in order to address the 
challenge of financial sustainability.  If the four-year offer is not accepted the 
Council would be subject to the existing annual process for determining the 
local government finance settlement. Allocations could be subject to additional 
reductions dependent on the fiscal climate and the need to make further 
savings to reduce the deficit.  The Council accepted the 4 year settlement and 
submitted an efficiency plan – a copy of which was attached to the November 
2016 iteration of this report.

  New Homes Bonus 

6.4.4. New Homes Bonus (NHB) is aimed at encouraging local authorities to grant 
planning permission for the building of new houses, in return for additional 
revenue.

6.4.5. New Homes Bonus represents a significant element of the Authority’s funding. 
Historically, the Council has been awarded £0 (2011/12), £147,410 (2012/13), 
£170,950 (2013/14), £132,600 (2014/15), £159,360 (2015/16) and £163,000 
(2016/17) in New Homes Bonus.

6.4.6. Consultation on the future format of New Homes Bonus was carried out in 
2016 with the outcome being included in the settlement details released in 
December. The main changes to the scheme, which will come into effect on 
1st April, include:

 The reduction in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid from the 
current 6 years to 5 years in 2017/18; to be followed by a further reduction 
to 4 years in 2018/19; 

 The removal of New Homes Bonus paid on development below a 0.4% 
baseline; representing the percentage of housing that would have been 
built anyway.

6.4.7. Further changes, proposed in the consultation, have been put on hold to be 
considered for implementation in 2018/19. These include:

 Withholding the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a 
Local Plan in place; and

 Abating the Bonus in circumstances where planning permission for a new 
development has only been granted on appeal.

Page 42



6.4.8. Under the new rules; New Homes Bonus of £99,150 has been awarded for 
2017/18. This has been incorporated into the MTFP together with anticipated 
receipts of £88,400 in respect of 2018/19; 2019/20 and 2020/21.

6.4.9. The reduction in NHB payment from 6 to 5 to 4 years was included in the 
previous iteration of the MTFP. This change has cost the Authority £1.4 million 
in forecast NHB receipts over the next 4 years

6.4.10. The removal of bonus payments on property growth below the 0.4% 
(deadweight) threshold has been incorporated into the MTFP. This change 
has cost the Authority £0.1 million in forecast NHB receipts over the next 4 
years

  Local Council Tax Support Scheme

6.4.11. The Council operates a scheme whereby funding received from central 
Government in respect of Local Council Tax Support is passed onto the 
parishes by means of an annual grant. The allocation of this grant is based on 
the eligibility of parish residents for council tax discounts. 

6.4.12. The level of resources made available for this grant has remained constant in 
spite of reductions in overall Government funding. The MTFP assumes that 
this approach will continue. This comes at a cost to the Council, which in 
2017/18 equates to £24,850.

  Summary of Income from Government Grants 

6.4.13. The table below summarises the assumed level of and movement in 
Government funding: 

Government Grant 2014/15 
(baseline)

2015/16 
(actual)

2016/17 
(actual)

2017/18 
(actual)

2018/19 
(forecast)

2019/20 
(forecast)

2020/21 
(forecast)

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Revenue Support 
Grant

(2,371,010) 738,550 507,880 544,480 334,340 245,760 -

Council Tax Freeze (113,630) (62,040) 175,670 - - - -
New Homes Bonus (450,960) (159,360) (163,000) 48,260 215,150 70,950 74,600

Change in Govt 
Funding 

(2,935,600) 517,150 520,550 592,740 549,490 316,710 74,600

6.5.  Fees and Charges

 General Fees and Charges

6.5.1. Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s 
finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and 
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities.  The Council’s 

Page 43



Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of 
fees and charges:  

 The cost of providing services should be fully met by income
 There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes
 Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the 

development of Council services in accordance with priorities
 Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually

6.5.2. Services have completed the fees and charges templates, the financial 
outcomes of the process are shown in ANNEX D. The summary includes 
categorisation of charges and identifies where fee-earning services are 
provided at a subsidy.  

6.5.3. The Medium Term Financial Plan currently projects that the Council will 
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation.  
However, it is also recognised that certain income streams (such as car 
parking, planning receipts) may not increase each year and that other income 
streams (such as grants and rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic 
review.

6.5.4. The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is 
summarised in the table below:

Increased Fees and Changes 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Revenue from increased Fees and Charges (128,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)

Total (128,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)

6.5.5 Further work will be developed in order to review fees and charges and 
identify new areas of charging in order to contribute to the Efficiency 
Programme.

  Housing Revenue Account – Rent Charges 

6.5.5. As detailed in section 4.3, the Government announced far reaching legislative 
and financial changes for the social housing sector, the most significant 
financially being the announcement to reduce by 1% per annum from April 
2016 for 4 years.

6.5.6. Therefore, the HRA Plan projects an average rent decrease on dwellings of 
1.0% in 2017/18 – 2019/20, with a 1.5% increase assumed from 2020/21.  It is 
proposed that ‘Other Charges’, including garages and sheltered housing 
service, will increase in 2017/18 by a maximum of 1%.  Fuel charges have 
been reviewed based on 2015/16 usage information at specific properties and 
an adjustment for 2017/18 applied accordingly.    

Page 44



Reduced Rental Income 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20* 2020/21

£ £ £ £
Reduced revenue from Rental Income 
and Other Charges 143,720 212,580 (61,420) 121,200

*53 week rent year

6.5.7. There is a rent policy review currently being undertaken (with early discussion 
points presented to the HRA working group). This will progress throughout 
2017/18 with staged implementation.

7. RISKS, CONTINGENCIES & USE OF RESERVES

7.1. Risks and Contingencies

7.1.1. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium 
Term Financial Planning process. Risks to the MTFP are assessed, mitigated 
and actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services 
effectively within the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium 
Term Financial Plan are summarised in ANNEX E.

7.1.2. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within 
this Medium Term Financial Plan: 

Revenue Risks Capital Risks

 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates 
 Council Tax collection
 Housing Rent levels (HRA 

affordability)
 Government grants
 Financial benefits from partnerships 

/ shared services
 Pension costs
 Outsourced waste contract
 Outsourced leisure contract

 Interest rates 
 External funding
 Capital receipts
 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme
 Project overspend
 Project overrun
 External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay)

 Housing finance 
 Weather 

5.32

Page 45



7.2.   Contingencies 

7.2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions. 
These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available 
information. New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to 
alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial 
position.

7.2.2. Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis 
and remedial action taken.  Members will receive quarterly updates on 
performance against the budget. The Council will carry adequate reserves as 
a contingency against risks that cannot be fully mitigated.

7.2.3. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks 
cannot be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 
requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the 
estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the 
budget provides. 

7.2.4. While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves 
the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the Council.  The table below present analysis 
undertaken by the Council in calculating the minimum level of general reserve 
required:

Risk Item Calculation Factor Value Reserve 
Requirement

£’m £
Expenditure Items (gross) – 
Employee Related

2% of value
12.15 243,000

Expenditure Items (gross) – Other 2% of value 8.77 175,000
New Budget Growth Additional 10% of value 0.00 0

Housing Benefits 0.25% of value 14.48 36,000
Fees and Charges 3.5% of value 9.70 340,000
Interest Receipts/Payments 5% fall in average rate 1.49 74,000

Efficiency Provisions 30% of value 0.47 140,000
Council Tax Collection 1.0% of value 5.43 54,000
Business Rates Retention 5% of value 3.05 153,000
Development Services Income 10% of value 0.87 57,000
Local Land Charges 5% income fall 0.12 6,000
Total Minimum Requirement 1,278,000

Page 46



7.2.5. It is proposed that the minimum general reserve contingency balance should 
remain at £1,300,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure and/or shortfalls in 
income.  The Council currently holds a contingency reserve of £2,200,000 
(forecast to increase to £2,500,000 at year end). 

7.2.6. The HRA working balance is made up of surpluses that have accumulated 
over a number of years.  The Council retains a minimum of £1 million 
(approximately £250 per property) in order to cover unexpected events that 
could - if realised – trigger financial pressures.

7.2.7. The level and utilisation of reserves is determined formally by the Council, 
having received the advice and judgement of the Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO). The Chief Financial Officer’s advice is:  

7.2.8. “In the view of the Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer), the budget includes estimates which take into account circumstances 
and events which are reasonably foreseeable at the time of preparing the 
budget. The view is therefore held, that the level of reserves are adequate for 
the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in place at the time of 
preparing it.” 

7.2.9. [Note: A formal record of the Chief Finance Officer’s advice is recorded in the 
minutes of the Council meeting.  In the unusual event that a Chief Finance 
Officer’s advice is not accepted by a Council, the rejection by a Council of the 
Chief Finance Officer’s advice must be recorded in the minutes].

7.3.   Use of Reserves and Balances   

  General Fund Reserves and Balances

7.3.1. The February Medium Term Financial Plan included a £68,250 contribution 
from General Fund Reserves in 2016/17. This reflected usage of the Section 
106 (Commuted Sum) Reserve (£6,550) and usage of the Insurance Fund to 
meet the costs of the Council’s obligations under the Municipal Mutual 
Insurance (MMI) scheme of arrangement (£61,700). The MMI obligation is a 
one-off payment, at this stage, affecting 2016/17 only. The level of Section 
106 reserve usage is assumed to continue throughout the life of this Plan. 

7.3.2. The February MTFP also included a use of £627,650 from General Fund 
contingency reserve in 2016/17, made possible by the anticipated levels of 
Business Rates Retention. It is likely that £910,900 will be drawn from 
reserves in 2016/17 – as an additional £215,000 is forecast to be drawn from 
earmarked reserves.

7.3.3. The use of reserves anticipated over the next 4 years has been updated and 
is included in this iteration of the plan. The annual changes are shown in the 
table below:

Page 47



Reserve / Balance 2016/17 
(Budget) 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £
General Fund Contingency Reserve (627,650) (547,020) (833,420) (715,350) -

Other Earmarked Reserves (68,250) (6,550) (6,550) (6,550) (6,550)
(695,900) (553,570) (839,970) (721,900) (6,550)

Change in contribution to reserves 142,330 (286,400) 118,070 715,350

7.3.4. Consequently, the forecast year-end detailed useable reserves position is 
shown below:-

Reserve / Balance 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20

£ £ £ £ £ £
General Fund Contingency 2,920,470 2,500,440 2,173,420 1,340,000 1,424,650 1,424,650
Earmarked Reserves:-
   Efficiency & Rationalisation - - - - - -
   Pension 220,000 220,000 - - - -
   Buxton Crescent/Business Grant Incentive 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 200,000 200,000
   Insurance 525,000 463,000 463,000 463,000 463,000 463,000
   Other 1,320,450 1,324,420 1,317,870 1,311,320 1,304,770 1,298,220

   Capital Schemes 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Total 6,085,920 5,607,860 5,054,290 4,214,320 3,492,420 3,485,870

7.3.5. As discussed in section 4.2.21 it is proposed to re-designate a proportion of 
the £1,000,000 earmarked reserve established to support the Buxton 
Crescent project.  As the main contract is progressing and due to complete 
during 2018, the risks surrounding the project are reducing.  Therefore, the 
MTFP assumes that £800,000 of the reserve will be transferred to the general 
contingency reserve on 1st April 2019.  This would leave £200,000 to support 
the establishment of the proposed new tourism delivery model at the 
Crescent.    

7.3.6. In addition, as the outcomes of the Derbyshire Pension scheme triannual 
review have been built into the MTFP, it is not necessary to carry an 
earmarked pension reserve.  This has been transferred to general 
contingency in 2017/18.

  HRA Reserves and Balances

7.3.7. The HRA balance is made up of surpluses that have accumulated over a 
number of years.  The Council retains a minimum of £1 million (approximately 
£250 per property) in order to cover unexpected events that could - if realised 
– trigger financial pressures.

7.3.8. Due to the strict ring-fencing rules that apply to the HRA, any funds set aside 
form part of HRA reserves. The table below summarises the projected HRA 
reserves position for the duration of this MTFP.

 HRA Working Balance – this reserve is the excess of income after 
expenditure in any given year and is set aside to provide for capital 

Page 48



expenditure demands in the future and to provide a contingency against 
unforeseen costs.

 Housing Reform / contingency reserve – this reserve was set aside to fund 
potential additional unforeseen costs of housing reform and self-financing. 

 Stock Condition Reserve – this reserve has been set aside to fund the cost 
of providing a stock condition survey.

 Major Void Reserve – this reserve is a contingency against the costs of 
Void properties requiring external or structural major works.

 Capital Investment Fund – this reserve is used to smooth the cost of 
borrowing required to fund any capital expenditure.  

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £ £ £ £ £
HRA Reserves Brought Forward 7,490,742 8,806,555 8,863,555 8,619,715 8,123,035
Surplus/(Loss) for the year 1,217,813 57,000 (243,840) (496,680) (770,430)
Transfers to / from reserves 98,000 - - - -
HRA Working Balance 8,806,555 8,863,555 8,619,715 8,123,035 7,352,605
Housing Reform / Contingency 
Reserves 457,560 457,560 457,560 457,560 457,560

Stock Condition Reserve 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Major Void Reserve 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Total Working Balance carried forward 9,664,115 9,721,115 9,477,275 8,980,595 8,210,165
Capital Investment Fund carried forward  446,872    446,872    446,872   446,872      446,872 
Total HRA Reserves carried forward 10,110,987 10,167,987 9,924,147 9,427,467 8,657,037

7.3.9. It can be seen from the table above that the HRA balance is projected to 
exceed its £1 million contingency minimum over the next four years.  
However, due to the 1% reduction in rental income per annum over the next 
four years, the HRA balances are significantly reducing based on current 
expenditure assumptions.  

8. Budget 2017/18

8.1 The prospects for the 2017/18 Budget were considered by the Executive, as 
part of the update of the Medium-Term Financial Plan, on 8th December 2016 
prior to the commencement of the budget exercise.  

8.2 Budget preparation work has now been completed and an overall balanced 
budget position has been reached with the inclusion of a £310,000 efficiency 
target on the General Fund and a drawdown of £547,000 in reserves. The HRA 
is balanced with a reduction to the overall capital programme pending stock 
condition survey information.

Page 49



8.3 The proposed 2017/18 General Fund Budget is detailed below:

Budget Heading
2017/18 

Projection
 £
Employees 12,154,030
Premises 3,817,240
Transport 694,690
Supplies & Services 9,957,330
Benefits          82,460
Borrowing 1,425,230
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320
Financing Costs 191,000
Unachieved Efficiencies (2014/15 - 2016/17 Plan) 431,200
  
Total Expenditure 28,804,500
  
Fees and Charges / Other Income  (11,048,930)
Interest Receipts        (64,720)
HRA Recharges    (6,663,740)
Capital Recharges       (231,240)
  
Net Expenditure 10,795,870
  
Council Tax    (5,431,520)
Revenue Support Grant       (580,100)
Business Rates Retention    (3,050,510)
New Homes Bonus       (725,060)
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves       (553,570)
Collection Fund       (145,110)
  
Total Financing  (10,485,870)
  
Deficit / (Surplus)         310,000
  
New Efficiency Requirement       (310,000)
  
Total Efficiency Requirement       (310,000)
  
In-Year Deficit / (Surplus)                  -
  

Page 50



8.4 The proposed 2017/18 Housing Revenue Account Budget is detailed below:

Budget Heading
2017/18 

Projection
 £

Repairs & Maintenance 3,932,800
Supervision & Management 2,695,930
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Other Charges 115,320
Other Operating Expenditure 1,383,590
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,550,000
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,381,630
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 1,997,000
  Total Expenditure 15,056,270
Dwellings Rents (14,495,540)
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (617,730)
  
Total Income (15,113,270)
  (Surplus) / Deficit for year (57,000)

Council Tax & Housing Rent Requirement 2016/17

8.5 The tables below illustrate the Council Tax & Housing Rent requirement for 
2016/17:

General Fund 2017/18
Budget

£
Net Cost of Services 10,485,870

Revenue Support Grant (580,100)
New Homes Bonus (725,060)
Business Rates Retention (3,050,510)
Use of Reserves (553,570)
Collection Fund (145,110)

Net Requirement from Council Tax (5,431,520)

Housing Revenue Account 2017/18
Budget

£
Net Cost of Services* 11,731,640

Plus:
Borrowing Costs 3,381,630
Net Expenditure 15,113,270
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (617,730)

Net Requirement from Housing Rents (14,495,540)
*includes contribution to balances of £57,000

Page 51



8.6 The overall Council Tax requirement contained within these proposals is 
summarised in the table below.

Budget 
Requirement

£
Tax Base

Band D 
Council Tax

£

Increase/
(Decrease) 

%

Borough Council Tax 5,431,520 29,990 181.11 1.9%

8.7 The overall rent increase requirement contained within these proposals is 
summarised in the table below:

Average 
Rents 
16/17

£

Average 
Rents 
17/18

£

Increase/
(Decrease)

£

Increase/
(Decrease) 

%
HRA Rents (over 52 weeks)

HRA Garage Rents (over 52 weeks)

71.47

6.10

70.73

6.16

(0.74)

0.06

(1.0%)

1.0%

8.8 Charges made to recover fuel costs at various blocks have been reviewed and 
will now be charged on an individual block basis.  Fuel costs during 2015/16 
were lower than anticipated achieving a reduction in most cases to the charges 
made compared to previous years.

 Weekly Charge per Unit (over 52 weeks)
 Charge Category  

 

Anticipated 
Fuel Cost
2017/18 A B C D

Communal 
Areas

 £ £ £ £ £ £

 Cromford Court 
                    

1,278 
       

-   
       

-   
       

-         -                 0.59 

 Northlands 
                      

9,483 
        

-   
    

5.95 
    

7.93 
        

-                  3.50 

 Queens Court 
                    

10,983 
        

-   
    

4.09 
        

-   
    

6.81                1.00 

 Alma Square 
                      

6,280 
    

2.84 
    

4.26     - 
        

7.10                 1.85 

 Milton Court 
                    

19,616 
    

6.34 
    

9.51 
        

-   
        

15.85                  2.64 

 Marian Court 
                      

6,506 
    

2.53 
    

3.79     - 
        

6.32                  1.31 

 Hartington Gardens 11,076 
    

1.76 
    

2.64 
    

3.52 
       

4.40                  0.42 

 Ecclesfold 
                      

3,374 
        

-   
    

1.31 
        

-   
        

-                  0.40 

 Grange Side Flats 
                      

3,276 
        

-   
        

-   
        

-   
        

-                  5.73 

 Fieldhead House 
               

2,983   -     -     -   
        

-            8.20 

 Watford Lodge 
                      

1,337 
        

-   
        

-   
        

-   
        

-                  3.21 

Page 52



 
9. MTFP REVENUE POSITION 

9.1.   General Fund Revenue Position

9.1.1. The medium term General Fund revenue position is as set out in the table 
below:

     
Summary Revenue Position 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

     
 £ £ £ £

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 4.2) 54,810
        

161,110 139,730 117,760

Interest Rate Changes (section 5.1)  65,940     1,030    (51,850) (58,720)

Borrowing Costs (section 5.1)
    

(177,550)      77,970
     

(49,150) (66,120)

Inflation Pressures (section 5.2)
     

336,600 320,980   337,190 342,670

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 5.3) 26,930    (33,320)    (85,900) (22,900)

Budget Growth (section 5.4) - - - -

Increased Council Tax Income (section 6.1)
   

(161,000)
   

(158,570)
  

(168,270) (166,900)

Business Rates Retention (section 6.2)
           

(199,320)
    

(31,940)    (24,980) (24,430)

Changes in Collection Fund (section 6.3)
   

(674,680)
      

80,650      (1,550) (1,630)

Reduction in Government Grant (section 6.4)
     

592,740
     

549,490
    

316,710 74,600

Additional Fees and Charges (section 6.5)
   

(128,000)
   

(100,000)
  

(100,000) (100,000)

Unachieved Savings (2014/17 Efficiency Plan) (section 4.4) 431,200

Contribution to Reserves & Balances (section 7.3)
     

142,330
             

(286,400) 118,070 715,350
    
In Year Change in Position 310,000 581,000 430,000 809,680

Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 4.3) (310,000) (581,000) (430,000) (809,680)
    
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit - - - -
Cumulative (Surplus) / Deficit - - - -

9.1.2. ANNEX F shows the projected General Fund revenue position in detail.

9.2.   Housing Revenue Account Revenue Position

9.2.1. The medium term Housing Revenue Account revenue position is as set out in 
the table below.

Page 53



Summary Revenue Position 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £ £ £ £

Deficit b/f - (57,000) 243,840 496,680

Revenue consequence of Capital spend (section 4.2) (836,230) (42,480) 182,490 25,400

Inflation pressures (section 5.2) 131,400 123,970 129,230 125,490

Increased / reduced budget demand  (section 5.3) 384,520               -                -                -   

Increased / reduced budget growth  (section 5.4)                  -   -  - -

Increase in Other Operating Expenditure (section 
5.6) 119,590 6,770 2,540 1,660

Reduction in Rent and Other Charges  (section 6.5) 143,720 212,580 (61,420) 121,200
    
Budget (surplus)/deficit (57,000) 243,840 496,680 770,430

9.2.2. ANNEX G shows the projected Housing Revenue Account revenue position in 
detail.

10.   CONSULTATION

10.1. The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders 
to help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-
priorities. A variety of techniques have been used and the approaches have 
been iterative, building year on year on what has gone before. The Council 
already holds comprehensive information gathered about residents’ spending 
priorities. Much of this information was gathered in times of rising expenditure. 
The financial challenges for the Council are now very different. 

10.2. The consultation process for 2016/17 was undertaken via an online survey 
available on the Council’s website which summarised the financial challenges 
the Council faces and invited comment.  This survey will remain live until 31st 
March 2016, with any additional responses feeding into the 2018/19 budget 
setting process. 

10.3. It will be particularly important that the Council, as it makes difficult budgetary 
decisions, is able to evidence that it has considered the impact of its decisions 
on groups with ‘protected characteristics’.

10.4. Going forward, the Council will be developing a timetable of consultation, 
which will focus on specific emerging issues that will potentially have a 
significant impact on the Council’s finances over the medium term.

Page 54



ANNEX A

Proposed Capital Projections (2016/17 to 2020/21) – General Fund 

Capital Schemes 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total

 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Plan(AMP)       
Council Offices/Public 
Buildings   558,000  4,346,830  1,853,270  1,000,000           -    7,758,100 
Car Parks           -       120,000             -               -             -       120,000 
Infrastructure     22,300     286,950     181,360     130,000   455,000  1,075,610 
Leisure Centres           -       200,000       45,000             -             -       245,000 
 580,300 4,953,780 2,079,630 1,130,000   455,000 9,198,710
       
Growth Fund           -               -               -               -             -               -   
       
Affordable Housing Projects   241,960             -               -               -             -       241,960 
       
Housing Projects (RTB 1 for 1)           -       142,000     301,050     454,000   454,000  1,351,050 
       
Private Sector Housing Grants 463,140 414,700 389,000 389,000   389,000 2,044,840
       
ICT 318,000 50,000 50,000       50,000     41,520 509,520
Other Schemes       
Play Facilities   114,970       60,000             -               -             -       174,970 
Country Parks & Allotments   100,550             -               -               -             -       100,550 
Cemeteries           -               -               -               -             -               -   
Conservation/Heritage 54,650 45,000       45,000       45,000     45,000     234,650 
Market Town Regeneration 161,060     199,130             -               -             -       360,190 
 431,230 304,130       45,000       45,000     45,000 870,360
       
Total Programme 2,034,630 5,864,610 2,864,680 2,068,000 1,384,520 14,216,440
Funding of Programme       
External Contributions 569,180 460,700 389,000 389,000   389,000 2,196,880
Section 106 Planning 
Obligations   308,080       10,000             -               -             -   318,080
Capital Receipts           -       642,000     491,050  1,264,000   734,000 3,131,050
Capital  Reserves           -               -               -               -             -               -   
Borrowing 1,157,370 4,751,910 1,984,630 415,000   261,520 8,570,430
 2,034,630 5,864,610 2,864,680 2,068,000 1,384,520 14,216,440

Page 55



ANNEX B

Proposed Capital Projections (2016/17 to 2020/21) – Council Dwellings (HRA)

Capital Schemes 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total
 £ £ £ £ £ £
ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:      
Roofing & External Works 672,280 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 1,744,280
Kitchens Programme 233,670 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,633,670
Bathroom Programme 77,240 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 477,240
Central Heating Programme 1,112,180 1,230,000 1,230,000 1,230,000 1,230,000 6,032,180
Electrical Works 489,110 788,000 788,000 788,000 788,000 3,641,110
Health & Safety Works 45,320 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 545,320
Aids & Adaptations 435,670 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,835,670
HRA Shop Works 76,000             -               -               -               -   76,000
Sheltered Schemes Various Works 132,500             -               -               -               -   132,500
External & Structural Works 70,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 470,000
Other General Works           -   75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 300,000
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS       
Void External & Structural Works           - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 400,000
Void Electrical Works 35000 35,000 35000 35,000 35000 175,000
Void Kitchens 350,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,150,000
Void Bathrooms 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 300,000
OTHER CAPITAL WORKS:      
New Build 194,000 194,000
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000

 4,137,970 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 19,881,970
Funding:       
HRA Contribution 1,580,970 1,997,000 2,078,640 2,325,000 2,386,000 10,367,610
Major Repairs Reserve 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 7,750,000
Capital Receipts 509,000 389,000 307,360 61,000             -   1,266,360
Capital Investment Fund 498,000           -             -               -               -   498,000
 4,137,970 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 19,881,970

Page 56



 ANNEX C

Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy (April 2017)

Efficiency 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Major Procurements      
Waste Collection etc. 100 200 100 100 500
Leisure Centres - - - 400 400
Facilities Management - 75 - - 75
 100 275 100 500 975
Asset Management      
Asset Rationalisation - 30 200 - 230
 - 30 200 - 230
Growth      
Housing Growth - 40 40 40 120
Business Growth - - - 150 150
 - 40 40 190 270
Income Generation      
Fees & Charges - 120 - 120 240
Pavilion Gardens 40 60 70 - 170
Advertising / Sponsorship 50 10 - - 60
Enhanced Trading - - - - -
 90 190 70 120 470
Rationalisation      
Management Staffing 100 - - - 100
Channel Shift - - - - -
Parish Grants - 26 20 - 46
Service Rationalisation 20 20 - - 40
 120 46 20 - 186
      
TOTAL 310 581 430 810 2,131
      

Page 57



ANNEX D
Fees & Charges

 HPBC Proposed 
Fees & Charges Charging Policy Category

Service Area 2017/18 Full 
commercial

Fair 
charging

Cost 
recovery Subsidised Nominal Free Statutory Total

Income £11,721 £13,009 £1 £2,969 £0 £0 £31,196 £58,895Environmental 
Health Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
£2,173 £815 £0 -£1,663 £0 -£23,994 £8,261 -£14,407

Income  £2,000 £92,900    £70,908 £165,808
Licensing Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 -£820 £6,303    £50,546 £56,029

Income   £201,325   £0 £0 £201,325
Land Charges Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
  £8,955   £0 -£2,029 £6,925

Income       £15,585 £15,585Environmental 
Crime Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
      £6,338 £6,338

Income       £1,050 £1,050
Community Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
      -£175 -£175

Income  £27,550 £5,782     £33,332
Planning Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 £15,028 £3,708     £18,737

Income   £4,315     £4,315
Building Control

         

Income  £23,447      £23,447
Street Naming Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 £20,066      £20,066

Income   £37,029 £6,584  £0  £43,613
Waste Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
  £5,850 -£2,618  £0  £3,232

Income  £195,041  £0 £0 £0  £195,041
Cemeteries Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 £112,068  £0 £0 -£715  £111,353

Income  £6,425      £6,425
Street Scene Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 £2,572      £2,572

Income £5,770 £6,437  £350  £0  £12,557
Horticulture Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
£4,589 £5,132  -£28  -£2,883  £6,809

Income  £1,090,306    £0 £118,450 £1,208,756
Car Parks Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 £833,591    -£13,754 £0 £819,837

Income  £9,612      £9,612
Markets Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 -£2,488      -£2,488

Income  £180,500 £0     £180,500
Finance Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
 -£8,360 £0     -£8,360

Income     £1,600   £1,600
Elections Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs
    £1,310   £1,310

Income  £584,785      £584,785
Carelink Surplus/ (Subsidy) 

after Costs  £194,045      £194,045

Charging Policy Policy Objective

Full commercial Service is promoted to maximise revenue within an overall objective of generating a 
surplus from the service

Fair charging Service is promoted to maximise income but subject to defined policy constraints 
including commitments made to potential customers on an appropriate fee structure

Cost recovery Service generally available to all but without a subsidy

Subsidised Service is widely accessible, but users of the service should make some contribution 
from their own resources

Nominal Service to be fully available and a charge is made to discourage frivolous usage

Free Service fully available at no cost

Statutory Charges are set in line with legal obligations

Page 58



ANNEX E

Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Financial 
Implications

Robustness of financial 
assumptions within Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place with 
detailed business cases for each initiative – 
these will be strengthened in the service 
review process

Financial 
Implications

Additional financial pressures 
emerge – cost & income 

The strategy is kept under constant review 
and adjustments will be made where 
necessary

Service 
Continuity

Interruptions to key services or 
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate 
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan 
will be reviewed to account for the new 
approach proposed in the efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of 
Change

Management of corporate and 
local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual 
effects of aggregation; 
proposed changes to 
organisational structure, roles 
& responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be 
monitored through an effective performance 
management structure. Investment has 
been made in a new approach to 
Organisational Development.

People Risks Impact of cultural changes;
assessment of skills; 
recruitment & retention;
capacity issues

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Key Projects & 
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared 
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition where 
there are changes in service delivery
  

Page 59



Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Performance 
Management

Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition

Risk management processes are 
embedded

Reputation and 
Relationship 
Risks

Maintaining existing partner 
confidence

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Programme 
Delivery

Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in place 
to monitor plans. 

Executive Directors and Senior Managers 
own delivery of efficiencies. 

Executive Director (Transformation) 
appointed as programme director. 

Programme 
Delivery

A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are 
not achieved

Structured project management approach is 
in place for delivery including effective 
exception reporting

The strategy is kept under constant review

Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member working 
groups
  

Political Support Lack of Members support for 
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny arrangements

5.41

Page 60



ANNEX F

Proposed Revenue Projections (2017/18 to 2020/21) – General Fund

Budget Heading
2017/18 

Projection
2018/19 

Projection
2019/20 

Projection
2020/21 

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 12,154,030 12,540,360 12,801,580 13,057,010
Premises 3,817,240 3,965,520 4,034,910 4,110,020
Transport 694,690 741,660 750,340 759,140
Supplies & Services 9,957,330 10,254,400 10,379,030 10,510,350
Benefits          82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460
Borrowing 1,425,230 1,664,310 1,754,890 1,806,530
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320
Financing Costs 191,000 191,000 191,000 191,000
Unachieved Efficiencies (2014/17 Plan) 431,200 - - -
     
Total Expenditure 28,804,500 29,491,030 30,045,530 30,567,830
     
Fees and Charges / Other Income  (11,048,930)  (11,184,750)  (11,368,150) (11,493,550)
Interest Receipts        (64,720)        (63,690)       (115,540)      (174,260)
HRA Recharges    (6,663,740)   (6,787,710)    (6,916,940)   (7,042,430)
Capital Recharges       (231,240)      (231,240)       (231,240)      (231,240)
     
Net Expenditure 10,795,870 11,223,640 11,413,660 11,626,350
     
Council Tax    (5,431,520)   (5,590,090)    (5,758,360)   (5,925,260)
Revenue Support Grant       (580,100)      (245,760)                 - -
Business Rates Retention    (3,050,510)   (3,082,450)    (3,107,430)   (3,131,860)
New Homes Bonus       (725,060)      (509,910)       (438,960)      (364,360)
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves       (553,570)      (839,970)       (721,900)         (6,550)
Collection Fund       (145,110)        (64,460)        (66,010)       (67,640)
Total Financing  (10,485,870)  (10,332,640)  (10,092,660)   (9,495,670)
     
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)         310,000        891,000      1,321,000     2,130,680
     
New Efficiency Requirement (Cumulative)       (310,000)      (891,000)    (1,321,000)   (2,130,680)
     
Total Efficiency Requirement (Cumulative)       (310,000)      (891,000)    (1,321,000)   (2,130,680)
     
In-Year Deficit / (Surplus)                 - - - -
     

Page 61



ANNEX G

Proposed Revenue Projections (2017/18 to 2020/21) – Housing Revenue Account

Budget Heading
2017/18 

Projection
2018/19  

Projection
2019/20  

Projection
2020/21  

Projection
 £ £ £ £

Repairs & Maintenance 3,932,800 4,013,570 4,098,170 4,182,280
Supervision & Management 2,695,930 2,739,130 2,783,760 2,825,140
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges 115,320 115,320 115,320 115,320
Other Operating Expenditure 1,383,590 1,403,810 1,428,770 1,452,850
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,381,630 3,244,060 3,157,770 3,099,750
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 1,997,000 2,078,640 2,325,000 2,386,000
     
Total Expenditure 15,056,270 15,144,530 15,458,790 15,611,340
     
Dwellings Rents (14,495,540) (14,277,940) (14,334,290) (14,202,380)
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (617,730) (622,750) (627,820) (638,530)
     
Total Income (15,113,270) (14,900,690) (14,962,110) (14,840,910)
 
(Surplus) / Deficit for year (57,000) 243,840 496,680 770,430

Page 62



APPENDIX B

High Peak Borough Council

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

Business Plan

Financial Improvement Plan

2017/18 to 2020/21

Page 63



1 Background and Introduction 

1.1 In 2014, the Council made a commitment in its Corporate Plan to undertake a 
fundamental review of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan. 
Consequently the Executive agreed to adopt the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Chartered Institute of Housing 
(CIH) Voluntary Code for Self-Financed HRAs with a commitment to perform 
a full self-assessment against the code, the outcome of which will provide the 
agenda for the development of the HRA Business Plan. 

1.2 The development of the business plan is being undertaken through a sub-
committee established by the Corporate Select Committee. The work 
commenced in June 2016 and is expected to be complete by June 2017 when 
a new business plan will be agreed.

1.3 The business plan is being developed in the context of significant financial 
constraints. In 2015, government announced far reaching legislative and 
financial changes for the social housing sector, which will have significant 
implications for the Council and in particular a negative financial impact on the 
HRA. The expected financial impact of these changes, the most significant 
being the 1% rent reduction imposed over 4 financial years, is approximately 
£2.2 million per annum by 2020/21. 

1.4 The current MTFP (February 2017) summarises the latest financial forecasts 
for the HRA Business Plan and provides a detailed summary of the financial 
position from 2017/18 to 2020/21. At this stage the HRA still shows an overall 
deficit, as the review is not yet complete. The purpose of this document is to 
set out the areas where savings will be focused in order to provide for a 
balanced HRA. 

Page 64



2 Scope of the Review of the HRA Business Plan

2.1 Attached at Annex A is a document that summarises the scope of the review. 
The plan includes the six areas of the CIPFA / CIH Code of Practice: 

 Co-Regulation (extended to include the new relulatory requirement of the 
Housing & Planning Act 2016) 

 Risk Management
 Financial Viability
 Financial & Treasury Management
 Asset Management
 Communications and Governance

2.2 The scope has been extended to include the following categories to reflect the 
broader remit of the Council’s review: 

 Strategic Management / Housing Strategy
 Housing Advice
 Responsive Repairs
 Tenancy Management
 Tenancy Support (including sheltered accommodation and carelink)
 Leaseholders & RTBs
 Income
 Systems Review

2.3 In determining the relative priorities for the review, the following issues 
dictated a higher priority: 

 Financial pressure - the significance of the financial position meant that 
there needed to be focus on areas where reductions in financial provisions 
in the HRA could be made in order to ensure that the longer term financial 
position can be brought into balance

 Financing transactions – transactions such as the repayment of debt and 
that have a large impact on the financial position 

 Staffing structures and roles – there was a requirement to finalise the 
staffing structure

 Channel shift / process change – this was essential for improving the 
services to the customer and maximising efficiency 

Page 65



3 HRA Business Plan Sub-Committee

3.1 The sub-committee commenced its work in June 2016 with an early focus on 
the policy issues that needed to be considered during the review.   

3.2 The sub-committee review schedule and the progress made to date is 
summarised in the table below:

Meeting Date Agenda Items Actions
Stock Condition
Financing Transactions

June 2016

Housing & Planning Bill 
Implications

 Full stock condition survey underway, majority 
completed in 2017/18

 Option to vary annual debt repayment – further 
comparative work to be carried out

Capital Programme
Rent Policy

August 2016

Carelink / Other Support

 2017/18 capital programme reviewed with 
schemes included on a priority basis using 
internal information pending stock data

 Rent Policy currently being written with an 
implementation plan to start during 2017/18, 
which focuses on raising additional income 
streams 

Lettings
Voids

November 2016

Sheltered Accommodation

 Review of voids/tenancies underway to reduce 
loss of income and streamline processes

 Options analysis for the operation of sheltered 
accommodation to ensure service is affordable – 
stock condition information to be incorporated 
when available

Tenancy & Neighbourhood 
Management

January 2017

Repairs

 Emerging findings presented of Tenancy & 
Neighbourhood process and service review 
operational changes and enhancements to the 
allocations process.  Further 
review/consideration required for some aspects

 Emerging findings presented from the review of 
void and responsive repairs.  Business case for 
rationalisation of systems and integration in 
development.  Revised policy for repairs 
recharges and void repairs required.

Revised HRA Business 
Plan

March 2017

Tenant Engagement
Housing Need & SupplyApril/May 2017
Future Development

Page 66



4 Current Financial Projections

4.1 The financial projections for the next four financial years are summarised in 
the table below:

Budget Heading
2017/18 

Projection
2018/19 

Projection
2019/20 

Projection
2020/21 

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Repairs & Maintenance 3,932,800 4,013,570 4,098,170 4,182,280
Supervision & Management 2,695,930 2,739,130 2,783,760 2,825,140
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges 115,320 115,320 115,320 115,320
Other Operating Expenditure 1,383,590 1,403,810 1,428,770 1,452,850
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,381,630 3,244,060 3,157,770 3,099,750
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 1,997,000 2,078,640 2,325,000 2,386,000
     
Total Expenditure 15,056,270 15,144,530 15,458,790 15,611,340
     
Dwellings Rents (14,495,540) (14,277,940) (14,334,290) (14,202,380)
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (617,730) (622,750) (627,820) (638,530)
     
Total Income (15,113,270) (14,900,690) (14,962,110) (14,840,910)
 
(Surplus) / Deficit for year (57,000) 243,840 496,680 770,430

4.2 The above analysis shows an annual deficit position of some £770,000 by 
2020/21.

Page 67



5 Savings Requirements and Planned Focus

5.1 The original forecast annual deficit upon the announcement of the social 
sector rent reduction was some £2.2 million. The table in 4.1 above shows 
that this position has improved by some £1.4 million.

5.2 The £1.4 million reduction in the deficit is made up as follows:

5.3 Savings that will more than cover the remaining £770,000 deficit will be 
realised from the following areas: 

5.4 The final programme of financial savings will be developed upon completion 
of the sub-committee’s work in June 2017. 

Budget Heading Savings Annual 
Reduction

£
Rent Income Reduction to bad debt provision based on recent 

collection rates
80,000

Various Expenditure Headings Reduction to general inflation assumptions 60,000
Employee Costs Reduction to pensions contribution to deficit 

based on recent valuation
200,000

Capital Financing Reduction in interest costs in respect of the 
refinancing of debt at lower levels and the 
removal of loan premiums

320,000

Accommodation Reduction in accommodation charges following 
move from Furness Vale to Buxton Town Hall

40,000

Total Annual Saving before 
reduction in Capital Contribution 

700,000

HRA Contribution to Capital Annual reduction in capital contribution (to be 
confirmed upon completion of the stock 
condition survey

700,000

Total Annual Saving 1,400,000

Budget Heading Savings Potential
Annual 

Reduction
£

Capital Financing Reduction in voluntary repayment of debt 
(currently £1.2 million per annum) – to be 
benchmarked – maximum annual reduction

500,000

Rent Income Introduction of new rent policy 150,000
Repairs and Maintenance Reduction in repairs and maintenance 

expenditure due to implementation of an 
alternative service delivery model and / or 
improvements in productivity

250,000

ICT Costs Reduction in costs of ICT systems 50,000
Rent Income / Repairs & 
Maintenance Expenditure

Savings from improvements in voids turn around 
times

100,000

Various headings Disposal of surplus stock after consideration of 
net present value assessment following 
completion of stock condition survey

150,000

Total Annual Saving 1,200,000

Page 68



ANNEX A 
Housing Review Scope & Prioritisation

Category Sub category
Function/Process

Priority 
(1,2,3)

Services Systems/
Technology

Stream Lead 

Regulatory Standards 3
Governance Arrangements 3

Co-Regulation / 
Regulatory 
requirements Housing and Planning Act Implications 3

Housing (Lead)
Communities

Helen Core

Future Plans 3
Housing Need & Supply 3

Strategic 
Management / 
Housing Strategy Housing Policy 3

Housing (Lead)
Regeneration

Michelle Costello

Operational & Strategic Risk Register 3Risk Management
Risk Review 3

OD & Transformation Mary Walker

Rent Levels 2
Revenue Income & Expenditure 2
Interest Rates 2
Bad Debts 2
Capital Expenditure 1
Service Costs 2

Financial Viability

Service Level Agreements 3

Finance & 
Procurement (Lead)
Housing

Finance Systems Claire Hazeldene

CIPFA Code of Practice 3
Long term investment 1
HRA Borrowing Policy 1

Financial & 
Treasury 
Management

Depreciation Charge to HRA 1

Finance Claire Hazeldene

Lettings 2
Voids Process 2
Void Inspections 2
Tenancy Offers 2
Sign Ups 2
Creating Tenancies 2
Ceasing Tenancies 2

Allocations

Nominations 2

Housing (Lead)
Customer Services

Home Options
OHMS

Helen Core

P
age 69



Category Sub category
Function/Process

Priority 
(1,2,3)

Services Systems /
Technology

Stream Lead 

Homelessness 2
Home Options Verifications 2

Housing Advice

Maintaining waiting list 2

Housing (Lead)
Customer Services

Home Options
OHMS
Microsoft Access

Helen Core

Planned Maintenance 1
Cyclical Maintenance 1
Statutory Compliance Including Gas 2
Disabled Adaptations 2
Decent Homes Standard 2

Asset Management

Stock Condition 1

Assets (Lead)
Finance & Procurement
Housing

OHMS
Liberty System
Keystone

Paul Hare

Raising Jobs 2
Review repair obligations 2
Day To Day Repairs 2
Reporting Repairs 2
Scheduling Repairs 2
Inspections i.e. Damp 2
Channel Shift/Frontline function 2

Responsive Repairs

IT Systems link 2

Operational Services 
(Lead)
Assets
Customer Services

OHMS
Mobizmo
Cloud Dialogs
Opti time
Locator plus

Nicola Kemp

Consultation with Tenants, Members, 
Officers, Stakeholders

3

Performance Indicators 3
Benchmarking 3
Communication 3
Coregulation & Scrutiny 3
Tenant Publications 3

Communications 
and Governance

Website Information 2

Communities (Lead)
OD & Transformation
Housing

Website Mark Forrester

P
age 70



Category Sub category
Function/Process

Priority 
(1,2,3)

Services Systems/
Technology

Stream Lead 

Neighbourhood Teams & Functions 2
ASB 2
Variations & Successions of Tenancies 2
Neighbourhood Offices 2
Tenancy Support 2
Neighbour Nuisance 2
New Tenancy Visits 2
Tenancy Health Checks 2
Access arrangements i.e./e gas 2
Court attendance/papers 2
Eviction 2
Mutual Exchange 2
Tenancy Conversions 2

Tenancy 
Management

Garages and intro tenancies 2

Housing (Lead)
Customer Services
Communities

OHMS
E-Cins

Helen Core

Carelink 2
Older Persons Services 2
Cat 2s (sheltered schemes) 2

Tenancy Support

Tenancy Support 2

Housing
 

Mobizmo
Cloud Dialogs
OHMS

Sandra Webster

Service Charges 3Leaseholders & 
RTBs Legal/Lease enquiries 3

Asset (Lead)
Legal Services

OHMS Paul Hare

Recharges 3
Management fees 3

Income

Additional income opportunities 3

Finance & 
Procurement (Lead)
Housing

Claire Hazeldene

Interfaces 3
Software 3

Systems Review

Hardware 3

OD & Transformation OHMS
Mobizmo
Cloud Dialogs 
Opti time
Locator plus

Tanya Cooper

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Borough Council

Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy

2017/18 to 2020/21

Page 73



1 Background and Introduction

1.1 In October 2010, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced the outcome of 
the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR). The announcements were 
made in the context of the objective of removing the overall budget deficit. 
This announcement provided the starting point for a long period of significant 
public spending reductions. 

1.2 Since this point all of the government’s announcements on public spending 
have brought ongoing reductions in the levels of funding for local authorities. It 
is against this backdrop that the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plans 
(MTFPs) have been developed over the last six financial years (2011/12 to 
2016/17). 

1.3 In this time the Council has agreed and delivered two Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategies. These strategies have outlined the actions required 
to ensure that the budget deficits have been eliminated over the life of the 
MTFPs and that the Council can continue to provide excellent services in the 
context of its priorities. The Council agreed its previous Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy (2014/15 to 2016/17) in February 2014. This strategy 
provided for General Fund efficiency savings of £2.5 million. This financial 
target has almost been achieved which has allowed the Council to maintain 
standards of services to residents. 

1.4 The latest forecasts show that the need to deliver efficiency savings is on 
going. The latest MTFP shows a significant budget deficit in each of the next 
four financial years (2017/18 through to 2020/21). There is the need to 
develop a new a new Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy to provide a 
framework for removing these budget deficits.

1.5 This strategy sets out the Council’s proposed approach to balance the budget 
through reducing expenditure and increasing its income. The strategy details 
the approach to balancing the general fund budget deficit the approach 
developed for the Housing Revenue Account is detailed in the HRA Business 
Plan.    

2 The Council’s Previous Approach to Efficiency

2.1 The Council’s efficiency plans have historically been focussed around two 
priorities:

 Maintaining front line services; and
 Limiting Council Tax increases

2.2 Prior to 2011/12, when the large-scale public sector spending reductions were 
implemented, the Council’s efficiency savings were realised from the following 
common areas of activity:

 Procurement; 

Page 74



 Process Improvement;
 Workforce Planning;
 Value for Money; and
 Asset Management / Property Rationalisation

2.3 Since April 2008 these savings have been underpinned by a Transformation 
Programme, which was created following the formation of the strategic 
alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. This has seen services 
transformed jointly by the two councils. A unique method of transformation 
(AIMS – Alliance Improvement Method for Services) was developed to ensure 
that the shared arrangements were developed in an appropriate way. All of 
the Council’s services are managed jointly, an arrangement which has been in 
place since July 2009. Since this point the Council’s efficiency plans have 
continued to be developed jointly through the strategic alliance   

2.4 The Council has sustained its successful track record of delivering efficiency 
savings. The performance over the financial years prior to the existing 
Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy is summarised in the table below:

Financial SavingsYear
Target Actual
£’000 £’000

2005/06 280 430
2006/07 270 460
2007/08 280 400
2008/09 264 164
2009/10 662 669
2010/11 982 740
2011/12 1,202 759
2012/13 1,196 1,266
2013/14 1,056 866

Total 6,192 5,754

3 Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17  

3.1 The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by the 
Council in April 2014. In establishing this plan, importance was placed on 
ensuring the programme of savings was well focussed and recognised the 
capacity constraints on the organisation. Therefore, external challenge work 
was commissioned to assist in identifying areas that had the greatest potential 
for further savings. 

3.2 A number of principles were developed in order to ensure that the plans are 
focussed in the right areas and are deliverable. These were:

 Service reviews will be completed on a structured basis during the early 
years;

 Individual service structures would be properly combined across the 
Strategic Alliance;

Page 75



 There would be continued protection of front-line services;
 Non-priorities would be identified in discretionary services and targeted for 

savings if possible;
 Mandatory services would be developed to ensure that they are efficient 

when compared with the best local authorities;
 Transactional services would be delivered around the needs of customers 

and development of “channel shift”;
 There would be a strong focus on corporate efficiencies e.g. procurement, 

asset management to minimise the impact on staffing levels 

3.3 After taking into account these principles the Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy was focussed upon five areas:

Enhancing Income and Improving Trading - increasing the income 
generated from Council Services including identifying and generating new 
income streams, improving the effectiveness of services that compete with 
other service providers, and improving the yield from fees and charges 
through increased activity.

Extending Shared Services – building on the existing alliance with 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council along with identifying new partners 

Corporate Efficiency Projects - targeting savings that do not directly impact 
on front line service provision including implementation of the procurement 
strategy, further development of the Asset Management Plan etc.

Service Reviews – a structured and comprehensive review of all of the 
Council’s services

Innovation and Growth - creation of a Development Fund on an “invest to 
save” basis

3.4 The strategy identified a programme of £2.5 million in general fund savings to 
be made over the period 2014/15 – 2016/17. The financial savings agreed in 
the strategy are summarised in the table below:

Efficiency Strategy 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 TOTAL
 £ £ £ £
Enhancing Income & Improving Trading 93,560 141,530 120,910 356,000
Extending Shared Services 25,000 50,000 50,000 125,000
Corporate Efficiency Projects 510,000 540,000 334,000 1,384,000
Service Reviews 150,000 230,000 105,000 485,000
Innovation & Growth 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000

General Fund Efficiency Plan 828,560 1,011,530 659,910 2,500,000

3.5 In the main the delivery of the strategy has progressed well. The key 
achievements include:

Page 76



 
 A comprehensive review of all services was completed with a number 

significant service improvements implemented whilst exceeding the overall 
savings targets;

 The Council’s Procurement Strategy has been implemented with savings 
exceeding the initial targets; and

 Services have been more fully aligned across the strategic alliance which 
has allowed for “back-office” efficiencies such as reduced ICT system 
costs; administrative and support costs and further reductions in 
management overheads.  

3.6 The estimated position at the end of March shows that there will be a shortfall 
in the required efficiency savings of £431,200. This is summarised in the table 
below:

Financial SavingsYear
Target Actual

£ £
2014/15 828,560 482,980
2015/16 1,011,530 429,260
2016/17 659,910 1,156,560

Total 2,500,000 2,068,800

3.6 The shortfall broadly relate to three areas of activity:

 Asset management – the Council is only part way through the 
fundamental review of its assets – this review is expected to be completed 
in the early part of 2017/18 when the savings are expected to be identified;

 Growth fund – the Council decided not to pursue this project in 2015; and
 Income generation – a number of potential initiatives have been identified 

but have long lead-in times.

3.7 This shortfall will need to be added to the identified MTFP deficits to establish 
the new efficiency savings requirements.

4 The New Savings Requirements

4.1 Since December 2016 detailed budget plans have been developed for the 
2017/18 financial year and a revision to the MTFP has been made in light of 
these. The efficiency savings requirement can be summarised as follows:  

Page 77



Requirement Financial Saving 
Required

£
Shortfall from previous strategy 431,200

MTFP deficits:

2017/18 425,820
2018/19 867,400
2019/20 311,930
2020/21 94,330

Total 2,130,680

5 Strategic Focus of New Plan

5.1 The new Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy will have the effect of both 
reducing expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing i.e. 
not reliant on direct government funding such as revenue support grant. 

5.2 The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to 
enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 

5.3 It is intended that there will be five areas of focus:

Major Procurements
There is the opportunity to focus attention on a number of large service 
functions which are currently provided by an external contractor / supplier. A 
number of significant contracts are coming to an end. This will also allow a 
fundamental review of these services with proper consideration of the current 
financial constraints. The contract commitments have sometimes restricted 
the opportunity to align services across the alliance with Staffordshire 
Moorlands. The development of new arrangements for these services will 
allow the Council to benefit through the economies of scale through working 
through the alliance and potentially other partners. The individual projects will 
be as follows: 

• Waste collection & environmental services - Development of “Teckal” 
company for delivery of waste collection, street cleansing, grounds 
maintenance and fleet management in conjunction with Ansa (wholly 
owned company of Cheshire East Council)

• Leisure management - Transformed service provision with a new 
operating model and a reduced subsidy. Involves three review streams– 
strategic priorities; asset fitness for purpose; and the operating model.

• Facilities Management - New arrangements upon expiry of existing 
arrangement with Derbyshire County Council 

Page 78



Asset Management
There will be a continuation of the existing priority of rationalising the 
Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order to allow for the 
necessary capital investment.

 Asset Management Plan - Assessment of property condition and review 
of priorities with the objective of rationalisation and implementation of a 
prioritised investment plan

Growth
Development of a clear focus upon housing and economic growth based upon 
the clearly established Local Plan. The individual projects will be as follows: 

 Housing Growth - This will include the necessity to develop projects to 
ensure that the targets for housing development included in the planning 
framework are achieved. The Council will utilise its land holdings to 
support the market provision of housing.

 Business Growth - There will be a continuation of the approach used by 
the Council to secure inward investment. This will include working with 
funding partners such as the Local Enterprise Partnership and other local 
partners to secure funding to support new schemes.

Income Generation
There will be a focus on increasing the yield from existing sources of income. 
This will include a regular strategic review of fees and charges. There will also 
be a drive towards identifying new sources of income. The individual projects 
will be as follows: 

 Pavilion Gardens – including an initial savings programme to offset 
Octagon development costs and the market testing of the trading 
operation

 Enhanced Trading – initial focus on improving the financial yield from 
existing services such trade waste but will involve the investigation of the 
potential to trade other services

 Advertising / Sponsorship – generate money from sponsorship of assets 
such as car parks, boundary signs, open spaces and buildings.

 Fees & Charges - Increases in levels in line with annual review of 
subsidies and the consideration of new fees and charges

Rationalisation
There will be a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas of 
spend. The individual projects will be as follows: 

• Management Arrangements – review of management structure in line 
with the move towards new service delivery models

• Channel Shift – continuing rollout of the existing programme  
• Parish Grants - review of concurrent function and council tax support 

grant levels
• Rationalise Non-Statutory Services - investigate on an opportunistic 

basis

Page 79



5.4 The deliverables are set out in more detail in Annex A.

5.5 The level of financial savings anticipated from the strategy is detailed in the 
table below:

Efficiency 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Major Procurements      
Waste Collection etc. 100 200 100 100 500
Leisure Centres - - - 400 400
Facilities Management - 75 - - 75
 100 275 100 500 975
Asset Management      
Asset Rationalisation - 30 200 - 230
 - 30 200 - 230
Growth      
Housing Growth - 40 40 40 120
Business Growth - - - 150 150
 - 40 40 190 270
Income Generation      
Fees & Charges - 120 - 120 240
Pavilion Gardens 40 60 70 - 170
Advertising / Sponsorship 50 10 - - 60
Enhanced Trading - - - - -
 90 190 70 120 470
Rationalisation      
Management Staffing 100 - - - 100
Channel Shift - - - - -
Parish Grants - 26 20 - 46
Service Rationalisation 20 20 - - 40
 120 46 20 - 186
      
TOTAL 310 581 430 810 2,131
      

6 Risks

6.1 The successful delivery of the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is 
subject to a number of risks. There are a number of specific risks associated 
with the individual projects and these are identified in Annex A. There are 
however a number of key risks that are inherent throughout the programme. 
These are identified below along with the proposed mitigating actions:

Page 80



Risk category Risk Mitigation and Controls
Financial Implications Robustness of financial assumptions 

within the Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management 
arrangements with detailed business 
cases for each initiative

Financial Implications Additional financial pressures emerge The strategy is kept under constant 
review and adjustments are made 
where necessary

Management of 
Change

Management of corporate and local, 
cultural change; behavioural risks; 
residual effects of aggregation

Progress with achievement of aims 
should be monitored with an effective 
performance management structure

Performance 
Management

Adequacy of framework to monitor 
progress

Risk management processes need to 
be aligned and understood

Programme Delivery Delays in implementation of efficiency 
savings

Effective governance arrangements in 
place to monitor plans. 

Project Executives to own delivery of 
efficiencies. 

Establishment of a Transformation 
Board with Executive Director 
(Transformation) as programme 
director. Board meets monthly to react 
to a changing landscape and develop 
additional initiatives if necessary.

Use of surplus reserves to mitigate for 
shortfalls / delays

Programme Delivery A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are not 
achieved

Structured project management 
approach for delivery including 
effective exception reporting

The strategy is kept under constant 
review

Fundamental review in October 2017 
in line with budget planning processing

Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member 
working groups
  

Reputation and 
Relationship Risks

Maintaining existing partner confidence Communication plan for delivery of 
transformation programme needs to be 
developed and implemented

Political Support Lack of Members support for Plan. Regular reporting and member 
briefings including effective scrutiny 
arrangements

Page 81



7 Governance

7.1 The delivery of the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy and will be 
managed and monitored by a Transformation Board. The Transformation 
Board is made up of:

 Executive Director (Transformation) – Programme Director & Chair 
 Executive Director (People)
 Executive Director (Place)
 Head of Operational Services
 Head of Customer Services
 OD & Transformation Manager
 Finance & Procurement Manager
 Assets Manager
 Regeneration Manager
 Programme Manager / Support

7.2 The board will provide regular reports on progress with the delivery of the 
strategy to the Alliance Management Team.

7.3 The progress made with the delivery against each Council’s efficiency targets 
will be included in the quarterly financial updates provided to the Corporate 
Select Committee and the Executive.

8 Managing the in-year Shortfalls

8.1 It is recognised that as the spending of the Council has declined over the 
years it is becoming increasingly difficult to implement efficiency saving 
programmes. The financial savings that are to be achieved from the 
programme are going to have longer lead-in times which will result in 
shortfalls against the requirements in the early years of the strategy.

8.2 The table below sets out the anticipated position: 

Efficiency 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Deficit from previous strategy 431 - - -
Deficit in MTFP 426 867 312 95
Total in-year savings requirement 857 867 312 95

Anticipated in-year savings 310 581 430 810
     
Amount required to fund deficit 547 833 715 -

Page 82



8.3 For a number of years the Council has accrued additional reserves through 
under spending on its service delivery or from windfall income. Reserves are 
now at a level that is significantly higher than the required contingency level of 
£1.3 million. It is proposed that the surplus reserves above this level will be 
applied to manage the shortfalls.

8.4 The expected reserves position will be as follows:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Reserves at start of year 2,500 2,173 1,340 1,425
Re-designation of Earmarked Reserves* 220 - 800 -
Total General Reserves at start of year 2,720 2,173 2,140 1,425

Reserves required to meet shortfall 547 833 715 -
     
General Reserves at end of year 2,173 1,340 1,425 1,425

* Re-designation of reserves relates to Pension Liability (March 2017) – due to completion of triennial review; Buxton 
Crescent (March 2019) – reduction of reserve following completion of construction phase of project. 

Page 83



Major Procurements

Projected SavingsEfficiency
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

Timescales Risks / Constraints Opportunities

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Waste / Street Cleansing / 
Grounds Maintenance

100 200 100 100 500  Preferred option (joint venture 
partnership) - completed

 Decision on way forward - February 
2017

 Savings to be accrued from the end 
of the current waste collection 
contract - August 2017

 Integration with partners’ services 
will develop over time – on-going

 Teckal compliance
 Workforce issues i.e. pensions, 

equal pay
 Standardisation of service provision 

e.g. waste collection methodology
 Relationships with disposal 

authorities
 Fleet procurement arrangements
 Governance arrangements
 Impact on support services

 Wider trading opportunities could 
further reduce cost

 Waste collection methodology 
changes may be positive for 
residents

Leisure Centres - - - 400 400  Property condition surveys -
completed

 Report commissioned to set out 
current service provision and 
delivery options  - report to 
members March 2017

 Work commenced to establish 
required service focus – completion 
expected June 2017

 Way forward to be determined -
March 2018

 New operating model may take 
some time to determine

 Expiry of existing contract – 
February 2019

 Fundamental change of approach 
is required – potential cessation of 
some services

 Provision of service a zero subsidy 
may be difficult to achieve 

 Workforce issues

 Could be opportunities for income 
generation beyond the level of 
savings

Facilities - 75 - - 75  Initial options appraisal (identifying 
DCC and Penda as potential 
options) – already considered

 Further options appraisal of the two 
options – March 2017

 Way forward agreed – December 
2017

 New arrangements to commence – 
April 2018

 Legalities e.g. delegation of 
functions

 Existing contract extension 
requirement

 Specification complexities
 Current asset condition may add 

risk premium to outsourced 
arrangement

 Arrangement could support 
regeneration and capital projects

 100 275 100 500 975

P
age 84



Asset Management

Projected SavingsEfficiency
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

Timescales Risks / Constraints Opportunities

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Asset Rationalisation - 30 200 - 230  Property condition surveys 

including estimated investment 
costs (30-yr) – already complete

 Asset management working group 
considering and confirming 
priorities – expected completion 
April 2017

 Rationalisation plan agreed – 
September 2017

 Implementation of plan – March 
2019 

 Obligations associated with 
heritage buildings

 Aligning with partners’ property 
plans

 Backlog investment requirements 
 Timescales
 Success / stability of third party 

trusts

 Additional savings from fully 
integrated public estate

 - 30 200 - 230

P
age 85



Growth

Projected SavingsEfficiency
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

Timescales Risks / Constraints Opportunities

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Housing Growth - 40 40 40 120  Local Plan – agreed and adopted

 Accelerated housing development 
approach agreed – June 2017

 Housing market conditions
 Development feasibility
 Deadweight increases
 Value of land / capital receipts
 Empty property growth impacting 

on yield

 Potential to generate significantly 
higher income levels if local plan 
development commitments are met

Business Growth - - - 150 150  Chapel employment approach 
agreed – April 2017

 Reform of business rates retention 
system known  – December 2019

 Derbyshire Pool arrangements – 
Combined Authority may impact

 Appeals impacting on yield
 Revaluation
 Potential impact of retention 

reforms

 Additional inward investment could 
have significant benefit

 - 40 40 190 270

P
age 86



 Income Generation
     

Projected SavingsEfficiency
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

Timescales Risks / Constraints Opportunities

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fees & Charges - 120 - 120 240  Annual review – February each 

year
 Car parking review post on-street 

changes – December 2017

 Elasticity of demand
 Reductions in demand levels
 Competition from private sector

 Ability to levy higher fees in new 
planning regime

Pavilion Gardens 40 60 70 - 170  New approach to trading – already 
agreed

 Outcome from implementation of 
cost rationalisation measures – 
reviewed – September 2017

 Market testing exercise completed 
– September 2017 

 Implementation of new operating 
model – March 2018

 Further reductions to income levels
 Impact of refurbishment works
 Additional capital costs
 Other partners

 Improvements in trading could 
result in self-financed facility 

Advertising / Sponsorship 50 10 - - 60  Investigate feasibility – June 2017  Market conditions
 Potential conflicts of interest

 Potential new income stream 

Enhanced Trading - - - - -  Investigate feasibility – March 2018  Trade Waste - Role of joint venture
 Demand / market conditions

 Potential new income stream 

 90 190 70 120 470

P
age 87



Rationalisation

Projected SavingsEfficiency
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

Timescales Risks / Constraints Opportunities

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Management Staffing 100 - - - 100  Temporary Heads of Service 

arrangements – already agreed
 Management structure review 

following full implementation of joint 
venture arrangements for waste, 
street cleansing & grounds 
maintenance – September 2018 

 Workforce issues

Channel Shift - - - - -  Approach already agreed and 
currently being implemented

 Review of progress – March 2018

 Technology issues / system 
constraints

 Take-up by residents
 Process review 

 Potential for further efficiency 
savings as forecasts are 
pessimistic 

Parish Grants - 26 20 - 46  Review of existing model – July 
2017

 Impact on individual parish councils

Service Rationalisation 20 20 - - 40  Identify potential areas for focus – 
on-going

 Impact on residents

 120 46 20 - 186

P
age 88



Environmental Health Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% increase

Animal Boarding Establishments including Day 
Care and Home/Over Night Licence (initial or 
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 
charged in addition to these fees based on full 
cost recovery:

1-10 animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £115.00 £120.00 4.35%

11+ animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £175.00 £185.00 5.71%

25 Plus Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £250.00

Animal boarding (Crèche Facility) - 
Commercial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging  £250.00

Approved Food Premises Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00
Camping Site Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00
Caravan & Camping Site Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Park Homes: New application Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £335.00 £340.00 1.49%

Fee per 
additional pitch Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £9.00 £9.50 5.56%

Licence 
amendment Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £165.00 £170.00 3.03%

Transfer of 
Licence Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £105.00 £110.00 4.76%

Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £170.00 £175.00 2.94%
Deposit of site 

rules Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £85.00 £90.00 5.88%

Contaminated Land Enquiry: First hour VAT included Fair charging £95.00 £95.00 0.00%
Each 

subsequent 
hour or part 

thereof

VAT included Fair charging £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

Cooling Tower Notification Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00
Dangerous Wild Animals Licence (initial or 
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 
charged in addition to these fees based on full 
cost recovery:

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £275.00 £280.00 1.82%

Dog Breeding Establishments Licence (initial 
or renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 
charged in addition to these fees based on full 
cost recovery:

1-4 dogs Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £125.00 £130.00 4.00%

5+ dogs Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £230.00 £235.00 2.17%

10 Plus Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £300.00

Environmental Permit Fees Set by 
DEFRA Charge not VAT-able Statutory Fees set by 

DEFRA
Fees set by 

DEFRA
Copy of Register of Authorisations  (Permits): 
under EIR Copying Charge Plus officer time 
charged for photocopying per hour or part 
thereof.

per side of A4 
(or equivalent 

electronic 
format)

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £0.10 £0.12 20.00%

Officer Time (EIR) Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £25.00

Export Health Certificate VAT included Fair charging £125.00 £125.00 0.00%

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly VAT included Fair charging £1,500.00

Export Health Certificate Brewery & Artisan 
Products VAT included Fair charging £50.00

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly 
Brewery & Artisan Products VAT included Fair charging £500.00

Export Health Certificate (Samples/ Low Value 
goods up to £500 per consignment) VAT included Fair charging £65.00 £50.00 -23.08%

Page 89



Environmental Health Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% increase

Amendment to Health Certificate VAT included Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Amendment to Health Certificate 
(Artisan/Brewery Products) VAT included Fair charging £10.00

Food Hygiene/Health & Safety Bespoke 
Training Course:

Price On 
Request Charge not VAT-able Fair charging

Copy of Food Register (Full Copy of database) Full Register Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

One Copy of Any Entry in the Register Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

List of Food Premises In a Particular Category Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Food Premises Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00
Food Hygiene Rating Scheme Re-Rate within 
3 Months of Inspection Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £150.00

House in Multiple Occupation Licence: First application Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £385.00 £385.00 0.00%

House in Multiple Occupation Licence:

Subsequent 
application/ 
renewal by 

same landlord

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £310.00 £310.00 0.00%

Change of 
ownership 
application

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £310.00 £310.00 0.00%

Immigration Housing Certificate per application VAT included Fair charging £80.00 £85.00 6.25%

Improvement Notice Fee VAT included Statutory £200.00
Hypnotism Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Land Drainage/Culvert Maintenance for 
Private Individuals or Companies 

Price on 
Application 

Officer Hourly 
Rate 

VAT included Fair charging £45.00

Pet Shop Licence (initial or renewal, excluding 
vet fees). Vets fees are charged in addition to 
these fees based on full cost recovery:

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £100.00 £150.00 50.00%

Pleasure Boats & Pleasure Vessels to be let 
for hire or used for carrying passengers for 
hire (Exemption for such boats on any inland 
waterway owned or managed by the British 
Waterways Board)

VAT included Fair charging £85.00 £95.00 11.76%

Riding Establishments Licence (initial or 
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 
charged in addition to these fees based on full 
cost recovery:

1-10 animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £110.00 £120.00 9.09%

11-20 animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £130.00 £140.00 7.69%

21+ animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £165.00 £175.00 6.06%

Sex Shop & Cinema Licence (including Sexual 
Entertainment Venues of any type):

New 
Application Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £2,800.00 £3,000.00 7.14%

Renewal Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £1,500.00 £1,600.00 6.67%

Transfer Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £600.00 £650.00 8.33%

Special Treatments Registration (Premises) 
including: Massage; Manicure; Other Special 
Treatments e.g. Vapour, Sauna or Other Bath 
Treatments

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Statement of Officer's Opinion: first hour of 
request VAT included Full commercial £95.00 £95.00 0.00%

Page 90



Environmental Health Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% increase

subsequent 
hour or part 

thereof
VAT included Full commercial £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

Home/Mobile Tattooing, Body Piercing, 
Acupuncture Including 1 person 

Premises/ 
Person Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £145.00 £150.00 3.45%

Tattooing, Body Piercing, Acupuncture, 
Electrolysis Licence (initial or renewal): Premises Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £130.00 £135.00 3.85%

Person Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £80.00 £85.00 6.25%

Guest Tattooist Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00

Ear Piercing Only Premises Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00

Ear Piercing Only Person Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £25.00

Amendment 
(e.g. change of 

address)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Zoo Licence (excluding vet fees. Vets fees are 
charged in addition to these fees based on full 
cost recovery):

First (4 year 
licence) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £550.00 £600.00 9.09%

Second & 
subsequent (6 
year licence)

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £550.00 £600.00 9.09%

Zoo Licence: Interim 
periodical Charge not VAT-able Statutory

Vet fees as 
applicable 

only

Vet fees as 
applicable 

only

Renewal 
periodical Charge not VAT-able Statutory

Vet fees as 
applicable 

only

Vet fees as 
applicable 

only

Informal 
inspections Charge not VAT-able Statutory

Vet fees as 
applicable 

only

Vet fees as 
applicable 

only

Pest Control

Contract Work (Commercial) Per hour Per 
officer VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Treatments in addition to contract agreement: Single 
treatment VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

up to 3 
treatments VAT included Full commercial £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

up to 5 
treatments VAT included Full commercial £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Non Contract Work (Commercial) Per hour, Per 
officer VAT included Full commercial £110.00 £125.00 13.64%

Rodents (Rats) (Domestic) - up to three visits 
to treat: VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Wasps Nest (Domestic Treatment) Full charge VAT included Full commercial £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £27.50 £27.50 0.00%

Rodents (Mice) (Domestic) - up to three visits 
to treat: VAT included Full commercial £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Page 91



Environmental Health Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% increase

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £27.50 £27.50 0.00%

Bed Bugs 2 Bed House: VAT included Full commercial £65.00 £105.00 61.54%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £32.50 £52.50 61.54%

Bed Bugs 3 Bed House: VAT included Full commercial £75.00 £160.00 113.33%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £37.50 £80.00 113.33%

Bed Bug 4 Bed House: VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £210.00 110.00%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £50.00 £105.00 110.00%

Bed Bugs >4 Bed: Price on 
Application VAT included Full commercial

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised

Fleas 2 Bed House: VAT included Full commercial £65.00 £75.00 15.38%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £32.50 £37.50 15.38%

Fleas 3 Bed House: VAT included Full commercial £70.00 £95.00 35.71%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £35.00 £47.50 35.71%

Fleas 4 Bed House: VAT included Full commercial £75.00 £115.00 53.33%

Page 92



Environmental Health Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% increase

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £37.50 £57.50 53.33%

Fleas > 4 Bed House: Price on 
Application VAT included Full commercial

Ants VAT included Full commercial £70.00

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £35.00

Other insect pests (domestic): VAT included Full commercial £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

Recipients of 
Means Tested 

Benefits 
(Housing 
Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & 
Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Moles (Commercial Only) Price on 
Application VAT included Full commercial

Private Water Supply Charges

Risk Assessment:

Price on 
Application upto 
a maximum of 

£500

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £285.00 £300.00 5.26%

Per hour on site  
thereafter of 
part thereof

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £40.00 £50.00 25.00%

Sampling

Officer Time 
per Sample 
Maximum 
£100.00

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £55.00 £60.00 9.09%

Investigation

Per 
investigation 

Maximum 
Charge 
£100.00

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £90.00 12.50%

Granting an Authorisation
Maximum 
Charge 
£100.00

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £40.00 £50.00 25.00%

Analysing a sample under regulation 10 Maximum 
Charge £25.00 Charge not VAT-able Statutory Laboratory 

Charge
Laboratory 

Charge

Analysing a check monitoring sample
Maximum 
Charge 
£100.00

Charge not VAT-able Statutory Laboratory 
Charge

Laboratory 
Charge

Analysing an audit monitoring sample
Maximum 
Charge 
£500.00

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Laboratory 
Charge

Laboratory 
Charge

Page 93



Environmental Health Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% increase

Copy of Private Water Supplies Register: 
Copying Charge Plus officer time charged for 
photocopying per hour or part thereof.

per side of A4 
(or equivalent 

electronic 
format)

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £0.10 £0.15 50.00%

Request from Search Company for Data 
relating to Private Water Supplies in a 
particular area. 

Hourly Rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00

Stray Dogs: Statutory fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%
Admin fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Kennel fee per 
day or part 

thereof

Fee set by 
kennel 
owners

Fee set by 
kennel 
owners

Dogs already taken to Manchester & District 
Home for Lost Dogs

Additional 
fees charged 

by dogs' 
home

Additional 
fees charged 

by dogs' 
home

Copying

Copy of Register of Authorisations  (Permits; 
Private Water Supplies Register; Supply of 
Meteorological Data to: Universities & 
Commercial Organisations, Buxton Museum, 
Buxton TIC, Individuals): Copying Charge Plus 
officer time charged for photocopying per hour 
or part thereof.

per side of A4 
(or equivalent 

electronic 
format)

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £0.10 £0.12 20.00%

Full Copies of Authorisations, Permits; 
Registers, spreadsheets etc.  for commercial 
gain 

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Price on 
Application

Price on 
Application

Page 94



Licensing Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Temporary Event Notice Charge not VAT-able Statutory £21.00 £21.00 0.00%

Personal Alcohol Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £37.00 £37.00 0.00%

Premises Licence Annual: Band A Charge not VAT-able Statutory £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

Band B Charge not VAT-able Statutory £180.00 £180.00 0.00%

Band C Charge not VAT-able Statutory £295.00 £295.00 0.00%

Band D Charge not VAT-able Statutory £320.00 £320.00 0.00%

Band E Charge not VAT-able Statutory £350.00 £350.00 0.00%

Vary DPS Charge not VAT-able Statutory £23.00 £23.00 0.00%

Minor Variation Charge not VAT-able Statutory £89.00 £89.00 0.00%

Street Collection Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Street Trading Consent (speed limit less than 
40mph) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £3,650.00 £3,650.00 0.00%

Street Trading Consent (hot food - speed limit 
less than 40mph) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £5,900.00 £5,900.00 0.00%

Street Trading Consent (speed limit 40mph or 
more) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £2,300.00 £2,300.00 0.00%

Trampoline & Mechanical Rides Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,950.00 £1,950.00 0.00%

Ice cream sales Charge not VAT-able Statutory £600.00 £600.00 0.00%

Annual (weekends) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,250.00 £1,250.00 0.00%

30 day consent Charge not VAT-able Statutory £750.00 £750.00 0.00%

Daily consent Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Scrap Metal Dealers

Collectors Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £245.00 £245.00 0.00%

Site Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £365.00 £365.00 0.00%

Variation to licence: Change of Name or 
Address Charge not VAT-able Statutory £32.00 £32.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Taxi Licences - Hackney Carriage & Private 
Hire Vehicles

Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licence (new & 
renewal) Including Brackets & Plates/Decals Yearly Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £180.00

Page 95



Licensing Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Replacement Plate/Badge/Decals
Per 

Plate/Badge/De
cal

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £10.00

Change of Vehicle Including Plate/Card Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £50.00

New Licensed Driver/Renewal: Including 
Knowledge Test and Resit, Safeguarding 
Training & Driver Badge 

Annual Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £75.00

3 years Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £150.00

Private Hire Operators Licence 1 Year Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £105.00

Private Hire Operators Licence 5 years Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £315.00

DBS Check (Fees Set by Disclosure & Barring 
Service) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £44.00

DBS Admin Fee (Fee to be paid to Authority 
or identity check company) VAT included Fair charging  £17.00

DVLA Check (Fee to be paid to Authority or 
identity check company) VAT included Fair charging £7.00

Document Identification Check (Fee set by 
Crown Post Office VAT included Statutory £8.75

Re-Sit Knowledge Test Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery  £20.00

Gambling Act

Adult Gaming Centre - Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £850.00 £850.00 0.00%

New application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,500.00 £1,500.00 0.00%

Application to vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £900.00 0.00%

Application to transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application for re-instatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application for provisional statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,500.00 £1,500.00 0.00%

Application in respect of provisional statement 
holder Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Betting Premises - Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £600.00 £600.00 0.00%

New application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,650.00 £1,650.00 0.00%

Application to vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,150.00 £1,150.00 0.00%

Application to transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application for re-instatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application for provisional statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,700.00 £1,700.00 0.00%

Application in respect of provisional statement 
holder Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Page 96



Licensing Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Bingo - Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £850.00 £850.00 0.00%

New application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,850.00 £1,850.00 0.00%

Application to vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,200.00 £1,200.00 0.00%

Application to transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application for re-instatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application for provisional statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,850.00 £1,850.00 0.00%

Application in respect of provisional statement 
holder Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Family Entertainment centre - Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £800.00 £800.00 0.00%

New application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,400.00 £1,400.00 0.00%

Application to vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £900.00 0.00%

Application to transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £875.00 £875.00 0.00%

Application for re-instatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £875.00 £875.00 0.00%

Application for provisional statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,400.00 £1,400.00 0.00%

Application in respect of provisional statement 
holder Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £900.00 0.00%

Race tracks - Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £850.00 £850.00 0.00%

New application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,600.00 £1,600.00 0.00%

Application to vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,000.00 0.00%

Application to transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £875.00 £875.00 0.00%

Application for re-instatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £875.00 £875.00 0.00%

Application for provisional statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,600.00 £1,600.00 0.00%

Application in respect of provisional statement 
holder Charge not VAT-able Statutory £875.00 £875.00 0.00%

Small Society Lotteries Application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Small Society Lotteries Annual renewal fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Page 97



Land Charges Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

LLC1 Residential Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

LLC1 Additional Parcels Residential Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Con 29R
Residential 
(DCC fee 
included)

VAT included Cost recovery £83.00 £73.20 -11.81%

Con 29R Additional Parcels Residential VAT included Cost recovery £18.00 £18.00 0.00%

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part 
Con 29 (Inc Vat) Residential VAT included as 

applicable Cost recovery £108.00 £98.20 -9.07%

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part 
Con 29 (Inc Vat) Residential VAT included as 

applicable Cost recovery £28.00 £28.00 0.00%

Con 29O - Each Residential VAT included Cost recovery £9.00 £9.00 0.00%

Each Additional Enquiry Residential VAT included Cost recovery £18.00 £18.00 0.00%

Personal Search of the Land Charges 
Register Residential Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

A search on each individual part of the 
Local Land Charges Register:

Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12 Residential - 
each Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11 Residential - 
each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Parts 4 & 10 Residential - 
each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £4.00 £4.00 0.00%

Part 3 Residential - 
each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

LLC1 Commercial Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

LLC1 Additional Parcels Commercial Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Con 29R
Commercial 

(DCC fee 
included)

VAT included Cost recovery £138.00 £118.20 -14.35%

Con 29R Additional Parcels Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £35.00 £36.00 2.86%

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part 
Con29 (Inc Vat) Commercial VAT included as 

applicable Cost recovery £173.00 £153.20 -11.45%

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part 
Con29 (Inc Vat) Commercial VAT included as 

applicable Cost recovery £60.00 £56.00 -6.67%

Con 29O - Each Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £9.00 £9.00 0.00%

Each Additional Enquiry Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £18.00 £18.00 0.00%

Personal Search of the Land Charges 
Register Commercial Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

A search on each individual part of the 
Local Land Charges Register:

Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12 Commercial - 
each Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11 Commercial - 
each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Parts 4 & 10 Commercial - 
each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £4.50 £4.50 0.00%

Page 98



Land Charges Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Part 3 Commercial - 
each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £18.50 £18.50 0.00%

Fees for access to individual Con 29R 
questions

Con 29R Q1.1 a-l Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £1.94 £1.20 -38.14%

Con 29R Q1.2 Residential VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q2
Residential - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.1 Residential VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.2
Residential - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.70 £0.24 -65.71%

Con 29R Q3.4
Residential - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.5 a & b Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.6
Residential - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.7 a-f Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.8 Residential VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.70 £0.90 28.57%

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.70 £0.24 -65.71%

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.12 Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c Residential - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.14 Residential VAT included Cost recovery £0.35 £0.24 -31.43%

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b Residential - 
Each VAT included Cost recovery £0.70 £0.24 -65.71%

Con 29R Q1.1 a-l Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £4.50 £3.00 -33.33%

Con 29R Q1.2 Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q2
Commercial - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.1 Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.2
Commercial - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Page 99



Land Charges Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Con 29R Q3.4
Commercial - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.5 a & b Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.6
Commercial - 
request direct 

to DCC
DCC DCC

Con 29R Q3.7 a-f Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.8 Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £1.60 £1.80 12.50%

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £1.60 £0.60 -62.50%

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.12 Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.14 Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £0.60 -33.33%

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b Commercial - 
each VAT included Cost recovery £1.60 £0.60 -62.50%

Page 100



Environmental Crime Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)

Unlawful repairs / sale of vehicle on roads: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Abandoning a vehicle: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £120.00 £120.00 0.00%

Depositing litter: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Failure to comply with a street litter control 
notice Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Failure to comply with a litter clearing notice: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Unauthorised distribution of free printed 
matter: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Criminal Damage and fly-posting Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Failure to produce authority (waste carrier’s 
licence) Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Failure to furnish documentation (waste 
transfer notes) Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Failure to remove dog faeces from land 
forthwith: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead 
when directed to do so by an authorised 
officer:

Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Page 101



Environmental Crime Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Permitting a dog to enter land from which 
dogs are excluded: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Not keeping a dog on a lead in a designated 
area: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Smoke & Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) 
Regulations 2015: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £5,000.00

If paid within 14 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £2,500.00

Waste Deposit Offence Act s33 (1) (a) 
Environmental Protection Act 1990: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00

If Paid within 
10 Days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £120.00

Health Act 2006 Smoking in a smoke free 
designated vehicle or area: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00

if Paid within 15 
Days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £30.00

Health Act 2006 Failure to Display appropriate 
smoke free signage as dictated by law: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00

if Paid within 15 
Days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £150.00

Page 102



Community Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014

Failure to comply with a Community 
Protection Notice: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Failure to comply with a Public Spaces 
Protection Order: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 
working days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Page 103



Planning Enforcement Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Desk-based history check requested by 
member of the public per check Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Site visit requested by member of the public per site visit Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

Below fees do not apply to alleged breaches of planning regulations (such investigations will continue to be provided free of 
charge)

Page 104



Planning Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Householder PD check (VAT now applicable) VAT included Fair charging £56.00 £67.00 19.64%

Listed Building enforcement check VAT included Fair charging £0.00 £100.00

COPYING

Decision Notice Per notice VAT included Cost recovery £47.00 £47.00 0.00%

A4 OS maps 4 Copies VAT included Cost recovery £31.00 £31.00 0.00%

Planning Applications (Current & Historic): First page VAT included Cost recovery £7.00 £7.00 0.00%

Additional 
pages VAT included Cost recovery £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Planning Applications Plans - AO size Per copy VAT included Cost recovery £18.50 £18.50 0.00%

Planning Applications Plans - A3 size Per copy VAT included Cost recovery £13.50 £13.50 0.00%

Planning Applications Plans - A4 size Per copy VAT included Cost recovery £8.25 £8.25 0.00%

Weekly Planning List Per year VAT included Cost recovery £370.00 £370.00 0.00%

Informal or history Searches: First hour VAT included Cost recovery £51.25 £51.25 0.00%

Additionals VAT included Cost recovery £32.00 £32.00 0.00%

Postage: Cost of 
Postage Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery Postage 

Cost
Postage 

Cost

Admin Charge VAT included Cost recovery £8.25 £8.25 0.00%

PRE APPLICATION ADVICE

Meetings

Strategic major applications

Over 50 
dwellings or 
10,000sqm 
commercial

VAT included Fair charging £1,126.40 £1,130.00 0.32%

Major proposals 

Between 10 
and 50 

dwellings or 
1,000-

10,000sqm 
commercial

VAT included Fair charging £844.80 £845.00 0.02%

Minor proposals and other 
structures/developments not in the above 
categories

Between 6 and 
9 dwellings or 

under 
1,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £563.20 £570.00 1.21%

Minor proposals and other 
structures/developments not in the above 
categories

Between 1 and 
5 dwellings or 

under 
1,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £281.60 £570.00 102.41%

Written Advice

Page 105



Planning Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Strategic major applications

Over 50 
dwellings or 
10,000sqm 
commercial

VAT included Fair charging £563.20 £565.00 0.32%

Major proposals

Between 10 
and 50 

dwellings or 
1,000-

10,000sqm 
commercial

VAT included Fair charging £421.89 £425.00 0.74%

Minor proposals 

Between 6 and 
9 dwellings or 

under 
1,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £281.60 £285.00 1.21%

Minor proposals 

Between 1 and 
5 dwellings or 

under 
1,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £140.80 £285.00 102.41%

Note: Use external measurements when calculating floor areas.

Statutory Planning Fees Statutory
See 

Planning 
Portal

See 
Planning 

Portal

Page 106



Building Control Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

For the first issue of a Completion Certificate 
where work has been completed/ occupied 
without notice to the council.

VAT included Cost recovery £117.00 £117.00 0.00%

Copies of completion certificates, approvals, 
where an application number is quoted and 
assessment for redaction applied:

For 
regularisation Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £41.00 £41.00 0.00%

Not for 
regularisation VAT included Cost recovery £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Written response to an enquiry on works not 
requiring an application (e.g. confirmation of 
information available on the internet or 
provided over the telephone). Includes a 
search on the presence of public sewers in 
relation to the development where applicable.

VAT included Cost recovery £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Written response to a query. (Charges will 
therefore vary dependent on length of time 
taken to collate information).

Per hour or part 
thereof VAT included Cost recovery £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Written response to a query requiring a search 
for information that needs input of senior staff. 
(Charges will therefore vary dependent on 
length of time taken to collate information).

Per hour or part 
thereof VAT included Cost recovery £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Making available drawings for viewing subject 
to redaction and permission of copyright 
ownership

Per hour or part 
thereof VAT included Cost recovery £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Returning of stamped approved copy plans to 
applicant following scanning of the original file VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Administration fee for withdrawal of an 
application where registered but not assessed VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Administrative fee for the return of invalid 
applications where the applicant does not 
respond within 10 days (including weekends)

VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Consultation Advice (in excess of 1 hour) - 
Discounted by 100% on the submission of a 
Building Regulations Application

Per half hour VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Dealing with the Notification of Demolition 
Notices under Section 80 of the Building Act. 
Further charges may be incurred if a complex 
demolition is proposed. These charges will be 
based on an hourly rate of £55

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Recovery of costs associated with dealing 
with reports of dangerous structures, where 
investigation or action taken:

Normal: Per 
hour - minimum 

charge
Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Out of Hours: 
Per hour - 
minimum 
charge

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

Page 107



Street Naming Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

New Properties, small developments 1-5 Properties 
(each) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £63.66 £65.57 3.00%

New Properties, large developments 6+ Properties 
(each) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £37.13 £38.25 3.02%

New Street Name Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £190.96 £196.70 3.01%

Renaming Existing Properties Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £63.66 £65.57 3.00%

Confirmation of Postal Address Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £41.20 £42.44 3.01%

Page 108



Waste Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Trade Waste & Recycling

To ensure that the Council remains 
competitive and is commercially focused, 
rates levied for trade waste and trade 
recycling collections will be calculated based 
upon volumes and demand ensuring at all 
times that they do not fall below the cost of 
service provision to the authority.

Domestic Waste

Bulky Waste Collections (Payments made 
at time of booking -except assessments)

Up to 4 crushable items Minimum 
charge Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £22.50 £23.00 2.22%

Additional Items, up to maximum of 9 Per item Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £4.10 £4.20 2.44%

Up to 4 crushable items for customers 
providing evidence of receipt of Housing/ 
Council Tax benefit

Minimum 
charge Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £11.25 £11.50 2.22%

Additional items, up to a maximum of 9, for 
customers providing evidence of receipt of 
Housing/ Council Tax benefit

Per item Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £2.05 £2.10 2.44%

10 items or more, or large/ awkward items Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery By 
Quote By Quote

Fridges, Freezers and Other Electrical Items per item Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £29.00 £30.00 3.45%

Fridges, Freezers and Other Electrical Items 
for customers providing evidence of receipt of 
Housing/ Council Tax benefit

per item Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £14.50 £15.00 3.45%

Smaller Electrical Items (when collected with a 
large item) Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Green Waste

Additional Green Lidded Bin: Initial Cost Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £52.50 £53.50 1.90%

Page 109



Waste Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Annual Cost 
from Yr 2 Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £25.00 £26.00 4.00%

Charge for new or replacement domestic 
waste or recycling bin per bin Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £0.00 £30.00

Page 110



Cemeteries Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Burial Plots Exclusive right of burial & 
issue of certificate

New Grave (including woodland graves) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £616.00 £636.00 3.25%

Cremated remains in grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £276.00 £290.00 5.07%

Out of area fees: Non-High Peak residents Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Double 
Fees

Double 
Fees

Interment

Grave for three (NB: Glossop Only) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £690.00 £725.00 5.07%

Grave for two Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £616.00 £645.00 4.71%

Grave for one or Woodland burial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £552.00 £575.00 4.17%

Cremated remains burial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £175.00 £185.00 5.71%

Lawn burial of ashes Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £114.00 £120.00 5.26%

Out of area fees: Non-High Peak residents Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Double 
Fees

Double 
Fees

Memorials

New upright memorial including 1st inscription Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Memorial desk tablet/ vase including 1st 
inscription Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £102.00 £106.00 3.92%

Replacement memorial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £102.00 £106.00 3.92%

Additional inscription on memorial/ tablet/ 
vase etc Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £56.00 £60.00 7.14%

Bronze/ Aluminium memorial plaque (up to 75 
letters) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £152.00 4.11%

Cast bronze sponsored tree plaque Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £350.00 £360.00 2.86%

Purchase

Child under 1 year

Baby's Grave (Buxton, Glossop, Thornsett) Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

New full size grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £616.00 £636.00 3.25%

Ashes Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £276.00 £290.00 5.07%

Child aged 1-10 years

Child's grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £0.00 £0.00

New full size grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £616.00 £636.00 3.25%

Ashes Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £276.00 £290.00 5.07%

Interment

Page 111



Cemeteries Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Child under 1 year

Baby's Grave (Buxton, Glossop, Thornsett) Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

New full size grave Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £308.00 £318.00 3.25%

Ashes Grave Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Reopened Grave Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £276.00 £287.50 4.17%

Child aged 1-10 years

Child's grave Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

New full size grave Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £308.00 £318.00 3.25%

Ashes Grave Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Reopened Grave Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £276.00 £287.50 4.17%

Memorial

Child under 1 year

Baby's Grave (Buxton, Glossop, Thornsett) Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

New full size grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Ashes Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Reopened Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Child aged 1-10 years

Child's grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £73.00 £75.50 3.42%

New full size grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Ashes Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Reopened Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £146.00 £151.00 3.42%

Other Charges

Replacement or transfer of grave deed Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £41.50 £43.00 3.61%

Search Fee (Per half hour) VAT included Nominal £20.00 £22.00 10.00%

Grave selection by purchaser Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £20.00 £22.00 10.00%

Walled Graves, Vaults etc.

Large coffin (both dimensions over 6' 5" and 
25") Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £64.00 £66.00 3.13%

Cancellation of funeral within 72 hours of 
burial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £64.00 £66.00 3.13%

Coffin size not confirmed within 48 hrs of 
burial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £64.00 £66.00 3.13%

Headstone not removed from grave when 
requested Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £64.00 £66.00 3.13%

Page 112



Cemeteries Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Paperwork not received in cemetery office 
before burial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £64.00 £66.00 3.13%

Late arrival of funeral at cemetery (>30 
minutes) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £64.00 £66.00 3.13%

Page 113



Leisure Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Adult Swim VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.60 2.86%

Junior Swim VAT included Fair charging £2.10 £2.15 2.38%

B line Swim VAT included Fair charging £1.60 £1.65 3.12%

Students VAT included Fair charging £2.10 £2.15 2.38%

OAP VAT included Fair charging £2.50 £2.55 2.00%

Disabled VAT included Fair charging £1.95 £2.00 2.56%

50+ Swim VAT included Fair charging £2.60 £2.65 1.92%

Under 8's Swim VAT included Fair charging £0.00 £0.00

Fitness Suite Peak casual VAT included Fair charging £5.70 £5.90 3.51%

Off Peak casual VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.10 2.00%

Fitness Suite concession casual VAT included Fair charging £3.00 £3.00 0.00%

Membership admin fee VAT included Fair charging £25.00 £30.00 20.00%

Casual user induction VAT included Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Fitness assessments VAT included Fair charging £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Aerobics VAT included Fair charging £4.60 £4.70 2.17%

Sports Hall - GLC: Peak VAT included Fair charging £45.00 £46.00 2.22%

Off peak VAT included Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Sport Hall - NMLC VAT included Fair charging £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Badminton: Peak VAT included Fair charging £10.00 £10.20 2.00%

Off peak VAT included Fair charging £5.80 £6.00 3.45%

Squash: Peak VAT included Fair charging £6.70 £6.80 1.49%

Off peak VAT included Fair charging £4.70 £4.80 2.13%

Junior recreation VAT included Fair charging £0.00 £0.00

Climbing wall VAT included Fair charging £4.00 £4.00 0.00%

Studio - GLC VAT included Fair charging £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Table tennis VAT included Fair charging £4.90 £5.00 2.04%

50+ Stretch VAT included Fair charging £2.50 £2.70 8.00%

50+ Badminton VAT included Fair charging £2.50 £2.70 8.00%

B Line Rec VAT included Fair charging £2.50 £2.50 0.00%

Gold card Rec VAT included Fair charging £2.25 £2.30 2.22%

Equipment hire VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Page 114



Leisure Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Aqua Fit - Glossop Pool 45 minutes VAT included Fair charging £3.85 £3.95 2.60%

Aqua Fit VAT included Fair charging £4.60 £4.70 2.17%

Monthly Direct Debit - Swimming Lessons VAT included Fair charging £22.00 £22.50 2.27%

15 week advance payment VAT included Fair charging £76.50 £78.26 2.30%

Administration fee (new enrolments) VAT included Fair charging £15.00 £15.00 0.00%

Private Swimming Lessons One-off VAT included Fair charging £50.00 £52.00 4.00%

Health & Fitness Prices

Single: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £33.25 £34.00 2.26%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £332.50 £340.00 2.26%

Joint: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £59.85 £61.20 2.26%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £599.00 £612.00 2.17%

Family: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £66.50 £68.00 2.26%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £665.00 £680.00 2.26%

Junior: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £16.00 £16.25 1.56%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £160.00 £163.00 1.88%

Concession: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £26.00 £26.50 1.92%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £260.00 £265.00 1.92%

Swim only: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £20.00 £20.40 2.00%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £200.00 £204.00 2.00%

Swim only concession: Direct Debit VAT included Fair charging £16.60 £16.80 1.20%

Advance VAT included Fair charging £165.00 £168.00 1.82%

Buxton Pool

Pool Hire VAT included Fair charging £56.10 £57.00 1.60%

Teaching Pool VAT included Fair charging £43.50 £44.00 1.15%

Activity Room VAT included Fair charging £21.90 £22.50 2.74%

Glossop Pool & New Mills Leisure Centre

Pool Hire VAT included Fair charging £55.60 £57.00 2.52%

Attendant Rate VAT included Fair charging £19.20 £22.00 14.58%

Page 115



Street Scene Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Street Signs – Developers VAT included Fair charging £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Carnivals: (quote plus hourly charge) Quote VAT included Fair charging £20.00 £22.50 12.50%

Private sweeps Per hour VAT included Fair charging £45.00 £47.50 5.56%

Private picks Per hour VAT included Fair charging £45.00 £47.50 5.56%

Poll booths for Parishes, Town Councils and 
barrier erection Per hour VAT included Fair charging £45.00 £47.50 5.56%

Parish Council Works Per hour VAT included Fair charging £45.00 £47.50 5.56%

Private removal of Asbestos: (quote plus 
hourly charge) Quote VAT included Fair charging £20.00 £22.50 12.50%

Graffiti: (quote plus hourly charge) Quote VAT included Fair charging £20.00 £22.50 12.50%

Gritting Per hour VAT included Fair charging £45.00 £47.50 5.56%

Page 116



Horticulture Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Horticulture

Copy of Tree Preservation Order Per hard copy Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £30.00 £30.00 0.00%

Pitch Hire - Junior Team Per team Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £234.00 £240.00 2.56%

Pitch Hire - Adult Team Per team Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £350.00 £360.00 2.86%

High Hedges

High Hedge Complaints Per complaint Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £500.00 £500.00 0.00%

Parks & Open Space Concession

Sport / Fitness Classes Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £6.50 £6.60 1.54%

Park /Open Space Event Charges

Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £385.00 £385.00 0.00%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £125.00 £125.00 0.00%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £340.00 £340.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £120.00 £120.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £240.00 £240.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 2000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 2000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £360.00 £360.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £485.00 £485.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 - 
10,000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £250.00 £250.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 - 
10,000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £630.00 £630.00 0.00%

Page 117



Horticulture Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £500.00 £500.00 0.00%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £925.00 £925.00 0.00%

Charitable Event - Some Commercial 
Activity<1500 Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Charitable Event - Some Commercial 
Activity>1500 Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Community Event -Some Commercial Activity 
<1500 Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Community Event - Some Commercial Activity 
>1500 Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Charitable Event - No commercial activity Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Community Event -No Commercial Activity Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Commercial Filming Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Commercial Filming Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £600.00 £600.00 0.00%

Commercial photo shoot Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Commercial photo shoot  Half Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Discretionary Commercial Event Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Discretionary Commercial Event Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Educational Establishments Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Catering concessions - lesiure sites Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00

Catering concessions - lesiure sites Per Day Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £20.00

New sites for concessions - amusements Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00

New sites for concessions - amusements Per day / Per 
item Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £30.00

Page 118



Car Parks Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Season Tickets

Type A - Season tickets for use on HPBC Car 
Parks excl. Spring Gardens Centre Car Park, 
Buxton and Municipal Buildings Car Park, 
Glossop

Per quarter VAT included Fair charging £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Type B - Use restricted to New Mills Torr Top 
Car Park Per quarter VAT included Fair charging £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Type C - Use restricted to Bernard Street & 
Edward Street Car Parks, Glossop Per quarter VAT included Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Other Season Tickets

For use exclusively on Upper Deck of the 
Pavilion Gardens Car Park in Buxton - 
Monday to Friday during term-time 
(September to June) only:
Derby University (Buxton Campus) Staff and 
Students Full period VAT included Fair charging £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Other Car Park Users Full period VAT included Fair charging £175.00 £175.00 0.00%

Pay and Display

Buxton: Market Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Buxton: Market Place Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Buxton: The Slopes Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Buxton: Eagle Parade Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Page 119



Car Parks Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Buxton:South Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Buxton: Bridge Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Buxton: Sylvan Park: Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

Cars 1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.50 £3.50 0.00%

Coaches Up to 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Goods Vehicles VAT included Fair charging £6.00 £6.00 0.00%

Buxton Pavilion Gardens Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.20 £1.20 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.20 £3.20 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

Buxton: Spring Gardens Centre & Wye Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.70 £2.70 0.00%

Glossop: Municipal Buildings Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.60 £0.60 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.10 £1.10 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

Glossop: Edward Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.60 £0.60 0.00%

Page 120



Car Parks Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.10 £1.10 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.40 £2.40 0.00%

Glossop: Bernard Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.60 £0.60 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.10 £1.10 0.00%

2- hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

New Mills: Market Street; First hour VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £0.55 £0.55 0.00%

Up to 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.65 £1.65 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

New Mills:Torr Top First hour VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £0.55 £0.55 0.00%

Up to 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.65 £1.65 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

New Mills:Town Hall First hour VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £0.55 £0.55 0.00%

Up to 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.65 £1.65 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

Castleton: Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Cars 1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.20 £3.20 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

24 hours VAT included Fair charging £6.00 £6.00 0.00%

Coaches Up to 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £4.50 £4.50 0.00%

Page 121



Car Parks Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Hope: Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.20 £3.20 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

24 hours VAT included Fair charging £6.00 £6.00 0.00%

Edale Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Cars 1-2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

2-4 hours VAT included Fair charging £3.20 £3.20 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

24 hours VAT included Fair charging £6.00 £6.00 0.00%

Coaches Up to 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

Over 4 hours VAT included Fair charging £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Miry Meadow, Chapel VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Thornbrook, Chapel VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Off Station Road, Hadfield VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Albert Street, Hadfield VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Bingswood VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Railway Station, Whaley Bridge VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Penalty Charge Notices Off Street: Two tier 
system depending on the seriousness of the 

Tier one: Per fine Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

If paid within 14 
days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Tier two: Per fine Charge not VAT-able Statutory £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

If paid within 14 
days Charge not VAT-able Statutory £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Page 122



Markets Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

New Mills Market

New Mills Friday Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £14.00 £14.00 0.00%

New Mills Saturday Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £14.00 £14.00 0.00%

Glossop Outdoor Market

Glossop Thursday Market Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

Glossop Friday Market Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

Glossop Saturday Market Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

Page 123



Finance Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Financial Services

Statement of Accounts Per copy (plus 
postage) VAT included Cost recovery £21.00 £21.00 0.00%

Credit Card Charge Per transaction Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £2.50 1.3%

Committee Services

Agenda Per copy (plus 
postage) VAT included Cost recovery £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Recovery Services - Summons costs 
recharged

Application for summons re Liability Order: Council Tax Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Non-Domestic 
Rates Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Issue of Liability Orders: Council Tax Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Non-Domestic 
Rates Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Committal summons Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £310.00 £310.00 0.00%

Arrest warrants Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Committal to prison Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Reasonable 
charge

Reasonable 
charge

Page 124



Elections Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Confirmation of Residency Letter Per letter Charge not VAT-able Nominal £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Page 125



Carelink Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Carelink Gold ( monitoring, support & 
response) per week Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £7.29 £7.29 0.00%

Carelink Silver (monitoring & support)  per week Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £4.00 £4.00 0.00%

FAST ( Falls prevention package) per week Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £2.50 £2.50 0.00%

Installation (non tenant) per unit Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Daily Telephone Contact per week Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £5.00 £5.00 0.00%

Carelink Plus 15 Minutes per visit Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £8.75 £8.75 0.00%

Carelink Plus 30 Minutes per visit Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

Cleaning (Sheltered Accommodation Tenants) per hour VAT included Fair charging £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

Page 126



Lettings Unit
Is VAT included in this 
Charge? (select from 

dropdown)

Charging 
Category (select 
from dropdown)

2016/17 
Current 
Charge

2017/18 
Proposed 
Charge

% 
increase

Room Hire - including drinks Half Day Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £63.00 £63.00 0.00%

Full Day Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £121.00 £121.00 0.00%

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Council 

21 February 2017

To approve the following recommendation of the Audit and Regulatory Committee:

1.        Councillor Pritchard to move the following recommendations:

a) EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17

RECOMMENDED:

That councillors note the report.

b) APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS - PUBLIC SECTOR 
AUDIT APPOINTMENTS OPT-IN

RECOMMENDED:

That the Council opts in to the appointing person arrangements made 
by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of 
external auditors.

c) TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE:  MID-YEAR REPORT  
2016/17

RECOMMENDED:

That the Council notes the current treasury management position (as at 
31st December 2016).

d) TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) 
2017/18

RECOMMENDED:

That the Council approves the Annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (TMSS) 2017/18.

TITLE: Recommendation from the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee – 14 February 2017

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo, Executive Director (People) & 
Monitoring Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: As detailed in the attached report

Page 129

Agenda Item 7



Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Page 130



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

The Audit Plan 

for High Peak Borough Council 

 Year ended 31 March 2017 

Phil W Jones 

Engagement Lead 

T 0121 232 5232 

E  phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

Allison Rhodes 

Manager  

T    0121 232 5285 

E  allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 

Javed Akhtar 

In charge auditor 

T 121  232 5153 

E  javed.akhtar@uk.gt.com 

February 2017 

Cover page 

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 7a



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan  sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of High Peak Borough Council, the Audit and Regulatory Committee), an overview 

of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to: 

-give an opinion on the Council's financial statements 

-satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 

view. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  

It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 

loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose.  

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit. 

Yours sincerely 

Phil Jones 

Engagement Lead 

February 2017 

Dear Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2017 

Letter 

High Peak Borough Council 

Buxton Town Hall 

Market Place 

Buxton 

Derbyshire 

SK17 6EL 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

The Colmore Building 

20 Colmore Circus  

BIRMINGHAM 

West Midlands  

B4 6AT 

 

T +44 (0)121 212 4000 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

P
age 132



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business and key developments 4 

Materiality 5 

Significant risks identified 6 

Other risks identified 7 

Value for Money 10 

Other audit responsibilities 12 

The audit cycle 13 

Audit fees 14 

Independence and non-audit services 15 

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 16 

 

  

3 

P
age 133



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council |  2016/17 

Understanding your business and key developments 

Financial reporting changes 

 

Key Challenges 

 

Key performance indicators 

Measure Value 

Outturn forecast at quarter 2 215,100 overspend 

Efficiency programme of £1,655,690 445,000 shortfall 

Housing revenue account forecast 

at quarter 2 

349,260 surplus 

Our response 

 We will discuss with you your progress in preparing for an earlier closedown and audit by 31 July, and share any good practice or areas of improvement. 

 As part of our interim audit we will consider your progress in preparing the adjustments to the prior year comparative figures and then (as part of our opinion on your financial statement)s,   in whether 

your financial statements accurately reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2016/17 Code.   

 We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2016/17 through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops. 

 We will review the Council's progress in updating it's MTFP, preparing it's  annual budget for 2017/18 as part of our work in reaching our VFM conclusion.. 

 We will consider the progress being made by the Council in its steps to determine a housing revenue account business plan that is sustainable in the longer  term, as part of our work in reaching our VFM 

conclusion. 

Autumn Statement  

The Council is working through the implications of the  

Chancellor's announcements in the Autumn Statement, and 

to examine how the impact of the reduction in central 

government support may be mitigated by: 

• retained business rates through economic growth 

• maintaining the level of new homes bonus through a 

commitment to housing growth; and 

• reviewing fees and charges and identifying new sources 

of income generation 

• an annual 1.9% increase in council tax. 

 

  

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code) 

Changes to the Code in  2016/17 reflect aims of the 'Telling 

the Story' project, to streamline the financial statements to 

be more in line with internal organisational reporting and 

improve accessibility to the reader of the financial 

statements. 

The changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in 

Reserves Statements, segmental reporting disclosures and 

a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis note has been 

introduced. The Code also requires these amendments to 

be reflected in the 2015/16 comparatives by way of a prior 

period adjustment. 

 

Earlier closedown 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils 

to bring forward the approval and audit of financial 

statements to 31 July by the 2017/2018 financial year. 

You are planning to prepare your draft accounts for 2016/17 

to the earlier timescale  and we propose to carry out our 

audit work by the end of July.  

You are considering how the timing of your Audit and 

Regulatory Committee meetings need to be changed to 

reflect these future arrangements. 

Efficiency and Rationalisation programme 

The Council's MTFP includes a three year efficiency and 

rationalisation strategy with budgeted savings of £2.8m in 

the three years to 2016/17. 

A new Efficiency Plan is being set as part of the  2017/18 

budget setting process. 

In order to balance the general fund budgets for 2017/18 

through to 2020/21, there was (at the time of the update to 

the MTFP in November 2016)  a new savings requirement of 

£1.762m and a further saving requirement of £3.569m over 

the four years for the HRA. 

Understanding 

your business 

Housing 

Previous Government announcements in regard to an annual 1% 

rent reduction from April 2016 for 4 years, have a significant 

impact on the financial resilience of the Council's Housing 

Revenue Account. 

The Council is continuing to complete and implement a Housing 

Management and Revenue Plan and to review all the current 

assumptions in the HRA Business Plan. The results of the full 

stock condition survey will inform the 2018/19 budget setting 

process but in the meantime the Council is focusing on where 

measures can be taken to support the longer term financial 

position. 

P
age 134



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required (e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances).  

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements. 

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Council. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £864k (being 

2% of gross revenue expenditure) in line with that determined in the previous year. Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if 

we revise this during the audit. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £42k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate: 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary bandings 

and exit packages in the notes to the financial statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures 

and the statutory requirement for them to 

be made. 

£20,000 

Related party transactions £20,000 (although the significance of  any matters arising will also be evaluated with regard to the 

materiality from the perspective of the other party) 

5 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320) 

P
age 135



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Significant risks identified 
An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 

identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement. 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

The revenue cycle 

includes fraudulent 

transactions 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a presumed 

risk that revenue streams may be misstated due to the 

improper recognition of revenue. 

 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at High 

Peak Borough Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition 

can be rebutted, because: 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including High Peak Borough Council, 

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable 

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for High Peak Borough Council. 

Management over-

ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management 

over-ride of controls is present in all entities. 

Work planned: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries for testing back to 

supporting documentation  

 Review of unusual significant transactions. 

6 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's 

normal course of business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550) 

P
age 136



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified 
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 

cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 

judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business. 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Operating expenses Year end creditors and accruals 

are understated or not recorded 

in the correct period. 

 

We will document the processes and controls in place around the accounting for operating 

expenses and carry out walkthrough tests to confirm the operation of controls. 

We will carry out testing including: 

 the completeness of the subsidiary system interfaces and control account  reconciliations 

 obtaining an understanding of the accruals process and testing a sample of accruals 

including those for goods received  but not  invoiced  at the year end 

 payments after the year end to consider completeness of operating expenses 

Testing will  also cover a sample of operating expenses covering the period 1/4/16 to 31/3/17  

to ensure they have been accurately accounted for and in the correct period. 

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration accruals 

are understated 

We will document the processes and controls in place around the accounting for employee 

remuneration and carry out walkthrough tests to confirm the operation of controls. 

We will carry out testing including: 

 the completeness of the payroll reconciliation to ensure that information from the payroll 

system can be agreed to the ledger and financial statements 

 a review of monthly trend analysis of total payroll 

 substantive testing of senior officer remuneration.  

Testing will also cover a sample of employee remuneration payments covering the period 

1/4/16 to 31/3/17 to ensure they have been accurately accounted for and in the correct 

period. 

7 

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315)  

P
age 137



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified (continued) 
Other risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Changes to the presentation of local authority 

financial statements 

CIPFA has been working on the 

‘Telling the Story’ project, for 

which the aim was to streamline 

the financial statements and 

improve accessibility to the user 

and this has resulted in changes 

to the 2016/17 Code of Practice. 

 

The changes affect the 

presentation of income and 

expenditure in the financial 

statements and associated 

disclosure notes. A prior period 

adjustment (PPA) to restate the 

2015/16 comparative figures is 

also required. 

We will documented and evaluate the Council's process for recording the required financial 

reporting changes to the 2016/17 financial statements. 

We will: 

 review the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(CIES) comparatives to ensure that they are in line with the Authority’s internal reporting 

structure. 

 review the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within the Movement In 

Reserves Statement (MIRS). 

 test the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 recorded within the Cost of 

Services section of the CIES. 

 test the completeness  of income and expenditure by reviewing the reconciliation of the 

CIES to the general ledger. 

 test the classification of income and expenditure reported within the new Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial statements. 

 review the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 financial statements  

to ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

 

8 

P
age 138



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified (continued) 

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include: 

• Property, plant and equipment  

• Investment properties 

• Investments (long term and short term) 

• Debtors (long term and short term) 

• Cash and cash equivalents 

• Borrowings and other liabilities (long and short term) 

• Useable and unusable reserves 

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes 

• Statement of Cash Flows and associated notes 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure 

• Taxation and non-specific grants 

• Grant income 

 

• Pension liability and associated CIES transactions and disclosure notes 

• New notes covering expenditure and income analysed by nature and 

other segmental disclosures 

• Officers' remuneration 

• Leases 

• Related party transactions 

• Capital expenditure and capital financing 

• Financial instruments 

• Housing Revenue Account and associated notes 

• Collection Fund and associated notes 

9 

Going concern 

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 

going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements.  

P
age 139



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Value for Money 

Background 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work for 2016/17 in November 2016. The guidance states that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has proper arrangements in place. 

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out opposite: 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of sound governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information (including, where relevant, 

information from regulatory/monitoring bodies) to 

support informed decision making and performance 

management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions 

• Managing and utilising assets effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and 

other third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities. 

10 

P
age 140



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Value for Money (continued) 

Risk assessment 

We shall carry out an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our 
initial risk assessment, we will consider : 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in 
previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the 
financial statements. 

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies, 

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its 
Supporting Information. 

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your 
arrangements. 

Following the completion of this risk assessment, we will set out our planned 
work  for 2016/17 to meet our duties in respect of the VfM conclusion, as part of 
our progress updates to the Audit and Regulatory Committee. This update will 
include any significant risks identified, along with details of the work we plan to  
carry out to address these risks. 

 

 

Reporting 

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in 
our Audit Findings Report and in the Annual Audit Letter.  

We will include our conclusion as part of our report on your financial statements 
which we will give by 30 September 2017. 

 

 

 

11 

P
age 141



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other audit responsibilities 

12 

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice in relation to your financial statements and arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness we 

have a number of other audit responsibilities, as follows: 

 

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that the disclosures made in your Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and 

consistent with our knowledge of the Council. 

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the financial statements on which we  give an  opinion and that the disclosures included 

in it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

• The Council is below the audit threshold and so there is no requirement for us to review the WGA information prepared by the Council. 

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, including: 

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about your financial statements and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to 

the financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State 

• We certify completion of our audit.  

 

P
age 142



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

The audit cycle 

The audit timeline 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Add any other agreed 

milestones or outputs agreed 

with your client 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Logistics 

Key dates: 

 

 

 

Audit phases: 

 

 

 

Year end:  

31 March 2017 

Audit and Regulatory 

Committee:  

TBC September 2017 

Sign off by:  

30 September 2017 

Planning  

January - February 2017 
Interim   

From 13 February 2017 

Final   

w/c 25 June 2017 

Completion of 

fieldwork   

31 July 2017 

Key elements 

 Planning meeting with management to 

inform audit planning and agree audit 

timetable 

 Issue audit working paper 

requirements to management 

 Discussions with those charged with 

governance and internal audit to 

inform audit planning 

 Discuss draft Audit Plan with 

management 

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit Committee 

 Meeting with Audit Committee to 

discuss the Audit Plan 

Key elements 

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes 

 Review of key judgements and estimates 

 Early substantive audit testing 

 High level review of IA arrangements 

 Specialist review of the general IT control 

environment  

 Review journal entry policies and procedures 

and extract unusual entries for examination 

 Review prior period adjustment 

 Review of Value for Money arrangements 

 Issue progress report to management and 

Audit and Regulatory Committee 

 

Key elements 

 Audit teams onsite to complete detailed 

audit testing 

 Weekly update meetings with 

management 

 Audit of group reporting consolidation 

schedule 

On completion of fieldwork: 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management 

 Meeting with management to discuss 

Audit Findings 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit 

Committee 

 

Key elements 

At time of Audit and 

Regulatory Committee 

 Audit Findings 

presentation to Audit 

Committee 

 Finalise approval and 

signing of financial 

statements and audit 

report 

 Annual Audit Letter 

Debrief  

August 2017 

Reporting 

September 

2017 

P
age 143



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough COUNCIL  |  2016/17 
 

Audit Fees 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list 

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 

changed significantly 

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

Grant certification 

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited 

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'. 

 

What is included within our fees: 

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business 

 Feed back on our work to review your systems and processes, identifying potential 

risks or opportunities  

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 

finance community 

 Technical briefings and updates for members of your finance team including 

invitations to our Accountants' Workshop 

 Regular contact with senior management to discuss strategy, emerging issues and 

other important areas 

 Regular progress reports and emerging issues bulletins to your Audit and Regulatory 

Committee 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Fees for other services 

 

Fees for other services detailed on the following page, reflect those agreed at the 

time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings 

Report and Annual Audit Letter. 

Fees 

£ 

Council audit 47,273 

Grant certification  11,040 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 58,313 

P
age 144



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough COUNCIL  |  2016/17 
 

Independence and non-audit services 

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of matters relating to our independence. In this context we confirm that there are 

no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Auditing 

Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to High Peak Borough Council. The following audit related 

and non-audit services were identified for the Council for 2016/17: 

PSAA Ltd have confirmed their approved for Grant Thornton UK LLP to undertake the work set out above for both Authorities, with the fees to be split 50:50. 

The above services are consistent with the Council's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. 

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services (to be) undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP (and Grant Thornton International Limited network member 

Firms) in the current financial year. Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms 

will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit. 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit. At the time 

of preparation of the Audit Plan 

it is unlikely that full information 

as to all fees charged by GTI 

network firms will be available. 

Disclosure of these fees, threats 

to independence and 

safeguards will therefore be 

included in the Audit Findings 

report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

group’s. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Independence and 

non-audit services 

Fees for other services  

Service Fees £ Planned outputs 

Audit related 

Pooling housing capital receipts return 2015/16 – work completed in November 

2016 

2,200 Completion of reasonable assurance work to meet the requirements of 

DCLG and submit certification on the Department's LOGASNET system. 

Non-audit related 

Leisure services – options (work completed in 2016/17) 8,990 Options appraisal for alternative delivery vehicle for leisure services. 

CFOi insights – subscription agreed September 2016 2,000 These are subscriptions to access our online software that provides the 

councils with rapid insights relating to financial performance, socio 

economic factors and service outcomes. Total fees split 50:50. Place Analytics –  Year 3 of three year subscription package 5,625 

Waste management review 6,450 Benchmarking and a critical review of a business case, total fee £12,900 

to be split 50:50  

Total non – audit related  23,065 This is the value of the share attributed to this Council 

P
age 145



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern   

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those 

charged with governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings will be issued prior to approval of the financial statements  and 

will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council. 

Respective responsibilities 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance. 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

16 

P
age 146

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

17 

P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee

14th February 2017

Appendices Attached
Appendix 1 Opt-in Letter and Appendix: Appointing an External Auditor – 

Information on the National Scheme
Appendix 2 Appointing Person: Frequently Asked Questions

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 Following the demise of the Audit Commission new arrangements are needed 
for the appointment of external auditors. The Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 requires authorities to either opt in to the appointing person regime 
or to establish an Auditor Panel and conduct their own procurement exercise. 
The Council will need to consider the options available and put in place new 
arrangements in time to make a first appointment by 31 December 2017.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee recommends to Council that the Authority opts in to the 
appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 brought to a close the Audit 
Commission and established transitional arrangements for the appointment of 
external auditors and the setting of audit fees for all local government and 
NHS bodies in England. On 5th October 2015 the Secretary of State 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) determined that the transitional 

TITLE: Appointment of External Auditors - Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Opt-in

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 149

Agenda Item 7b



arrangements for local government bodies would be extended by one year to 
also include the audit of the accounts for 2017/18.

3.2 When the current transitional arrangements come to an end on 31st March 
2018 the Council will be able to move to local appointment of the auditor. 
There are three broad options open to the Council under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act); to opt-in to an approved sector led body; 
establish an independent audit panel; or establish Joint Auditor Panel / local 
joint procurement arrangements.

3.3 In response to the consultation on the new arrangement, the LGA successfully 
lobbied for Councils to be able to ‘opt-in’ to a Sector Led Body (SLB) 
appointed by the Secretary of State under the Act. An SLB would have the 
ability to negotiate contracts with the firms nationally, maximising the 
opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to procurement of 
external audit on behalf of the whole sector. A non-binding expression of 
interest in opting-in to a SLB was submitted to the LGA in April 2016, which 
was noted by this committee at the 25th May 2016 meeting.

3.4 In July 2016 PSAA were specified by the Secretary of State as an appointing 
person under regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015. The appointing person is sometimes referred to as the sector led body 
and PSAA has wide support across most of local government.

3.5 The date by which authorities will need to opt in to the appointing person 
arrangements is 9th March 2017. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a decision to opt in must be made by 
Full Council (authority meeting as a whole). To comply with this regulation this 
Committee is asked to make the recommendation to Council.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The most economic and efficient approach to procurement of external audit 
contributes to the effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money. 

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 To approve the Council opt-in to the appointing person arrangements made by 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external 
auditors (Recommended). Opting-in will ensure the most efficient, timely and 
cost effective procurement of external audit.

5.2 Do not approve the Council opt-in to the appointing person arrangements 
made by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of 
external auditors (Not Recommended). The Council will have to establish an 
independent audit panel which will be a more resource intensive and costly 
process.

Page 150



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
Current external fees levels are likely to increase when the current 
contracts end in 2018. Opting-in to a national SLB provides maximum 
opportunity to limit the extent of any increases by entering in to a large 
scale collective procurement arrangement and would remove the costs 
of establishing an auditor panel.

6.5 Legal
Opting in to the appointing person arrangements made by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external 
auditors will ensure compliance with the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014.

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8 Risk Assessment
Opting in to the appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors by 
the opt-in deadline will enable successful transition to the new 
arrangement in a timely and efficient manner. Failing to meet this 
deadline will result in the far more resource intensive and costly process 
of establishing an independent Audit Panel.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Page 151



Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014

PSAA  Invitation to opt
into the national scheme
for auditor appointments
October 2016

PSAA Prospectus
August 2016

Buxton Town Hall Andrew P Stokes
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief 
Finance Officer
Tel: (01538) 395622
e-mail: 
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 152

mailto:andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail

7.1 As part of closing the Audit Commission the Government novated external 
audit contracts to PSAA on 1 April 2015. The audits were due to expire 
following conclusion of the audits of the 2016/17 accounts, but could be 
extended for a period of up to three years by PSAA, subject to approval from 
the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG).

7.2 In October 2015 the Secretary of State confirmed that the transitional 
provisions would be amended to allow an extension of the contracts for a 
period of one year. This meant that for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts it 
would be necessary for authorities to either undertake their own procurements 
or to opt in to the appointed person regime.

7.3 There was a degree of uncertainty around the appointed person regime until 
July 2016 when PSAA were specified by the Secretary of State as an 
appointing person under regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015. The appointing person is sometimes referred to as the 
sector led body and PSAA has wide support across most of local government. 
PSAA was originally established to operate the transitional arrangements 
following the closure of the Audit Commission and is a company owned by the 
Local Government Association’s Improvement and Development Agency 
(IDeA).

8. Options for local appointment of External Auditors

8.1 Under the legislation each Local Authority has 3 options:

 Option 1 - Opt in to an approved sector led body (SLB) to be specified by 
DCLG to act as the Appointing Person on behalf of opted in Local 
Authorities.

 Option 2 - To establish an independent Audit Panel. The Panel must be 
made up of a majority of wholly independent members and must be 
chaired by an independent member.

 Option 3 - Establish a joint Auditor Panel to carry out the function on 
behalf of two or more bodies.

8.2 Councillors will recall that a report was submitted to this Committee at the 25th 
May 2016 meeting which set out the advantages and disadvantages of these 3 
options. The Committee noted the decision to submit a non-binding expression 
of interest in opting-in to the Local Government Association (LGA) sector-led 
body approach to the procurement of future external audit contracts (Option 
1).

8.3 The main advantages under Option 1 of using PSAA are set out in its 
prospectus and are copied below; these can also be viewed as the 
disadvantages if the Council was to decide to undertake its own procurement. 
Further information is contained within the Opt-in Letter and Appendix 
(Appendix 1).

Page 153



 Assure timely auditor appointments
 Manage independence of auditors
 Secure highly competitive prices
 Save on procurement costs
 Focus on audit quality
 Operate on a not for profit basis and distribute any surplus funds to 

scheme members.

8.4 It is likely that a sector wide procurement conducted by PSAA will produce 
better outcomes for the Council than any procurement undertaken by this 
Council or with a limited number of partners. Use of the PSAA will also be less 
resource intensive than establishing an Auditor Panel and conducting our own 
procurement. Further information is contained within the Appointing Person 
FAQ’s (Appendix 2).

8.5 The other Options have been considered and these are shown below: 

 Option 2 - To establish an Auditor Panel and conduct own procurement – 
this is not recommended as it will be a far more resource intensive 
process and without the economies of scale of the sector led procurement 
and would likely to result in a more costly service. 

 Option 3 - To establish a joint Auditor Panel to carry out the function on 
behalf of 2 or more bodies – this is not recommended because there is 
little appetite for a joint procurement. 

8.6 The date by which authorities will need to opt in to the appointing person 
arrangements is 9 March 2017. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a decision to opt in must be made by 
Full Council (authority meeting as a whole). To comply with this regulation this 
Committee is asked to make the recommendation to Council.

Page 154



 

 
 

 
PSAA, 3rd floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 
T 020 7072 7445 www.psaa.co.uk   Company number: 09178094 

 

 

27 October 2016 

[Chief Executive Name] 
[Authority name] 
[Address] 
 

     
Email: appointingperson@psaa.co.uk 
   
  

Copied to: [Director of Finance name], [Job title], [Authority name] 
  [Monitoring officer name], [Job title], [Authority name] 

 
Dear [Salutation] 

Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments 
As you know the external auditor for the audit of the accounts for 2018/19 has to be appointed 
before the end of 2017. That may seem a long way away, but as there is now a choice about 
how to make that appointment, a decision on your authority’s approach will be needed soon. 

We are pleased that the Secretary of State has expressed his confidence in us by giving us the 
role of appointing local auditors under a national scheme. This is one choice open to your 
authority. We issued a prospectus about the scheme in July 2016, available to download on the 
appointing person page of our website, with other information you may find helpful. 

The timetable we have outlined for appointing auditors under the scheme means we now need 
to issue a formal invitation to opt into these arrangements. The covering email provides the 
formal invitation, along with a form of acceptance of our invitation for you to use if your authority 
decides to join the national scheme. We believe the case for doing so is compelling. To help 
with your decision we have prepared the additional information attached to this letter.  

I need to highlight two things: 

x we need to receive your formal acceptance of this invitation by 9 March 2017; and 
x the relevant regulations require that, except for a body that is a corporation sole (a police 

and crime commissioner), the decision to accept the invitation and to opt in needs to be 
made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole. We appreciate this will need to 
be built into your decision making timetable. 

If you have any other questions not covered by our information, do not hesitate to contact us by 
email at appointingperson@psaa.co.uk. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Jon Hayes 
Chief Officer 

Page 155

http://www.psaa.co.uk/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:appointingperson@psaa.co.uk


 
 

 
2 

 

Appointing an external auditor 

Information on the national scheme 
 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) 

We are a not-for-profit company established by the Local Government Association (LGA). We 
administer the current audit contracts, let by the Audit Commission before it closed.  

We have the support of the LGA, which has worked to secure the option for principal local 
government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a dedicated sector-led national 
procurement body. We have established an advisory panel, drawn from representative groups 
of local government and police bodies, to give access to your views on the design and operation 
of the scheme.  

The national scheme for appointing local auditors 

We have been specified by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government as 
the appointing person for principal local government bodies. This means that we will make 
auditor appointments to principal local government bodies that choose to opt into the national 
appointment arrangements we will operate for audits of the accounts from 2018/19. These 
arrangements are sometimes described as the ‘sector-led body’ option, and our thinking for this 
scheme was set out in a prospectus circulated to you in July. The prospectus is available on the 
appointing person page of our website. 

We will appoint an auditor for all opted-in authorities for each of the five financial years 
beginning from 1 April 2018, unless the Secretary of State chooses to terminate our role as the 
appointing person beforehand. He or she may only do so after first consulting opted-in 
authorities and the LGA. 

What the appointing person scheme will offer 

We are committed to making sure the national scheme will be an excellent option for auditor 
appointments for you.  

We intend to run the scheme in a way that will save time and resources for local government 
bodies. We think that a collective procurement, which we will carry out on behalf of all opted-in 
authorities, will enable us to secure the best prices, keeping the cost of audit as low as possible 
for the bodies who choose to opt in, without compromising on audit quality.  
Our current role means we have a unique experience and understanding of auditor procurement 
and the local public audit market. 
Using the scheme will avoid the need for you to: 

x establish an audit panel with independent members; 
x manage your own auditor procurement and cover its costs; 
x monitor the independence of your appointed auditor for the duration of the appointment;  
x deal with the replacement of any auditor if required; and 
x manage the contract with your auditor. 

Our scheme will endeavour to appoint the same auditors to other opted-in bodies that are 
involved in formal collaboration or joint working initiatives, if you consider that a common auditor 
will enhance efficiency and value for money. 

Page 156

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/


 
 

 
3 

 

We will also try to be flexible about changing your auditor during the five-year appointing period 
if there is good reason, for example where new joint working arrangements are put in place. 

Securing a high level of acceptances to the opt-in invitation will provide the best opportunity for 
us to achieve the most competitive prices from audit firms. The LGA has previously sought 
expressions of interest in the appointing person arrangements, and received positive responses 
from over 270 relevant authorities. We ultimately hope to achieve participation from the vast 
majority of eligible authorities.  

High quality audits 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides that firms must be registered as local 
public auditors with one of the chartered accountancy institutes acting in the capacity of a 
Recognised Supervisory Body (RSB). The quality of registered firms’ work will be subject to 
scrutiny by both the RSB and the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), under arrangements set 
out in the Act. 

We will: 

x only contract with audit firms that have a proven track record in undertaking public audit 
work; 

x include obligations in relation to maintaining and continuously improving quality in our 
contract terms and in the quality criteria in our tender evaluation; 

x ensure that firms maintain the appropriate registration and will liaise closely with RSBs and 
the FRC to ensure that any quality concerns are detected at an early stage; and 

x take a close interest in your feedback and in the rigour and effectiveness of firms’ own 
quality assurance arrangements.  

We will also liaise with the National Audit Office to help ensure that guidance to auditors is 
updated as necessary.  

Procurement strategy 

In developing our procurement strategy for the contracts with audit firms, we will have input from 
the advisory panel we have established. The panel will assist PSAA in developing 
arrangements for the national scheme, provide feedback to us on proposals as they develop, 
and helping us maintain effective channels of communication. We think it is particularly 
important to understand your preferences and priorities, to ensure we develop a strategy that 
reflects your needs within the constraints set out in legislation and in professional requirements. 

In order to secure the best prices we are minded to let audit contracts: 

x for 5 years; 
x in 2 large contract areas nationally, with 3 or 4 contract lots per area, depending on the 

number of bodies that opt in; and 
x to a number of firms in each contract area to help us manage independence issues. 

 
The value of each contract will depend on the prices bid, with the firms offering the best value 
being awarded larger amounts of work. By having contracts with a number of firms, we will be 
able to manage issues of independence and avoid dominance of the market by one or two 
firms. Limiting the national volume of work available to any one firm will encourage competition 
and ensure the plurality of provision. 

Page 157



 
 

 
4 

 

Auditor appointments and independence 

Auditors must be independent of the bodies they audit, to enable them to carry out their work 
with objectivity and credibility, and in a way that commands public confidence.  

We plan to take great care to ensure that every auditor appointment passes this test. We will 
also monitor significant proposals for auditors to carry out consultancy or other non-audit work, 
to protect the independence of auditor appointments. 

We will consult you on the appointment of your auditor, most likely from September 2017. To 
make the most effective allocation of appointments, it will help us to know about: 

x any potential constraints on the appointment of your auditor because of a lack of 
independence, for example as a result of consultancy work awarded to a particular firm; 

x any joint working or collaboration arrangements that you think should influence the 
appointment; and 

x other local factors you think are relevant to making the appointment. 

We will ask you for this information after you have opted in. 

Auditor appointments for the audit of the accounts of the 2018/19 financial year must be made 
by 31 December 2017. 

Fee scales 

We will ensure that fee levels are carefully managed by securing competitive prices from firms 
and by minimising our own costs. Any surplus funds will be returned to scheme members under 
our articles of association and our memorandum of understanding with the Department for 
Communities and Local Government and the LGA.  

Our costs for setting up and managing the scheme will need to be covered by audit fees. We 
expect our annual operating costs will be lower than our current costs because we expect to 
employ a smaller team to manage the scheme. We are intending to fund an element of the 
costs of establishing the scheme, including the costs of procuring audit contracts, from local 
government’s share of our current deferred income. We think this is appropriate because the 
new scheme will be available to all relevant principal local government bodies. 

PSAA will pool scheme costs and charge fees to audited bodies in accordance with a fair scale 
of fees which has regard to size, complexity and audit risk, most likely as evidenced by audit 
fees for 2016/17. Pooling means that everyone in the scheme will benefit from the most 
competitive prices. Fees will reflect the number of scheme participants – the greater the level of 
participation, the better the value represented by our scale fees.  

Scale fees will be determined by the prices achieved in the auditor procurement that PSAA will 
need to undertake during the early part of 2017. Contracts are likely to be awarded at the end of 
June 2017, and at this point the overall cost and therefore the level of fees required will be 
clear. We expect to consult on the proposed scale of fees in autumn 2017 and to publish the 
fees applicable for 2018/19 in March 2018.  

Page 158



 
 

 
5 

 

Opting in 

The closing date for opting in is 9 March 2017. We have allowed more than the minimum eight 
week notice period required, because the formal approval process for most eligible bodies, 
except police and crime commissioners, is a decision made by the members of an authority 
meeting as a whole.  

We will confirm receipt of all opt-in notices. A full list of authorities who opt in will be published 
on our website. Once we have received an opt-in notice, we will write to you to request 
information on any joint working arrangements relevant to your auditor appointment, and any 
potential independence matters that would prevent us appointing a particular firm. 

If you decide not to accept the invitation to opt in by the closing date, you may subsequently 
make a request to opt in, but only after 1 April 2018. The earliest an auditor appointment can be 
made for authorities that opt in after the closing date is therefore for the audit of the accounts for 
2019/20. We are required to consider such requests, and agree to them unless there are 
reasonable grounds for their refusal. 

Timetable 

In summary, we expect the timetable for the new arrangements to be: 

x Invitation to opt in issued 27 October 2016 

x Closing date for receipt of notices to opt in 9 March 2017 

x Contract notice published 20 February 2017 

x Award audit contracts By end of June 2017 

x Consult on and make auditor appointments By end of December 2017 

x Consult on and publish scale fees By end of March 2018 

 
Enquiries 

We publish frequently asked questions on our website. We are keen to receive feedback from 
local bodies on our plans. Please email your feedback or questions to: 
appointingperson@psaa.co.uk.  

If you would like to discuss a particular issue with us, please send an email to the above 
address, and we will make arrangements either to telephone or meet you. 

 

Page 159

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:appointingperson@psaa.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

Appointing person: Frequently asked questions (updated 1 December 2016) 

 
Index to questions         Page       
The appointing person scheme and eligible bodies   (questions 1-6) .................. 2 

The opt-in process   (questions 7-11) ...................................................................... 5 

PSAA’s audit procurement  (questions 12-19) ....................................................... 8 

Auditor appointments  (questions 20-21) ............................................................. 11 

Scale audit fees   (question 22) .............................................................................. 13 

Contract management   (questions 23-25) ............................................................ 14 

Non-audit work   (questions 26-27) ........................................................................ 16 

Appointment requirements for authorities that do not opt in  (question 28) ..... 18 

 

  

P
age 161



 
 

2 
 

The appointing person scheme and eligible bodies   (questions 1-6) 

Question Response 
1. What is an appointing person and which bodies are eligible 

to opt in? 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) has been 
specified as an appointing person under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015, and has the power to make auditor appointments 
for audits of the accounts from 2018/19 on behalf of principal local 
government bodies that opt in, in accordance with the Regulations. 
PSAA is a not-for-profit company owned by the LGA’s Improvement 
and Development Agency (IDeA) and was established to operate 
the transitional arrangements following closure of the Audit 
Commission. The ‘appointing person’ is sometimes referred to as 
the sector-led body. 
Eligible bodies are only those principal local government bodies 
listed in schedule 2 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 
This includes county councils, district councils, London borough 
councils, unitary authorities, metropolitan councils, police bodies, 
fire and rescue authorities, joint authorities, combined authorities 
(covering elected regional mayors), national park authorities, 
conservation boards, passenger transport executives, waste 
authorities, and the GLA and its functional bodies. Smaller 
authorities (such as parish councils) and NHS bodies, including 
accountable care organisations, are not eligible to opt in.  
A list of the 493 local government bodies currently eligible for the 
appointing person scheme is available on the appointing person 
page of our website (http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-
transition/appointing-person/).  

2. What are the terms of reference of the appointing person? PSAA is a not-for-profit company wholly owned by the IDeA (the 
IDeA is wholly owned by the LGA). PSAA will continue to operate as 
an independent company, although there will be changes to its 
governance arrangements and its founding documents to reflect the 

P
age 162

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/


 
 

3 
 

Question Response 
fact that it will be an appointing person going forward rather than a 
transitional body.  

3. In addition to the Code of Audit Practice requirements set 
out by the NAO, will the contracts include the audit of wholly 
owned companies and group accounts? 

Local authority group accounts are part of the accounts produced 
under the CIPFA SORP and are subject to audit in line with the 
NAO Code of Audit Practice. They will continue to be part of the 
statutory audit for which PSAA will make an auditor appointment for 
opted-in bodies.  
Local authority companies are not listed in the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act as bodies subject to audit under that act. 
Company audits are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 
2006 and are not covered by the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015 or the scope of PSAA’s specification as the 
appointing person.  
Local authority companies must appoint an auditor themselves in 
accordance with Companies Act legislation. They are able to 
appoint the same audit firm as PSAA appoints to undertake the 
principal body audit, should they so wish, for example where this 
could support an efficient audit process. 

4. Will the appointing person arrangements cover the audit of 
an authority’s pension fund where it is the administrative 
body responsible for preparing the pension fund accounts? 

Pension funds are not separate legal entities from their 
administering local authority, and are therefore not listed as relevant 
authorities in schedule 2 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014. The auditor appointment to an opted-in local authority will 
include the audit of the pension fund where the authority is the 
administering body. As is currently the case, the pension fund audit 
will be subject to a separate engagement and scale audit fee, but 
the auditor appointment will cover both the local authority and the 
pension fund. 

5. We have a joint committee which no longer has a statutory 
requirement to have an external auditor but has agreed in 
the interests of all parties to continue to engage one. Is it 

The requirement for joint committees to produce statutory accounts 
ceased after production of the 2014/15 accounts and they are 
therefore not listed in Schedule 2. Joint committees that have opted 

P
age 163



 
 

4 
 

Question Response 
possible to use this process as an option to procure the 
external auditor for the joint committee? 

to produce accounts voluntarily and obtain non-statutory assurance 
on them will need to make their own local arrangements. 

6. Will membership be free for existing members of the LGA? 
 

The option to join the appointing person scheme will be open to all 
principal local government authorities listed under Schedule 2 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. There will not be a fee to 
join the sector-led arrangements. The audit fees that opted-in 
bodies will be charged will cover the costs to PSAA of appointing 
auditors and managing the arrangements. We believe that audit 
fees achieved through large contracts will be lower than the costs 
that individual authorities will be able to negotiate. In addition, by 
opting into the PSAA offer, authorities will avoid the costs of their 
own procurement and management of contracts and also the 
requirement to set up an auditor panel with independent members. 

 

  

P
age 164



 
 

5 
 

The opt-in process   (questions 7-11) 

Question Response 
7. When will invitations to opt in be issued? The invitation to opt in was issued on 27 October 2016 with a 

closing date for acceptance of 9 March 2017. This allows 
considerably longer than the statutory minimum period of eight 
weeks, for the requirement under the regulations that authorities 
must make the decision to opt in at a full authority meeting. As 
corporations sole, the full authority requirement does not apply to 
police and crime commissioners. 
The aim is to award contracts to audit firms by June 2017, giving six 
months to consult with authorities and confirm appointments before 
the 31 December 2017 deadline to appoint auditors for the following 
financial year. 
In order to maximise the potential economies of scale from agreeing 
large contracts with firms, and to manage any auditor independence 
issues, PSAA needs as much certainty as possible about the 
volume and location of work it is able to offer to firms. Our timetable 
means that we will need to start preparing tender documentation 
early in 2017, so we will need to know which authorities have opted 
in. 

8. How do we have to make the decision to accept the 
invitation to opt in? 

In accordance with Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015, a principal authority will need to make 
the decision to opt in at full authority (authority meeting as a whole), 
except where the authority is a corporation sole (such as a police 
and crime commissioner), in which case the function must be 
exercised by the holder of the office. 

9. Can we join after it has been set up or do we have to join at 
the beginning? 

One of the main benefits of an appointing person approach is the 
ability to achieve economies of scale as a result of being able to 
offer larger volumes of work. The greater the number of participants 
we have signed up at the outset, the better the economies of scale 

P
age 165



 
 

6 
 

Question Response 
we are likely to achieve. This will not prevent authorities from 
applying to join the appointing person scheme in later years (and 
PSAA must agree to the request unless there are reasonable 
grounds to refuse), but they will need to make their own 
arrangements to appoint an auditor in the interim, which will include 
establishing an auditor panel. In order to be in the best position we 
would encourage as many authorities as possible to commit by 
accepting the invitation within the specified timeframe, that is by 9 
March 2017. 

10. Will the appointing person take on all auditor panel roles 
and therefore mitigate the need for there to be one in each 
individual authority? 

Opting into the appointing person scheme will remove the need to 
set up an auditor panel. This is set out in the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015. 

11. How does the opt-in process work for police and crime 
commissioners and chief constables, given that chief 
constables cannot appoint their own auditor? 

PSAA has issued the opt-in invitation to chief constables as well as 
police and crime commissioners because the Local Audit 
(Appointing Person) Regulations 2015, issued under the provisions 
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, require the 
appointing person to issue an invitation to “all principal authorities 
which fall within the class of authorities in relation to which the 
person has been specified” (Regulation 8). PSAA’s specification as 
an appointing person covers all relevant local government 
authorities that are principal bodies, as listed in Schedule 2 of the 
2014 Act. Chief constables and police and crime commissioners are 
listed separately as relevant authorities.  
While the responsibility for the decision about appointing an auditor 
for the chief constable is reserved to the police and crime 
commissioner for a police area (under schedule 3 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014), the police and crime commissioner 
will need to consider this decision with the chief constable. The opt-
in invitation information sent by PSAA provides chief constables with 
essential information about the appointing person arrangements, 

P
age 166



 
 

7 
 

Question Response 
including the timetable for the opt-in process. This should enable 
chief constables to engage with police and crime commissioners on 
this decision. 
Where a police and crime commissioner makes a decision to opt 
into PSAA’s national auditor appointment arrangements and 
submits a notice of acceptance of the invitation, this notice must 
cover the chief constable as well. PSAA will need to confirm that the 
notice covers the chief constable if this is not explicitly stated. As 
separate legal entities, PSAA will subsequently need to make 
separate auditor appointments, albeit of the same audit firm, to the 
opted-in police and crime commissioner and chief constable for a 
police area. 

 

  

P
age 167



 
 

8 
 

PSAA’s audit procurement  (questions 12-19) 

Question Response 
12. How will we be able to influence the development of the 

appointing person scheme and associated contracts with 
audit firms? 

We have established a stakeholder advisory panel which will 
comment on our proposals. Members of the panel are drawn from 
representative organisations for councils, police and fire bodies. The 
first meeting of the group was held on 30 September 2016. Further 
meetings are scheduled for 23 November 2016, 26 January 2017 
and 25 May 2017. 
PSAA continues to work in partnership with the LGA in setting up 
the appointing person scheme and you can feed in comments and 
observations to PSAA by emailing appointingperson@psaa.co.uk 
and via the LGA and their principal advisors. 

13. Will there be standard contract terms and conditions? The audit contracts between PSAA and the audit firms will require 
firms to deliver audits compliant with the National Audit Office (NAO) 
Code of Audit Practice. We are aware that authorities would like to 
understand how performance and delivery will be monitored and 
managed. This is one of the issues that could be discussed with the 
stakeholder advisory panel. 

14. What will be the length of the contracts? The length of contract between PSAA and firms will be five years. 

15. Will bodies that opt in be able to seek information from 
potential suppliers and undertake some form of evaluation 
to choose a supplier? 

PSAA will run the tendering exercise, and will evaluate bids and 
award contracts. PSAA will consult authorities on individual auditor 
appointments. The appointment of an auditor independently of the 
body to be audited is an important feature of the appointing person 
arrangements and will continue to underpin strong corporate 
governance in the public sector. 

16. Will the price be fixed or will there be a range of prices? The fee for the audit of a body that opts in will reflect the size, audit 
risk and complexity of the work required. PSAA will establish a 
system for setting the fee which is fair to all opted-in authorities. As 

P
age 168

mailto:appointingperson@psaa.co.uk


 
 

9 
 

Question Response 
a not-for-profit organisation, PSAA will be able to return any 
surpluses to opted-in authorities after all costs have been met. 

17. How will the appointing person scheme ensure audit firms 
are not over-stretched and that the competition in the 
market place is increased? 

The number of firms eligible to undertake local public audit is 
regulated through the Financial Reporting Council and the 
recognised Supervisory Bodies (RSBs). Only appropriately 
accredited firms will be able to bid for appointments whether that is 
through PSAA or an auditor panel. 
PSAA is developing a procurement strategy which may include a 
limit on the total business available to any one firm.  
One of the advantages of the appointing person option is to make 
appointments that help to ensure that each successful firm has a 
sufficient quantum of work to make it possible for them to invest in 
public sector specific training, maintain a centre of excellence or hub 
that will mean: 

x firms have a regional presence; 
x greater continuity of staff input; and 
x a better understanding the local political, economic and social 

environment. 

18. Will the appointing person scheme contract with a number 
of different audit firms and how will they be allocated to 
authorities? 

PSAA will organise the contracts to maximise the number of firms 
appointed nationally. The minimum number of audit firms is 
probably four or five (depending on the number of bodies that opt 
in). This is required, not just to ensure competition and capacity, but 
because each firm is required to comply with the FRC’s ethical 
standards. This means that an individual firm may not be 
appointable for ‘independence’ reasons, for example, because they 
have undertaken consultancy work at an audited body. PSAA will 
consult on appointments that allow each firm a balanced portfolio of 
work subject to independence considerations. 

P
age 169



 
 

10 
 

Question Response 
19. What is the timetable for set up and key decisions? We expect the key points in the timetable to be broadly: 

x establish an overall strategy for procurement - by November 
2016; 

x achieve ‘sign-up’ of opted-in authorities - by 9 March 2017; 
x invite tenders from audit firms - by April 2017; 
x award contracts - by 30 June 2017; 
x consult on and make final auditor appointments - by 31 

December 2017; and 
x consult on, propose audit fees and publish fees - by 31 March 

2018. 
 

  

P
age 170



 
 

11 
 

Auditor appointments  (questions 20-21) 

Question Response 
20. We have shared service arrangements with our 

neighbouring bodies and we are looking to ensure that we 
share the same auditor. Will the appointing person scheme 
allow for this? 

PSAA will be able to make appointments to all principal local 
government bodies listed in Schedule 2 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 that are ‘relevant authorities’ and not 
excluded as a result of being smaller authorities, for example parish 
councils.  
In setting up the new arrangements, one of our aims is to make 
auditor appointments that take account of joint working and shared 
service arrangements. Requests for the same auditor as other 
authorities will need to be balanced with auditor independence 
considerations. As we have set out in our prospectus, auditors must 
be independent of the bodies they audit. PSAA will have an 
obligation under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 to ensure that every auditor appointment it makes passes 
this test and auditors must comply with the requirements of the 
Ethical Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council.  
We will need information from opted-in authorities on potential 
independence considerations and joint working arrangements, and 
will also need information on independence issues from the audit 
firms. Risks to auditor independence include, for example, an audit 
firm having previously been engaged to advise on a major 
procurement which could, of course, later be subject to audit.  

21. In what circumstances can an auditor be changed during 
the five year opt-in period, and how does this differ from 
locally procured arrangements? 

The main circumstances in which PSAA will consider changing an 
auditor appointment during the five year compulsory appointing 
period are either for independence reasons, for example the 
identification of a conflict of interest involving the existing audit firm, 
or because of the emergence of new joint working arrangements. 
An authority appointing its own auditor will find it more difficult to 
change their auditor appointment during the contracted period, as 

P
age 171



 
 

12 
 

Question Response 
this would require the authority to conduct a new selection and 
procurement exercise. The appointing person scheme will therefore 
provide more flexibility for opted-in bodies. 

  

P
age 172



 
 

13 
 

Scale audit fees   (question 22) 

Question Response 
22. How will audit fee levels be set for each individual body with 

the objective of recovering PSAA costs at the aggregate 
level? 

PSAA will pool scheme costs and charge fees to audited bodies in 
accordance with a fair scale of fees which has regard to size, 
complexity and audit risk, most likely as currently evidenced by audit 
fees for 2016/17. Pooling means that everyone in the scheme will 
benefit from the most competitive prices. Fees will reflect the 
number of scheme participants – the greater the level of 
participation, the better the value represented by our scale fees. 
2018/19 scale fees will be determined by the prices achieved in the 
auditor procurement that PSAA will undertake during the early part 
of 2017. We expect to consult on the proposed scale of fees in 
autumn 2017 and to publish the fees applicable in March 2018. 
Where more or less work is required than is envisaged in the scale 
fee, a fee variation process will apply. The variations process will 
ensure that fees for additional work cannot be invoiced until agreed 
with the audited body and approved by PSAA. 

 

  

P
age 173



 
 

14 
 

Contract management   (questions 23-25) 

Question Response 
23. What will be the process to feed in opinions of current 

auditors if there are issues? 
PSAA will seek feedback on its auditors as part of its engagement 
with the sector. PSAA will continue to have a clear complaints 
process and will also undertake contract monitoring of the firms it 
appoints. 

24. What will be the arrangements for overseeing the quality of 
audit work undertaken by the audit firms appointed by the 
appointing person? 

PSAA will only contract with firms which have a proven track record 
in undertaking public audit work. In accordance with the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014, firms must be registered with one of 
the chartered accountancy institutes acting in the capacity of a 
Recognised Supervisory Body (RSB). The quality of the firms’ work 
will be subject to scrutiny by both the RSB and the Financial 
Reporting Council (FRC). Current indications are that fewer than ten 
large firms will register, meaning that small local firms will not be 
eligible to be appointed to local public audit roles. 
PSAA will ensure that firms maintain the appropriate registration 
and will liaise closely with RSBs and the FRC to ensure that any 
concerns are detected at an early stage and addressed effectively in 
the new regime. PSAA will take a close interest in feedback from 
opted-in bodies and in the rigour and effectiveness of firms’ own 
quality assurance arrangements, recognising that these represent 
some of the earliest and most important safety nets for identifying 
and remedying any problems. We will liaise with the NAO to help 
ensure that guidance to auditors is updated when necessary. 

25. How will the appointing person scheme deal with an 
authority that is dissatisfied with its auditor and wants a 
change (e.g. because of quality, relationships, or a conflict 
of interest)? 

As with the current arrangements, where an authority is dissatisfied 
with its auditor, concerns should be raised in the first instance with 
the firm’s Engagement Lead and subsequently with the firm’s PSAA 
Contact Partner (as indicated on communications between the firm 
and the authority).  

P
age 174



 
 

15 
 

Question Response 
If the authority is not satisfied with the response of the firm, then the 
matter should be raised with PSAA.  
As appointing person, PSAA appoints a firm as auditor to an 
authority. The firm is responsible for nominating an individual to act 
as the Engagement Leader on the audit of an authority. 
PSAA will consider changing an auditor appointment in extremis if 
an authority is dissatisfied, but would expect the authority and the 
firm to have exhausted all avenues for resolution before doing so. 
Maintaining the independence of the auditor is an important part of 
this consideration. 
PSAA will consider changing an auditor appointment during the five 
year compulsory appointing periods, if a conflict of interest involving 
the existing audit firm is identified, or because of the emergence of 
new joint working arrangements. 
The appointing person scheme will have the flexibility to provide an 
audit alternative if required in these cases.  
PSAA will be monitoring the quality of audit services provided as 
part of the contractual terms of appointment to be agreed with firms. 

 

  

P
age 175



 
 

16 
 

Non-audit work   (questions 26-27) 

Question Response 
26. Will an auditor be able to provide my authority with non-

audit consultancy services? 
The independence requirements for all auditors within the local 
public audit regime are the same whether locally appointed, or part 
of the appointing person regime. These requirements are specified 
by the Financial Reporting Council in the Ethical Standard and 
applied to local public audit as determined by the NAO. 
The services that an auditor can provide are the same, whatever the 
appointment method. 
As the Appointing Person, PSAA will perform the role otherwise 
required of an auditor panel to advise the authority on the 
maintenance of the independence of the auditor [Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 section 10(1)]. 
PSAA will consider changing an auditor appointment during the five-
year compulsory appointing period for independence reasons, if for 
example the identification of a conflict of interest involving the 
existing audit firm, or because of the emergence of new joint 
working arrangements. 

27. What will be the future arrangements under the appointing 
person scheme for certifying grant claims?  

PSAA’s audit contracts from 2018/19 will not cover certification 
work. PSAA has no power under the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 to make certification arrangements, and its arrangements 
will apply only to opted-in bodies. Any certification work required by 
grant paying government departments will need to be undertaken 
using a tripartite agreement between an audited body, an audit firm 
and the grant paying body, under instructions prepared by the grant 
paying body.  
The Department for Work and Pensions is developing its 
arrangements for housing benefit subsidy claim certification from 
2018/19 on this basis. Where applicable, local authorities will 
appoint an auditor for this certification work (for which an auditor 

P
age 176



 
 

17 
 

Question Response 
panel is not required) and may choose to use the same auditor 
appointed by PSAA for the audit of the accounts, if they are opted-in 
bodies. 

 

  

P
age 177



 
 

18 
 

Appointment requirements for authorities that do not opt in  (question 28) 

Question Response 
28. If an authority chooses not to opt in to the appointing person 

arrangements, what local arrangements will they need to 
put in place? 

All relevant authorities listed in schedule 2 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act), whether they opt in or not, are 
required to comply with Part 3 of the Act in relation to the 
appointment of local auditors. Section 7 of the Act requires a 
relevant authority to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a 
financial year not later than 31 December in the preceding financial 
year. For the 2018/19 accounts, a local auditor must be appointed 
by 31 December 2017. 
For authorities that choose to opt into the appointing person 
arrangements, PSAA will appoint their auditor for them by 31 
December 2017, having consulted the authority about the proposed 
appointment. 
For authorities that choose not to opt into the appointing person 
arrangements, there are two options available for appointing their 
own auditor. These are to: 

x  undertake an individual auditor procurement and appointment 
exercise; or 

x  undertake a joint audit procurement and appointing exercise 
with other bodies, those in the same locality for example. 

Both these options require the authority to consult and take into 
account the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 
appointment of a local auditor. Section 9 of the Act requires a 
relevant authority to establish an auditor panel, section 10 sets out 
the functions of an auditor panel, and schedule 4 sets out provisions 
applying to auditor panels. An auditor panel must consist of a 
majority of independent members (or wholly of independent 
members), and must be chaired by an independent member. 

P
age 178



 
 

19 
 

Question Response 
A guide to auditor panels for local government authorities has been 
issued by CIPFA. 
Within the period of 28 days beginning with the day on which the 
auditor appointment is made, section 8 of the Act requires an 
authority that has not opted into the national appointing person 
arrangements to publish a notice that:  
a) states that it has made the appointment, 
b) identifies the local auditor that has been appointed,  
c) specifies the period for which the local auditor has been 

appointed,  
d) sets out the advice, or a summary of the advice, of its auditor 

panel about the selection and appointment of a local auditor, and  
e) if it has not followed that advice, sets out the reasons why it has 

not done so.  
The notice must be published, if the authority has a website, on its 
website or in such manner as the authority thinks is likely to bring 
the notice to the attention of service users. 
Authorities that opt into the appointing person arrangements are not 
required to establish an auditor panel or to publish a notice under 
section 8 of the Act. 

 

P
age 179

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee

14th February 2017

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Mid-Year Update Report – 31st 
December 2016)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 
treasury management performance in 2016/17 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management 2009 and generally accepted good 
practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Committee note the current treasury management position (as at 
31st December 2016).

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 was adopted by the Council in 
March 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which 
is to produce at least one mid-year operational report.

TITLE:  Treasury Management Update:  Mid-Year 
Report  2016/17

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 
Manager
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific

Page 181

Agenda Item 7c



3.2. This report comprises the following:

 The latest interest rate forecast;
 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2016/17;
 The current investment portfolio;
 The borrowing portfolio with projected borrowing costs for 2016/17 and 

debt rescheduling options; and
 Compliance against the prudential and treasury indicators set in the 

Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17.

3.3. The main headlines include:

 The Bank of England base rate remained unchanged at 0.25% 
contrary to expectations of a decrease in the Monetary Policy 
Committee’s previous quarterly inflation report.

 A shortfall of £20,000 is anticipated on the investment income budget 
following the reduction in the Bank of England base rate.

 The borrowing costs budget is currently expected to be underspent by 
£50,000 due to the the later than anticipated potential refinancing of 
maturing loans.

 The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the 
period to 1st September to 31st December was 0.49%. This compares 
favorably to short-term industry benchmarks.

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £28,234,000 spread across 
eleven separate institutions as at 31st December 2016.

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st December 2016 was 
£78,129,746 (including finance leases) and the average rate of 
borrowing is 3.74%.  

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective treasury management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 
Council’s main priorities.

5. Evaluation of Options

5.1. This report sets out the treasury management position for High Peak 
Borough Council for 2016/17 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is 
a statement of fact and there are no options.

Page 182



6. Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2. Workforce
None

6.3. Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4. Financial Considerations
Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.

6.5. Legal  
None

6.6. Sustainability  
None

6.7. Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8. Risk Assessment
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or 
deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the services of external 
treasury management advisors, Capita Asset Services (‘Capita’).

Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the 
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. This strategy 
includes a number of risk management features such as the overriding 
priority that security of deposit takes precedence over return on investment.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contacts

‘Treasury Management – Governance 
and Scrutiny Arrangements’                           
(Audit & Regulatory Committee Sep 
09)
‘Treasury Management Strategy 
2016/17
(Audit & Regulatory Committee 
February 2016)

Finance & Performance, 
Town Hall, Buxton

Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186

Page 183



APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Update 
31st December 2016

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

3. Investment Income

4. Investment Portfolio

5. Borrowing Position

6. Prudential Indicators

High Peak Borough Council
Working for our community

Page 184



1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks”.

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management (2009) which recommends that members should be briefed on 
treasury management activities at least twice a year.

1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 
scrutinising the treasury function. The Committee’s role includes approval of 
the annual treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational 
treasury management reports. Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee are reported to full Council.

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2016/17 was 
approved by Council on 25th February 2016.  This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 31st December 2016 and projects 
forward for the remainder of the financial year.

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast from 
the Council’s treasury advisers, Capita Asset Services (‘Capita’), is shown 
below:

% Mar-
17

Jun-
17

Sep-
17

Dec-
17

Mar-
18

Jun-
18

Sep-
18

Dec-
18

Mar-
19

Jun-
19

Sep-
19

Dec-
19

Mar-
20

Bank 
Rate 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75

5yr 
PWLB 
rate

1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00

10r 
PWLB 
rate

2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70

25yr 
PWLB 
rate

2.90 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.40

50yr 
PWLB 
rate

2.70 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20

2.2. Capita have updated their interest rate forecasts to take into account the 
Bank of England quarterly inflation report for November 2016, the decision 
of the MPC (Monetary Policy Committee) meeting of 3rd November, and the 
US Presidential election of 8th November. 

Page 185



2.3. The bank rate has remained unchanged at 0.25% at the November MPC 
meeting contrary to expectations of a decrease in the MPC’s previous 
quarterly inflation report, but in line with market expectations at the time. 
MPC forward views are that the bank rate could still go up or down 
depending on how economic data evolve in the coming months. Capita are 
forecasting the rate to remain at 0.25% with the first increase to 0.50% in 
June 2019.

2.4. Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. Capita’s bank rate forecasts will be liable to further 
amendment depending on how economic data and developments in 
financial markets transpire over the next year. 

3. Investment Income 

3.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st December 2016 totalled 
£93,450. The Council has budgeted to receive £130,660 in investment 
income in 2016/17. The interest which can be earned on investments for the 
remainder of the year has been adversely affected by the reduction in the 
base rate at the Bank of England to 0.25% on 4th August. Therefore, it is 
anticipated that there will be a shortfall of £20,000 on this budget at the end 
of the year.

3.2. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in 
the table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the 
recognised industry benchmark rates:

Comparator Average 
Rate Q1

Average 
Rate Q2

Average 
Rate Q3

HPBC Total
HPBC Long-term fixed (>364 days)
HPBC Short-term fixed (<364 days)
HPBC Short-term instant access 

Benchmarks (Capita)
*LIBID 7 Day Rate
*LIBID 3 Month Rate
*LIBID 6 Month Rate
*LIBID 12 Month Rate
Current Base Rate

0.61%
0.94%
0.80%
0.41%

0.36%
0.46%
0.60%
0.87%
0.50%

0.53%
0.95%
0.67%
0.38%

0.20%
0.31%
0.43%
0.65%
0.25%

0.48%
-

0.58%
0.31%

0.12%
0.26%
0.43%
0.67%
0.25%

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

3.3. The table below highlights the level of investment activity and the rates 
obtained in the period from 1st September to 31st December 2016.  
Investments are made in line with Capita’s creditworthiness guidance and 
the duration limits applied to each colour banding.

Page 186



Institution Country of 
Domicile Amount Length Rate

Goldman Sachs UK £2,000,000 6 months 0.62%
Lloyds Bank Plc UK £1,000,000 3 months 0.50%
Nationwide Building Society UK £1,000,000 5 months 0.36%
Lloyds Bank Plc UK £1,150,000 6 months 0.60%
Nationwide Building Society UK £1,300,000 4 months 0.32%
Eastleigh Borough Council UK £1,000,000 3 months 0.30%
Surrey County Council UK £5,000,000 2 months 0.30%
Instant Access Cash
(Instant Access Accounts & Money 
Market Funds)

UK £2,926,000
(daily average) 0.32%

3.4. The rates achieved by the Council vary by institution, by duration of 
investment and by the timing of when the investment was made. The 
Council’s lending criteria restricts the number of financial institutions that 
are eligible to be on the lending list, and the amount that can be invested 
with eligible counterparties (and counterparty groups) at any one time. 

3.5. The majority of the investment portfolio is held on a short-term basis (<1 
year). The Council continues to utilise same day access business accounts, 
fixed term deposits and certificates of deposits (via the use of custodian 
King & Shaxson) which offer competitive rates and access to banks that 
would not necessarily deal direct with the Authority for the sums invested.

4. Investment Portfolio

4.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 31st December 2016 totalled £28,234,000 as shown 
in the table below:

Financial Institution Country of 
Domicile Amount Maximum recommended 

lending duration
Surrey County Council UK £5,000,000 WHITE (12 months)
Money Market Funds UK £4,100,000 WHITE (12 months)
Santander UK UK £4,000,000 RED (6 months)
NatWest Bank Plc UK £3,684,000 BLUE (12 months)
Nationwide Building Society UK £2,300,000 RED (6 months)
Lloyds Bank Plc UK £2,150,000 RED (6 months)
Coventry Building Society UK £2,000,000 RED (6 months)
Goldman Sachs International UK £2,000,000 RED (6 months)
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA Netherlands £1,000,000 ORANGE (12 months)
Eastleigh Borough Council UK £1,000,000 WHITE (12 months)
Swedbank AB Sweden £1,000,000 ORANGE (12 months)

TOTAL £28,234,000

Page 187



4.2. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Capita, is shown by 
colour banding in the table below:

4.3. Group limits are also applied, restricting the total amount that can be 
invested on a fixed basis per the colour category above, increasing by a 
percentage (10% blue, 8% red; 7% green) if at least the additional amount 
is held on an instant access basis. 

4.4. The average level of funds that have been available for investment up to 
31st December 2016 was £22.9 million.  Investments are generally made up 
of short-term cash and core cash. Short-term cash is dependent on the 
timing of major payments e.g. precept payments, salaries and creditor 
payments, and major receipts e.g. receipt of grants and Council Tax direct 
debits.  Core cash is dependent on capital programme commitments. 

5. Borrowing Position

5.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of 
the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow.  Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as 
part of the prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement.

5.2. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st December 2016 is 
£78,129,746, as detailed in the table below:

Lender External 
Borrowing

Average 
Interest Rate Maturity period

Public Works Loan Board £59,773,504 3.70% between 0 and 46 yrs

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 6 and 51 yrs

Local Authority Loans £5,000,000 2.50% up to 3 yrs

Finance Leases £556,242 n/a Between 3 and 6 years

Colour Banding
Maximum 

Duration of 
Investment

UK 
Banks

International 
Banks

PURPLE Up to 2 Years £5.5m £4.0m
ORANGE Up to 1 Year £4.9m £3.3m

RED Up to 6 Months £4.0m £2.7m
GREEN Up to 100 Days £3.5m £2.2m

BLUE (Part & fully nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 Year £5.5m n/a

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 Year £8.2m n/a

Money Market Funds Up to 1 Year £4.1m n/a
Up to 1 Year n/a n/aWHITE (Lending to the 

Government / Local Authorities) Over 1 Year £6.0m n/a

Page 188



Total £78,129,746 3.74%

5.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£83,431,000) and ‘authorised limit’ 
(£85,931,000) indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing 
available to the Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of 
borrowing is within prudential limits.

5.4. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing undertaken to date, nor is any 
anticipated for the year. However, there is £9.7 million of external loans 
maturing during 2016/17: £4 million matured in August 2016 and was fully 
repaid; a further £5.7 million matures in February/ March 2017. The budget 
included the refinancing of £4.5 million of these maturing loans. The 
treasury team will monitor if this requires reconsideration based on latest 
capital forecasts, the appropriate time to undertake any refinancing, being 
careful to consider the movement in interest rates, and the cost of carry of 
any borrowings taken in advance of the maturity dates.

5.5. The Council has budgeted to incur £1,547,970 in interest charges and other 
financing costs in 2016/17. There is expected to be an underspend of 
£50,000 on the borrowing costs related to the refinancing of the maturing 
loans as if any borrowing is undertaken, it is likely to occur at the end of the 
financial year or into the next financial year.

5.6. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 
maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates 
are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Less than 
1 year

1 - 2 
years

2 - 5 
years

6 - 10 
years

11- 20 
years

21 - 30 
years

31 - 40 
years

41 - 50 
years

Greater 
than 50 
years

-

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

Debt Maturity Profile

5.7. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the 

Page 189



risk. The treasury team, along with Capita, continually monitor prospects for 
debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.

5.8. No rescheduling has taken place during 2016/17 to date. The Council will 
work with Capita to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking 
account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early 
redemption compared to the potential interest savings.  

6. Prudential Indicators

6.1. The prudential & treasury indicators (as set in the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2016/17) have not been breached during the year.

Page 190



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee

14th February 2017

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017/18

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow members of the Committee to 
consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 
2017/18, ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years are affordable and properly managed.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 
2017/18 is recommended to Council for approval.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Council is required, in accordance with the Local Government Act 
2003, to produce an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
before the commencement of each financial year. 

TITLE:  Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
(TMSS) 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 
Manager
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner

WARDS: Non-Specific

Page 191

Agenda Item 7d



3.2. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the 
Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code 
of Practice. The Council is required to set prudential and treasury 
indicators for the next four years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.3. The 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises three 
principal areas:

a. Capital Programme (section 6)
 The capital plans and the prudential indicators
 The minimum revenue provision (MRP) Policy

b. Treasury Management (section 7)
 Current Treasury position
 Treasury Indicators 
 Prospects for Interest Rates 
 The Borrowing Strategy

c. The Annual Investment Strategy (section 8)
 Investment Policy
 Creditworthiness Policy
 Investment Income

3.4. Members are asked to note the controls that have been put in place to 
manage the Council’s treasury management risks and activities and to 
endorse the Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and 
management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s 
corporate priorities.

5. Evaluation of Options

5.1. This report sets the proposed treasury management approach based upon 
the Council’s financial plans. 

Page 192



6. Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2. Workforce
None

6.3. Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's equality 
and diversity policies.

6.4. Financial Considerations
Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.

6.5. Legal 
None

6.6. Sustainability
None

6.7. Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8. Risk Assessment
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with treasury 
management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/or 
deposits.  The Council has engaged Capita Asset Services as its treasury 
management advisors.

Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the 
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy, which is the 
subject of this report. The Strategy includes a number of risk management 
features such as the overriding priority that security of deposit takes 
precedence over return on investment.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Page 193



Background Papers Location Contacts

‘Treasury Management – 
Governance and Scrutiny 
Arrangements’
 (Audit & Regulatory
 Committee Sep 09)

Town Hall, Buxton Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 #4191

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 #4186

Page 194



APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement

Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement 

2017/18

Page 195



1. Introduction

1.1. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly 
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of 
the treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is 
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus 
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council's low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return.

1.2. The second main function of the treasury management service is the 
funding of the Council's capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide 
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow 
planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending 
obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve arranging 
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council 
risk or cost objectives.

1.3. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks.”

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year. The three main reports are:

a. A Treasury Strategy, which looks forward four years and includes:
 Treasury Management Strategy, explaining how the investments 

and borrowings are to be organised, including treasury indicators; 
 The Council’s capital plans, including prudential indicators;
 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, stating how residual 

capital expenditure is charged to revenue over time; and
 Investment Strategy, stating the parameters on how investments 

are to be managed.

b. A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report, which updates members 
on treasury activities during the financial year and provides for 
revisions to the Treasury Strategy and indicators as necessary.

c. An Annual Treasury Report, which updates members on the outturn 
for the previous financial year, summarises the treasury activity for that 
year and includes a full listing of actual prudential indictors.

Page 196



2.2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement contained in this Appendix 
addresses the first of these requirements.

2.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 
scrutinising the treasury function prior to reports being formally approved 
at Council.

2.4. The respective roles & responsibilities of the Council, its Audit & 
Regulatory Committee and the Section 151 Officer are noted in Annex 2.

3. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017/18

3.1. The 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises the 
following principal elements:

Capital Programme 
(section 6)

Capital plans and the prudential indicators
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy

Treasury Management 
(section 7)

Current treasury position
Treasury indicators 
Prospects for interest rates 
The borrowing strategy

The Annual 
Investment Strategy
(section 8)

Investment policy
Creditworthiness policy
Investment income

3.2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement meets the requirements of 
the Local Government Act 2003, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
(CIPFA) Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) Investment guidance.

4. Training

4.1. The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (the Chief Finance 
Officer) to ensure that Members and Officers with responsibility for 
treasury management receive adequate training. Training is particularly 
important for the Members who are responsible for the scrutiny of the 
Council’s treasury management. Training was provided for new Members 
of the Audit Committee in July 2015.  

4.2. A skills assessment has recently been completed by current Members of 
the Audit Committee and any subsequent training requirements arising 
from that will be incorporated into a training plan – iincluding any treasury 
management training needs.

Page 197



5. Treasury Management Consultants

5.1. The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its external treasury 
management advisor - providing the Council with access to specialist skills 
and resources. 

5.2. The Council recognises that the responsibility for treasury management 
decisions remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that 
undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers.

5.3. The Council will ensure that the terms of appointment of treasury advisors 
and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly 
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. 

5.4. The current contract with Capita Asset Services: Treasury solutions is due 
to expire on 31st March 2017. A procurement exercise is ongoing for the 
letting of this contract for the coming period. The 2017/18 Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) is written in accordance with the 
incumbent’s methodologies. Should  the supplier of this contract change 
during the lifespan of the TMSS, it will be updated and presented 
accordingly to the Audit & Regulatory Committee and Council as required.

6. The Capital Programme & Prudential Indicators 

Capital Expenditure

6.1. The capital expenditure prudential indicator comprises a summary of the 
Council’s capital programme, which is a key driver of treasury 
management activity.

6.2. The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 
how these plans are to be funded.

Page 198



2015/16
Actual

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

£ £ £ £ £ £
Capital 
Expenditure: 4,151,100 6,173,000 9,801,000 6,801,000 6,004,000 5,321,000

   General Fund 1,112,600 2,035,000 5,865,000 2,865,000 2,068,000 1,385,000

   Housing Revenue
   Account 3,038,500 4,138,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000

Financed by:
Capital Receipts 31,300 509,000 1,031,000 798,0000 1,325,000 734,000
Capital Grants 380,200 877,000 471,000 389,000 389,000 389,000
Capital Reserves 741,700 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000
HRA Revenue 
Contribution

2,997,900 2,079,000 1,997,000 2,079,000 2,325,000 2,386,000

Net Financing 
Need for Year - 1,158,000 4,752,000 1,985,000 415,000 262,000

 

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)

6.3. The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR). The CFR is the total outstanding capital expenditure 
which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. 
This is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. 

6.4. The CFR increases each time the Council procures capital expenditure 
that it does not immediately pay for (i.e. the CFR increases when its 
expenditure is financed through borrowing).

6.5. Local authorities are required each year to set aside some of their 
revenues as provision for debt repayment. This is known as the Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP). The CFR is reduced each year by MRP. Each 
year’s borrowing need is divided by the life of the assets for which 
borrowing was undertaken, resulting in an annual charge to revenue, and 
reduction in the Council’s CFR.

6.6. The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases). 
Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council's borrowing 
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the 
Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. The 
Council had £556,000 of such schemes within the CFR at 1st April 2016.

Page 199



6.7. The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement is shown in the table below:

2015/16
Actual

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

£ £ £ £ £ £
Capital Financing Requirement 

    CFR – non housing 21,563,000 21,866,000 25,779,000 26,864,000 26,353,000 25,729,000

    CFR – housing 58,358,000 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,610,000 53,360,000 52,124,000

79,921,000 78,974,000 81,638,000 81,474,000 79,713,000 77,853,000

Movement in CFR (2,108,000) (947,000) 2,664,000 (164,000) (1,761,000) (1,860,000)

Represented by:

Net financing need for the year - 1,158,000 4,752,000 1,985,000 415,000 262,000

Less Minimum Revenue 
Provision (2,108,000) (2,105,000) (2,088,000) (2,149,000) (2,176,000) (2,122,000)

Movement in CFR (2,108,000) (947,000) 2,664,000 (164,000) (1,761,000) (1,860,000)

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement

6.8. The Council is required each year to set aside some of its revenues as 
provision for debt repayment. This essentially allows to Council to “pay off” 
an element of the Capital Financing Requirement annually through a 
revenue charge known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). 

6.9. The MRP was previously defined by statute with regulations providing for 
MRP as a 4% charge in respect of the amount of the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR). Under current regulations the rules have been 
replaced with a general duty for a local authority to make an MRP charge 
to revenue which it considers to be prudent.  The new regulation does not 
itself define “prudent provision”. However, guidance has been issued 
specifying methods for MRP calculation which the Secretary of State 
considers to be prudent thereby effectively determining prudent provision.

6.10. The Department of Communities and Local Government regulations 
require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in advance of each 
year. It is recommended that the Council apply MRP to capital expenditure 
funded by borrowing under the ‘Asset Life Method’: which calculates the 
MRP charge based on the estimated life of the asset for which the 
borrowing is undertaken. 

Page 200



6.11. MRP applied to the HRA capital financial requirement is on a voluntary 
basis.  The Council currently applies Minimum Revenue Provision to 
borrowing related to the 2011/12 HRA Reform settlement payment over 
the period of the HRA business plan (30 years).   This equates to 
approximately £1.2million per annum.  However, as part of the HRA 
Financial Improvement Plan, the level of MRP applied annually is under 
review. 

Use of the Council’s Resources and Investment Position

6.12. The Council builds up capital and revenue reserves as necessary for 
future application. The application of these resources to either finance 
capital expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year 
from new sources (for example, asset sales, revenue surpluses). 
Reserves are invested, pending application, to earn a return which 
supplements the revenue budget. 

6.13. An estimate of the amount available at year end for investment is shown in 
the table below:

2015/16 
Actual

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

£ £ £ £ £ £
General Fund 
Reserves

6,086,000 5,608,000 5,054,000 4,214,000 3,492,000 3,486,000
Housing Revenue 
Account 8,795,000 10,111,000 10,168,000 9,924,000 9,427,000 8,657,000

Total core funds 14,881,000 15,719,000 15,222,000 14,138,000 12,919,000 12,143,000
Working capital * 1,206,000 - - - - -
(Under)/over 
borrowing 2,209,000 (6,738,000) (4,775,000) (4,731,000) (3,078,000) (1,291,000)

Expected 
investments 18,296,000 8,981,000 10,447,000 9,407,000 9,841,000 10,852,000

* Shown as ‘0’ for estimation purposes as dependent on the value of creditors/debtors at year end 

Affordability Prudential Indicators

6.14. The previous sections outline the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 
funding requirements. This section assesses the affordability of capital 
investment plans and the impact on the Council’s overall finances. 

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

6.15. This indicator calculates the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of 
investment income) as a percentage of the Council’s net revenue stream 
(council tax receipts & government funding - General Fund; rental income 
- HRA).

Page 201



2015/16
Actual

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

General Fund 14% 16% 15% 17% 18% 18%

HRA* 15% 15% 14% 14% 13% 13%
* includes the annual voluntary MRP charge

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax 

6.16. This indicator calculates the incremental impact of capital investment 
decisions on Council Tax (Band D equivalent) by comparing the Council’s 
latest capital projections, as expressed in the draft Medium Term Financial 
Plan, with those at the same period last year.

2015/16
Actual

2016/17*
Estimate

2017/18*
Estimate

2018/19*
Estimate

2019/20* 
Estimate

2020/21* 
Estimate

Council Tax (Band D 
equivalent) (£0.31) (£0.17) £1.23 £1.42 (£0.29) £0.52

* Based on the difference in the estimated borrowing requirement between the two years and consequent impact 
on interest payable/loss of interest on investments and MRP charge

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent levels.

6.17. This indicator calculates the incremental impact of capital investment 
decisions within the housing capital programme on weekly rent levels.

2015/16
Actual

2016/17*
Estimate

2017/18*
Estimate

2018/19*
Estimate

2019/20* 
Estimate

2020/21* 
Estimate

Weekly Housing Rents (£0.07p) (£0.01p) (£0.01p) (£0.02) (£0.03) £0.15
* Based on the difference in capital expenditure estimates between the two years and consequent impact on 
investment income due to use of balances (no estimated borrowing requirement)

HRA debt per dwelling

6.18. The indicator in the table below shows the level of HRA debt per dwelling:

2015/16
Actual

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

HRA debt (£) 58,358,000 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,610,000 53,360,000 52,124,000

HRA dwellings (no) 4,021 3,991 3,961 3,931 3,901 3,871

Debt per dwelling (£) 14,513 14,309 14,102 13,892 13,679 13,465

Page 202



Interest payable & interest receivable

6.19. Given the capital projections above, interest payable & interest receivable 
budgets for the next four years are forecast as follows:

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

Borrowing Costs 
(General Fund) £1,425,230 £1,664,310 £1,754,890 £1,806,530

Borrowing Costs (HRA) £3,382,000 £3,244,000 £3,158,000 £3,100,000

Investment Income (£64,720) (£63,690) (£115,540) (£174,260)

7. Treasury Management 

7.1. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 
organised so that sufficient cash is available to service its plans. This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans 
require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. This strategy 
covers the relevant treasury indicators and the current and projected debt 
and investment positions.

Current Debt Position

7.2. The Council’s debt position at 31st March 2016 and its debt forecasts 
going forward are summarised below. The table shows the actual external 
debt against the underlying borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement) highlighting any under or over borrowing.

March 16
Estimate

£

March 17
Estimate

£

March 18
Estimate

£

March 19
Estimate

£

March 20 
Estimate  

£

March 21 
Estimate  

£
External Borrowing 81,574,000 71,825,000 76,577,000 76,562,000 76,562,000 76,562,000

Other long-term liabilities
(Finance Leases) 556,000 411,000 286,000 181,000 73,000 -

Gross Debt at 31st 
March 82,130,000 72,236,000 76,863,000 76,743,000 76,635,000 76,562,000

Change in Debt position (134,000) (9,894,000) 4,627,000 (120,000) (108,000) (73,000)

Capital Financing 
Requirement 79,921,000 78,974,000 81,638,000 81,474,000 79,713,000 77,853,000

(Under) / over borrowing 2,209,000 (6,738,000) (4,775,000) (4,731,000) (3,078,000) (1,291,000)

Page 203



7.3. The Council is required to ensure that its Gross Debt does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 
the current year and the following two financial years. This allows some 
flexibility for borrowing in advance of need for future years, but ensures 
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.

7.4. The Council is complying with this indicator in the current year and does 
not envisage difficulty in complying over the life of the Medium Term 
Financial Plan. This view takes into account current and future proposals 
with regard to the capital programme.

Treasury Indicators - Limits to Borrowing Activity

7.5. The Council sets limits to ensure that the revenue consequences of the 
capital programme on external borrowing remain affordable.

Operational Boundary

7.6. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not expected to exceed. 
This represents the Capital Financing Requirement plus an additional 
allowance to cover short-term liquidity requirements.

Operational boundary 2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

£ £ £ £ £
Capital Financing 
Requirement 78,974,000 81,638,000 81,474,000 79,713,000 77,853,000

Allowance for borrowing to 
cover short-term cash flow* 4,232,000 4,359,000 4,490,000 4,580,000 4,672,000

Total Gross Debt 83,206,000 85,997,000 85,964,000 84,293,000 85,525,000
* Amount required in short-term to cover precepts (the highest cash outflow) 

Authorised Limit for External Debt

7.7. This indicator is the statutory limit set by the Council under Section 3 (1) of 
the Local Government Act 2003 beyond which external debt is prohibited. 

Authorised limit 2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

£ £ £ £ £
Operational Boundary 83,206,000 85,997,000 85,964,000 84,293,000 85,525,000

‘Headroom’ 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Total Gross Debt 85,706,000 88,497,000 88,464,000 86,793,000 85,025,000

Page 204



HRA Debt Limits

7.8. The Council is subject to HRA Debt Limits under the HRA self-financing 
regime:

HRA Debt Limit 2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

£ £ £ £ £
HRA Debt Cap 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000
HRA CFR 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,610,000 53,360,000 52,124,000
HRA Headroom* 11,125,000 12,374,000 13,623,000 14,873,000 16,109,000

*subject to a review of the HRA Business Plan

Prospects for Interest Rates

7.9. The table in Annex 4, provided by Capita, draws together a number of 
current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and borrowing rates. The 
table below summarises Capita’s view on average interest rates: 

7.10. Expectations are that during the two-year period (2017-2019) while the UK 
is negotiating the terms for withdrawal from the EU, it is likely the 
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) will do nothing to dampen growth 
prospects, (i.e. by raising Bank Rate). Accordingly, Capita tentatively 
forecasts the first increase in Bank Rate for quarter 2 of 2019 when those 
negotiations may have concluded. However, other factors could bring the 
pace and timing of increases forward, such as strong domestically 
generated inflation from wage increases in the UK.

7.11. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many 
external influences weighing on the UK. The exceptional volatility of PWLB 
borrowing rates is anticipated to continue for the foreseeable future 
correlated to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis and emerging market 
developments.

Page 205



7.12. The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is to the 
downside, including:
 Uncertainties over the final terms of Brexit and the timetable for its 

implementation.
 Monetary policy action reaches its limits of effectiveness to stimulate 

significant sustainable growth, combat deflation, reduce high levels of 
debt.

 Major national polls 
 Resurgence of Eurozone sovereign debt crisis: Greece; stresses 

arising from disagreements between EU countries on free movement 
of people, how to handle a huge influx of immigrants; and terrorist 
threats.

 Geopolitical risks in Europe, the Middle East and Asia.
 UK economic growth and increases in inflation weaker than 

anticipated.
 Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners 

Borrowing Strategy

7.13. The majority of the Council’s capital financing requirement is currently fully 
funded by external borrowing.

7.14. As highlighted above, the Council has an estimated total Net Financing 
Requirement of £7,414,000 for the four years ending March 2021, which is 
fully offset by Minimum Revenue Provision of £8,535,600.

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate Total

£ £ £ £ £
Net financing need 4,752,000 1,985,000 415,000 262,000 7,414,000

Minimum Revenue Provision (2,088,000) (2,149,000) (2,176,000) (2,122,000) (8,535,000)

2,664,000 (164,000) (1,761,000) (1,860,000) (1,121,000)

7.15. The strategy assumes there will be some ‘new’ borrowing during 2017/18 
and 2018/19 to support the net financing need occurring in those years. 
There is also £5million of existing long term debt maturing during 2018/19, 
which the strategy anticipates will be partially refinanced during the year. 
The table at 7.2 shows that the Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’ position 
for the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan.

7.16. The capital financing requirement will be closely monitored in order to 
make a decision on refinancing prior to maturity.  Interest rate forecasts 
will also be monitored to identify any opportunities to refinance maturing 
debt in advance to reduce interest charges in the long-term.

Page 206



Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need 

7.17. The Council will not borrow in advance of need, purely to profit from the 
investment of the extra sums borrowed.

7.18. The Council however may consider borrowing in advance to protect it from 
higher borrowing costs within approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates to finance new capital expenditure or refinance existing loans. 
This will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds. 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to 
prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year reporting 
mechanism.

Debt Rescheduling

7.19. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as 
to amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter 
the degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing 
the risk. The treasury team, supported by the Council’s treasury advisors, 
will monitor prospects for debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial 
benefit to the Council.

Treasury Management Limits on Activity

7.20. The activity of the treasury function is constrained within certain limits, 
thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement 
in interest rates. 

7.21. The treasury management limits on activity are:
 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure - this identifies a maximum 

limit for fixed interest rates based upon the debt and investment 
position;

 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure - this identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt and 
investment position;

 Limits on the maturity structure of borrowing - these limits are set to 
reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for 
refinancing at the same time.

Page 207



2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£ £ £ £

Limits on fixed interest rates:
 Debt only
 Investments only

83,531,000
26,000,000

83,537,000
26,000,000

84,220,000
26,000,000

82,525,000
26,000,000

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£ £ £ £

Limits on variable interest rates
 Debt only
 Investments only

23,607,000
25,300,000

23,690,000
25,300,000

23,345,000
25,300,000

22,967,000
25,300,000

Maturity Structure of borrowing 2017/18
Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 30%
%12 months to 2 years 0% 30%

2 years to 5 years 0% 40%
5 years to 10 years 0% 60%
10 years and above 0% 90%

8. Annual Investment Strategy

Investment Policy

8.1. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on 
Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA 
Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 
Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).

8.2. The Council’s principal investment priorities are the security of capital and 
the liquidity of its investments. In addition to this, the Council will aim to 
achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with proper 
levels of security and liquidity. 

8.3. To minimise the risk to its investments, the Council applies minimum 
acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy 
conterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the 
Short Term and Long Term ratings.

8.4. Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is 
important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a 
micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political 
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take 
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To this end, 
the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market 

Page 208



pricing such as ‘credit default swaps’ and overlay that information on top 
of the credit ratings.

8.5. The investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are 
listed in Annex 3 under the headings, ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ 
Investments. 

8.6. Counterparty limits will be set as part of the Treasury Strategy and 
maintained as part of the Council’s treasury management practices.

8.7. The Council will report on its investment activity in its Annual Treasury 
Report at the end of the financial year. 

Creditworthiness Policy

8.8. This Council employs the creditworthiness service provided by Capita 
Asset Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach 
utilising credit ratings from three main credit rating agencies – Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are 
supplemented with the following overlays:

 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely 

changes in credit ratings; and
 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most 

creditworthy countries.

8.9. Credit watches and outlooks are issued by the ratings agencies. ‘Credit 
watches’ are considered short-term actions, whereas ‘outlooks’ are 
considered over a longer term time horizon. Capita includes the release of 
a negative or positive watch/outlook in its creditworthiness analysis.

8.10. A ‘Credit Default Swap’ is a contract between two counterparties in which 
the buyer of the contract makes quarterly payments to the seller of the 
contract in exchange for a payoff if there is a credit event of the reference 
entity. The contract essentially gives protection or ‘insurance’. Therefore, 
CDS spreads provide perceived market sentiment regarding the credit 
quality of an institution and are also used in the creditworthiness analysis 
to determine the durational band of investment with a financial institution. 

8.11. Capita's creditworthiness model combines credit ratings, credit watches 
and outlooks in a weighted scoring system, with an overlay of CDS 
spreads, to produce a series of colour coded bands which indicate the 
relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are then 
used to determine the duration for investments. 

Page 209



8.12. Only counterparties that fall within a ‘durational band’ will be included on 
the Council’s lending list. In conjunction with the recommended durational 
limits, the Council has assigned corresponding investment limits to each 
banding. The limits have been set separately for UK banks and 
International banks.

UK Banks 

Category Principal 
Limit

Maximum 
Length

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance**)

Yellow* £5.5m Up to 5 years 20%
Purple £5.5m Up to 2 years 20%
Gold £4.9m Up to 1 year 18%
Red £4.0m Up to 6 months 15%

Green £3.5m Up to 100 days 13%
No Colour - Not to be used -
* UK Government debt instruments
**assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000

International Banks

Category Principal 
Limit

Maximum 
Length

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*)

Purple £4.0m Up to 2 years 15%
Gold £3.3m Up to 1 year 12%
Red £2.7m Up to 6 months 10%

Green £2.2m Up to100 days 8%
No Colour - Not to be used -
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000 

8.13. The Council’s lending list includes part- and fully-Nationalised UK banks, 
which have been assigned the ‘blue’ category as per Capita’s 
creditworthiness matrix. This category has been allocated a longer 
durational period and higher investment limit since it has strong 
Government support. The table below assigns investment limits:

Category Principal 
Limit

Maximum 
Length

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*)

Blue £5.5m Up to 1 year 20%
NatWest (the Council’s 

main bank account) £8.2m Up to 1 year 30%
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000 

8.14. The Council is alerted to changes in ratings and market movements 
through its use of the Capita creditworthiness service. If a downgrade 
results in the counterparty no longer meeting the Council’s minimum 
criteria, it will no longer be used for new investments. All ratings will be 
monitored prior to any new investments being placed. 

Page 210



Group Limits

8.15. To reduce its risk further the Council has set a group limit for fixed term 
deposits in institutions with the same parent. The group limit will increase 
the portfolio percentage of the colour band the institution it is rated in at 
the time by a further 50% where at least the additional amount is held in 
an instant access account:

Category
Portfolio (% 
of highest 
balance*)

Individual 
Principal 

Limit

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50%
Group 

Principal Limit

Blue 20% £5.5m 30% £8.2m
Purple 20% £5.5m 30% £8.2m
Gold 18% £4.9m 27% £7.4m
Red 15% £4.0m 23% £6.3m

Green 13% £3.5m 20% £5.5m
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000 

Money Market Funds

8.16. The Council has access to several Money Market Funds (MMF) - all of 
which are ‘AAA’ rated. A ‘Money Market Fund’ is a pooled vehicle 
investing in a number of investment instruments with varying maturity 
periods in a number of different countries. Money Market Funds provide 
an alternative option for the Council when placing short-term funds and 
provide for diversification of the investment portfolio.

8.17. The Council has set investment limits in Money Market Funds as follows:
Principal 

Limit
Maximum 

Length
Portfolio (% of 

highest balance*)
Individual MMF £4.9m Up to 1 year 18%

Total MMF investments** £6.3m Up to 1 year 23%
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000 
** maximum held in MMF’s at any one time

Sovereignty Ratings 

8.18.   A sovereign credit rating is the credit rating of a sovereign entity i.e. a 
country. The highest sovereign rating awarded is ‘AAA’. The evolving 
regulatory environment, in tandem with the rating agencies’ new 
methodologies, means that sovereign ratings are now of lesser 
importance in the assessment process and the new regulatory 
environment is attempting to break the link between sovereign support 
and domestic financial institutions.

Page 211



8.19. While the Council understands the changes that have taken place, it will 
continue to use sovereign ratings of individual counties in addition to credit 
ratings when making investment decisions. When investing with 
institutions outside the UK, only banks and building societies located in 
countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be used. This is in 
relation to the fact that the underlying domestic and, where appropriate, 
international economic and wider political and social background will still 
have an influence on the ratings of a financial institution. There are 
currently 10 ‘AAA’ rated countries approved for investments, as follows:

Investment income

8.20. The Council’s in-house managed funds are derived from a core balance 
available for capital and revenue funding and day-to-day cash flows. At 
31st March 2016 the core balances available for investment were 
£16,100,000. Core balances are available for investment in line with the 
profile of capital expenditure and requirements of the revenue budget. 
Investments are therefore made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for interest rates.

Investment Return Expectations

8.21. Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 0.25% until a rise to 0.50% 
in June 2019, and then rise to 0.75% in December 2019. Bank Rate 
forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:

 March 2018  0.25%
 March 2019  0.25%
 March 2020  0.75%

8.22. For 2017/18 the Council has budgeted for an average investment return of 
0.31%. The average rates assumed on new investments is as follows: 

 Fixed Term Investments (3 month to 1 year) 0.42%
 Instant Access Business Accounts and short-term fixed 

deposits 0.22%.

8.23. The 2017/18 income budget is therefore forecast to be £64,720.

Australia Canada Denmark Germany Luxembourg

Netherlands Norway Singapore Sweden Switzerland

Page 212



Long-term Investments (greater than 1 year)

8.24. When placing long-term investments with counterparties, the Council’s 
liquidity requirements, availability of funds and counterparty eligibility need 
to be taken into consideration. The table below sets the limit on the total 
principal funds that may be invested for greater than 364 days.

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Principal sums invested > 364 days £4,000,000 £4,000,000 £4,000,000 £4,000,000

Page 213



ANNEX 1 

Treasury Management Policy Statement

In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, High 
Peak Borough Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury 
management activities as follows:

1. The Council defines its treasury management activities as: “The 
management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.”

2. The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control 
of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury 
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and 
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 
implications for the organisation.

3. The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will 
provide support towards the achievement of its business and service 
objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for 
money in treasury management, and to employing suitable 
comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context 
of effective risk management.

Page 214



ANNEX 2

Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation

(i) Full Council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 

practices and activities;
 approval of annual strategy.

(ii) Audit & Regulatory Committee
 approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury 

management policy statement and treasury management practices;
 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 

recommendations to the responsible body;
 budget consideration and approval;
 approval of the division of responsibilities;
 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 

recommendations;
 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms 

of appointment.

The treasury management role of the section 151 (responsible) officer

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports;
 submitting budgets and budget variations;
 receiving and reviewing management information reports;
 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;
 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and 

the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function;

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;
 recommending the appointment of external service providers. 

Page 215



ANNEX 3
Specified and Non-Specified Investments

Specified Investments

All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum 
of 1 year*, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable.

Investment Instrument* Minimum ‘High’ Credit Criteria Investment Limit**
Debt Management Agency 
Deposit Facility (DMADF) n/a n/a

Term deposits – local 
authorities n/a n/a

Bridging Loans (Community 
Groups within HPBC)

Decision made on individual basis 
& subject to presentation of 
required documents

£100,000 (total 
outstanding for all 
loans at any one time)

UK Government Gilts and 
Treasury Bills UK Sovereign Rating n/a

Certificates of deposits or 
corporate bonds with banks 
and building societies

 Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK)

As per individual / 
group lending limits

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies 

 Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK)

As per individual / 
group lending limits

UK (Part-)Nationalised Banks  Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – BLUE

As per individual / 
group lending limits

UK Instant Access Accounts  Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN

As per individual / 
group lending limits

Money Market Funds (MMF) AAA rated As per individual / 
group lending limits

* If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not exceed 
one year in aggregate 

** must conform to both institution and group limits set

Page 216



Non-specified Investments

Non-specified investment instruments are assumed to take on greater risk and 
should therefore be subject to greater scrutiny. They include investments that are 
for a period of more than one year and instruments that the Council has very 
limited experience and expertise in dealing with.

A maximum of £11,000,000 (40% of the projected highest balance) will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investments.

Non-specified Investments Minimum Credit Criteria
Investment 

Limit / Max. % 
of total 

investments
Max. maturity period

Term deposits – UK government 
(maturities in excess of 1 year) n/a £4,000,000 

(> 364 day limit) 5 years

Term deposits – other LAs / Parish 
Councils (maturities in excess of a 
year)

n/a £4,000,000 
(> 364 day limit)

To be determined on an 
individual case basis, 
inclusive of options for the 
Council to review terms at 
specified periods of time (no 
greater than 5 years)

Term & Callable deposits – banks 
and building societies (maturities in 
excess of 1 year)

Based on Capita 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Lowest Band – PURPLE
Sovereignty Rating -AAA

£4,000,000 
(> 364 day limit) 2 years

Collateralised Deposit

Based on Capita 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Band – YELLOW
Sovereignty Rating -AAA

£5,500,000            
(as per Yellow 
limit)

5 years

Commercial Paper

Based on Capita 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating -AAA

£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance)

1 year

UK Government Gilts – all maturities Long term AAA
£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance)

2 years

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks  - all maturities Long term AAA

£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance)

2 years

Bonds issued by a financial institution 
which is guaranteed by the UK 
government – all maturities

Long term AAA
£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance)

2 years

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. other than 
the UK govt) – all maturities Long Term AAA

£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance)

2 years

Treasury Bills – all maturities n/a
£4,000,000 
(15% of highest 
balance)

1 year

Page 217



Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs):

Non-specified Investments Minimum Credit Criteria
Investment  Limit/ 

Max. % of total 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period

    1. Government Liquidity        
Funds – all maturities AAA rated £4,000,000 (15% of 

highest balance) 2 years

    2. Money Market Funds –   
all maturities AAA rated £5,500,000 (20% of 

highest balance) 2 years

    3. Enhanced cash funds –  
all maturities AAA rated £2,700,000 (10% of 

highest balance) 2 years

    4. Gilt Funds – all maturities AAA rated £2,700,000 (10% of 
highest balance) 2 years

Page 218



ANNEX 4
UK Interest Rate Forecast (Capita)
Capita Asset Services Interest Rate View

Mar-17 Jun-17 Sep-17 Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20

Bank Rate View 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75%

3 Month LIBID 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.40% 0.50% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90%

6 Month LIBID 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.50% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00%

12 Month LIBID 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.80% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40%

5yr PWLB Rate 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.00%

10yr PWLB Rate 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70%

25yr PWLB Rate 2.90% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40%
50yr PWLB Rate 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20%

Bank Rate

Capita Asset Services 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75%
Capital Economics 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

5yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.00%
Capital Economics 1.60% 1.70% 1.90% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00%

10yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70%
Capital Economics 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40%

25yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.90% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40%
Capital Economics 2.95% 3.05% 3.05% 3.15% 3.25% 3.25% 3.35% 3.45% 3.55% 3.65% 3.75% 3.95% 4.05%

50yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20%
Capital Economics 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90%

P
age 219



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Council 

21st February 2017
 

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Pay Policy Statement 2017/18

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to confirm the agreed policies for the 
remuneration of the Council’s workforce and to seek the approval of the Pay 
Policy Statement for 2017/18 in compliance with the provisions of the Localism 
Act (2011)

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Council approves the Pay Policy Statement for 2017/18 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In accordance with Sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 the Councils’ 
are required to agree a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year. In 
preparing this statement, they are also required to have regard to the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State under Section 40 of the Localism Act 2011. 

3.2 The Pay Policy Statement must be approved by a resolution of full Council by 
the end of March and in each subsequent year. The Councils’ must publish the 
statement in such manner as it thinks fit, which must include publication on the 
website.

3.3 The proposed Pay Policy Statement attached at Appendix A seeks to comply 

TITLE: Pay Policy Statement 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
Councillor for Finance and Corporate 
Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Tanya Cooper – OD & Transformation Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific.

Page 221

Agenda Item 9



with the statutory requirements of the act and confirms the agreed policies of 
the Council.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Production of a Pay Policy Statement is a statutory requirement. 

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 The report is a statement of fact.  As such there are no options to consider.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2 Workforce
The proposed Pay Policy Statement confirms the policies 
previously agreed by Council for remuneration of its staff.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Diversity and 
Equalities Policies. 

6.4 Financial Considerations
None arising directly from the report – the budget includes 
provision for the payment and remuneration of its employees in 
accordance with agreed policies. 

6.5 Legal
The preparation of an annual Pay Policy statement is a statutory 
requirement under the Localism Act (2011).

The statement also takes into account guidance: Openness and 
accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of the 
Localism Act which issued by the DCLG in February 2012 and 
supplementary guidance issued in February 2013.

6.6 Sustainability
None. 

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8 Risk Assessment
Not applicable. 

6.4

Page 222



ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Localism Act 2011 

Openness & 
accountability in local 
pay: Guidance under 
section 40 of the 
Localism Act – DCLG 
(Feb 2012)

Openness & 
accountability in local 
pay: Guidance under 
section 40 of the 
Localism Act – 
Supplementary Guidance 
– DCLG (Feb 2013)

OD & Transformation Office/Legal Office Tanya Cooper
OD & Transformation Officer

Page 223



7. Background and Detail

7.1 Councils are required, in accordance with Sections 38 to 43 of the Localism 
Act 2011 to prepare a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year. In 
preparing this statement the councils are also required to have regard to the 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 40 of the Localism 
Act.

7.2 The Pay Policy Statement must be approved by full Council by the end of 
March prior to the commencement of the financial year. Councils must publish 
the statement in such manner as it thinks fit, which must include publication on 
the websites.  

7.3 The statutory guidance confirms that nothing contained within the provisions in 
the Act or guidance is intended to supersede existing responsibilities  and 
duties placed on authorities in their role as employers, under relevant 
employment legislation, and authorities are required to bear in mind these 
responsibilities and duties when formulating their Pay Policy Statement.  It is 
the expectation that discussion of Pay Policy Statements should take place in 
meetings which are open to the public, in particular, discussions should not 
engage the Data Protection Act as the policy does not concern data relating to 
a particular individual but rather the Authorities’ policies towards a range of 
issues relating to the pay of its workforce, particularly its senior staff and its 
lowest paid employees.

8 Required Content of the Statement

8.1 Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Councils’ to set out its 
policies for the coming financial year relating to:

a) The remuneration of its chief officers;
b) The remuneration of its lowest paid employees; and 
c) The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and the 

remuneration of its employees who are not chief officers.

8.2 The statement must also include the Authorities’ policies relating to:

a) The level and elements of remuneration for each chief officer;
b) Remuneration of chief officers on recruitment;
c) Increases in addition to remuneration for each chief officer;
d) The use of performance related pay for chief officers;
e) The use of bonuses for chief officers;
f) The approach to the payments of chief officers on their ceasing to hold 

office or to be employed by the Authorities; and 
g) The publication of and access to information relating to the remuneration of 

chief officers.

8.3 The definition of chief officers is not limited to the Head of Paid Service or 
statutory chief officers (i.e. the Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer).  It 
also includes those officers who report directly to them as non statutory and 

Page 224



deputy chief officers. This definition, therefore, covers the Councils’ Chief 
Executive, Executive Directors Heads of Service and Corporate & Operational 
Service Managers and the relevant policies relating to their remuneration, as 
previously agreed by Council, are included within the attached Pay Policy 
Statement.

9 Pay Policy Statement

9.1 The proposed Pay Policy Statement attached at Appendix A seeks to comply 
with the statutory requirements of the Act and confirm the agreed policies of 
the Councils’ and is recommended for approval on that basis.  

10 Strategic Alliance

10.1 It should be noted that the workforce is shared between High Peak Borough 
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. The pay costs identified 
in this statement are the overall levels of remuneration received by the 
individual employees, the costs of which are shared between the two 
authorities.

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX  A

High Peak Borough Council & 
Staffordshire Moorlands Distirct Council 

PAY POLICY
2017/18 

Page 227



1. Introduction and Purpose

In accordance with Section 112 of the Local Government Act (1972) High Peak Borough 
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council have the “power to appoint officers on 
such reasonable terms and conditions as the authorities sees fit”. The Pay Policy Statement 
sets out the Councils’ approach to pay in accordance with the Localism Act (2011) (Section 
38) and provides transparency to the setting of pay for its employees by identifying:

 the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined;
 the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as 

defined by the relevant legislation;
 the Committees responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are 

applied consistently and recommending any amendments to the full Council.

The pay policy will be approved by full Council. This policy statement will come into 
immediate effect and will be subject to review on an annual basis in accordance with the 
relevant legislation in place at that time.

Strategic Alliance

High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council work together as a 
strategic alliance and the workforce is shared. The Chief Executive and Executive Directors 
are employed by both Councils. The remaining Chief Officers are employed by one of the 
Councils but are joint appointments and work across the two authorities. The majority of 
employees work flexibly across both Councils. The terms and conditions of employment 
have been harmonised across the two Councils and the costs are shared.

In determining the pay and remuneration of all its employees, the Councils will comply with 
all relevant employment legislation. This includes legislation such as the Equality Act (2010); 
Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations (2000); The 
Agency Worker Regulations (2010) and where relevant the Transfer of Undertakings 
(Protection of Earnings) Regulations. The Councils will ensure there is no pay discrimination 
within its pay structures. Pay differentials are objectively justified through the use of equality 
proofed job evaluation schemes which directly relate to the requirements, demands and 
responsibilities of job role.

2. Basic Pay

Green Book Employees

The majority of employees are subject to the National Joint Council for Local Government 
Services (Conditions of Service) (“Green Book”)

Pay and Grading is determined by the Local Government Single Status Job Evaluation 
Scheme. 

A local grading structure has been adopted which makes use of broad banding pay ranges 
and uses the basis of the nationally negotiation pay spine. The grading structure can be 

Page 228



found at (http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/1881/Alliance-Grading-Structure-April-
2016/pdf/NEW_Alliance_Grading_Structure_April_2016_2.pdf).  

Incremental progression throughout theses pay ranges is based on performance, and the 
assessment of, and reward of good or exceptional performance.  At present there is no 
incremental progression in the upper zone of the pay scale.   

Craft Employees

Some employees are subject to Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Craft & 
Associated conditions of service (Red Book). Red book employees are subject to set rates of 
pay. All other pay related allowances are subject to either nationally or locally negotiated 
rates having been determined from time to time in accordance with collective bargaining 
and/or by Council policy.  

Apprenticeships

Apprentices are paid in accordance with the national apprenticeship rates of pay.

Senior Management Pay “Chief Officer”

The posts falling within the statutory definition of a “Chief Officer” their basic salary as of 1st 
April 2017 are:

Position Pay Range
Chief Executive £148,405-£160,946
Executive Directors £86,528-£101,954
Heads of Service £61,291-£76,172
Corporate / Operational Service Manager £50,218-£66,500

Pay and grading is determined for Chief Officers by the Hay Job Evaluation Scheme. A local 
grading structure has been adopted which makes use of broad banding pay ranges which 
have been previously approved by resolution of Council. The grading structure for these 
positions can be found at the end of this document. 

Incremental progression throughout theses pay ranges is based on performance, and the 
assessment of, and reward of good or exceptional performance.  At present there is no 
incremental progression in the upper zone of the pay scale.   

Organisational structure identifying the numbers and positions at a senior level can be found 
at(http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/426/Alliance-senior-management-
structure/pdf/Alliance_management_team_17_contact_centre_numbers.pdf).

There is a continued commitment to adhere with national pay bargaining in respect of the 
national pay spine and cost of living increases for all employees.

Page 229

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/1881/Alliance-Grading-Structure-April-2016/pdf/NEW_Alliance_Grading_Structure_April_2016_2.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/1881/Alliance-Grading-Structure-April-2016/pdf/NEW_Alliance_Grading_Structure_April_2016_2.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/426/Alliance-senior-management-structure/pdf/Alliance_management_team_17_contact_centre_numbers.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/426/Alliance-senior-management-structure/pdf/Alliance_management_team_17_contact_centre_numbers.pdf


3. Additional Salary Payments - Chief Officers

Performance related pay to its Chief Officers is normally applied in accordance with their 
existing terms and conditions of employment which have been previously agreed by full 
Council.  These additional payments are as follows:- 

Chief Executive 

Performance Related Pay Up to 15% of salary (in recognition of excellent 
performance) subject to appraisal, once the maximum of 
the grade is met. The post holder has voluntarily declined 
this payment in response to budgetary restraints. 

Lease Car Contribution of £7,600 per annum toward the cost of 
providing a lease car. This comprises of:

£2,700 (fixed basic contribution to all lease car users)

£250 (further fixed basic contribution available to all lease 
car users subject to meeting certain emissions 
criteria)

£3,070  (Payable to Chief Executive only)

£1,580  (Business usage allowance).
Election Duties Fees paid in respect of election duties in accordance with 

agreed County fee scale.

Executive Directors – Other “Chief Officer” Payments

Deputy Chief Executive Payment £4,813 per annum to an Executive Director in 
recognition of their role of Deputy Chief Executive.

Section 151 Officer Allowance £4,813 per annum to an Executive Director in 
recognition of their role of Section 151 Officer.

Monitoring Officer Allowance £4,813 per annum to an Executive Director in 
recognition of their role of Monitoring Officer.

Performance Related Pay Up to 15% of salary (in recognition of excellent 
performance) subject to performance appraisal, 
once the maximum of the grade is reached. Two 
postholders eligible for this payment agreed a 
voluntary reduction in their overall earnings which 
amounted to an ongoing 3.75% decrease from 
their total 2010/11 earnings.
The third postholder has not reached the 
maximum of the grade and, for the fourth year 
running, has had their incremental progression 
frozen in accordance with a local agreement 
reached with the trade unions in response to the 
Council’s budgetary constraints.

Election Duties Fees paid in respect of election duties in 
accordance with agreed County fee scale.

Page 230



Lease Car (applicable to 2 
postholders)

Contribution of £5,700 per annum toward the cost 
of providing a lease car. This comprises of:

£2,700 (fixed basic contribution to all lease car 
users)

£250 (further fixed basic contribution available to 
all lease car users subject to meeting 
certain emissions criteria).

£1,950  (Payable to Executive Directors only).

£800     (Business usage allowance).

4. Car Mileage 

Car mileage is payable to designated Essential Car Users who do not drive a lease car. 
Payments are in accordance with the NJC mileage rates with the removal of the top banding 
in accordance with locally agreed terms and conditions:

Essential User Payment 451-999cc range 1000 – 1199cc range
Lump Sum £846 £963
Per mile (1st 8,500 miles) 36.9 p 40.9 p
Per mile (after 8,500 miles) 13.7p 14.4p

Casual User Payment 451-999cc range 1000 – 1199cc range
Per mile (1st 8,500 miles) 46.9 p 52.2p

5. Recruitment of Chief Officers

The policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief Officers is set out within the 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules (part 4 of the constitution).  When recruiting to all posts 
the Councils will take full and proper account of their own equalities and other recruitment 
policies. The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed Chief 
Officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the time 
of recruitment. Where we are unable to recruit to a post at the designated grade, the use of 
temporary market supplements in accordance with relevant policies will be considered.

Where the Councils remain unable to recruit Chief Officers under a contract of service, or 
there is a need for interim support to provide cover for a vacant substantive chief officer post, 
the Councils will, where necessary, make use of ‘contracts for service’. These will be 
sourced through a relevant procurement process ensuring the Councils are able to 
demonstrate the maximum value for money benefits from competition in securing the 
relevant service.

Page 231



When appointments are made to Chief Officer posts where total annual remuneration is 
greater than £100,000 these appointments will be subject to approval of full Council.

6. Payment of Termination of Chief Officers 

The approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of employment of 
Chief Officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age are in accordance with agreed 
policies at the time.

Any other payments falling outside the provision or the relevant periods of contractual notice 
shall be subject to a formal decision made by the full Council or relevant elected members, 
committee or panel of elected members with delegated authority to approve such payments.

At the point of this statement the Government has announced the cap on severance 
payments will be set at £95,000.  The Government has published draft regulations on exit 
payments (Public Sector Exit Payment Recovery Regulations). The effective date of these 
regulations is yet to be determined. Once these Regulations become effective these will be 
complied with.

7. Re-employment /Re-engagement of former Chief Officers 

It is policy not to re-employ former employees who have been granted voluntary redundancy, 
including Chief Officers.  In exceptional cases, and only where there is a clear benefit to the 
Councils, such former employees may be re-engaged on a short-term contract for services.

8. Relationship between the Highest Paid Employee and Lowest Paid Employee 

At the point of this statement lowest paid employees employed under a contract of 
employment are employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in accordance with 
spinal column point 6 - £14,514 per annum (£7.52 per hour). This is above the UK Living 
Wage. Modern apprentice are not included in this definition and are paid in accordance with 
national apprenticeship rates of pay.

The relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid employee and Chief Officer is 
determined by the processes used for determining pay and grading structures set out earlier 
in this policy statement. 

The statutory guidance under the Localism Act recommends the use of pay multiples as a 
means of measuring the relationship between pay rates across the workforce and that of 
senior managers, as included within the Hutton ‘Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector’ 
(2010).  The Hutton report was asked by Government to explore the case for a fixed limit on 
dispersion of pay through a requirement that no public sector manager can earn more than 
20 times the lowest paid person in the organisation.  

The report concluded that the relationship to median earnings was a more relevant measure 
and the Government’s Code of Recommended Practice on Data Transparency recommends 

Page 232



the publication of the ratio between highest paid salary and the median average salary of the 
whole of the Authorities’ workforce.

The current pay levels define the relationship between the lowest paid and the highest paid:-

Lowest paid employee and Chief Executive

Category Ratio
Highest paid employee (Chief Executive)
Lowest paid employee

1:11.5

Page 233



Lowest paid employee and average Chief Officer

Category Ratio
Average Chief Officer 
Lowest Paid

1:5.0

Relationship between highest paid employees and median earnings 

Category Ratio
Highest paid employee (Chief Executive)
Median full-time equivalent earnings

1:7.8

Relationship between highest paid employees and median average Chief Officer 

Category Ratio
Average Chief Officer 
Median full-time equivalent earnings

1:3.4

It is considered that the current pay multiples represent an appropriate, fair and equitable 
internal pay relationship between the highest salary and that which applies to the rest of the 
workforce.  As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay 
markets both within and outside the sector, the available benchmarking information will be 
used as appropriate.

9. Publication

Following approval of full Council, this statement will be published on the website.  In 
addition, for posts where the full-time equivalent salary is at least £50,000, the Councils’ 
Annual Statement of Accounts will include a note setting out the total amount of:

 salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current and 
previous year;

 any bonuses so paid or receivable by the person in the current and previous 
year;

 any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK 
income tax;

 any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments connected 
with termination;

 any benefits received that do not fall within the above.

The Councils’ already provide details on its website of the remuneration paid to, and the 
duties of, the Chief Executive and Executive Directors.

10. Accountability and Decision Making

In accordance with the agreed Constitution, the full Council is responsible for the 
appointment of the Chief Executive, following a recommendation from the Joint 
Appointments Sub-Committee.  

Page 234



The Joint Appointments Sub-Committee, which is made up of councillors from both High 
Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, is responsible for 
appointing Executive Directors and Heads of Service. Appointments below Heads of Service 
level are the responsibility of the Chief Executive or his nominee.

Page 235



Senior Management Grading Structure 

Chief Executive 

Spinal Column 
Point 

Salary – 1st April 
2016

Salary – 1st April 2017

92 £146,939 £148,405
93 £150,040 £151,540
94 £153,144 £154,675

Lower Zone 
Progression 

dependent on good 
performance

Progression Bar
95 £156,249 £157,811
96 £159,353 £160,946

Upper Zone 

Access & Progression 
dependent on 

sustained excellent 
performance

Executive Directors

Spinal Column 
Point 

Salary – 1st April 
2016

Salary – 1st April 2017

84 £85,671 £86,528
85 £87,855 £88,734
86 £90,035 £90,935
87 £92,216 £93,138

Lower Zone 
Progression 

dependent on good 
performance

Progression Bar
88 £93,473 £94,408
89 £96,579 £97,545
90 £98,760 £99,748
91 £100,945 £101,954

Upper Zone 

Access & Progression 
dependent on 

sustained excellent 
performance

Chief Executive / Executive Directors who have reached the top of the grade in the upper 
zone have access to a further non-consolidated payment of the equivalent up to 15% of 
salary each year for continuing sustained exceptional performance, with the actual 
percentage dependent on the level of performance.

Head of Service

Spinal Column 
Point 

Salary – 1st April 
2016 

Salary – 1st April 2017 

59 £60,684 £61,291
60 £63,262 £63,895
61 £65,842 £66,500
62 £67,726 £68,403

Lower Zone 
Progression 

dependent on good 
performance

Progression Bar
63 £70,050 £70,751
64 £73,075 £73,806
65 £75,418 £76,172

Upper Zone 

Access & Progression 

Page 236



dependent on 
sustained excellent 

performance

Corporate / Operational Service Managers 

Spinal Column 
Point 

Salary – 1st April 
2016 

Salary – 1st April 2017 

51 £49,721 £50,218
52 £51,959 £52,479
53 £54,140 £54,681
54 £56,323 £56,886

Lower Zone 
Progression 

dependent on good 
performance

Progression Bar
55 £58,206 £58,788
56 £60,684 £61,291
57 £63,262 £63,895
58 £65,842 £66,500

Upper Zone 

Access & Progression 
dependent on 

sustained excellent 
performance

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 To approve the recommendations from The Executive meeting held on 16th February 2017 relating to:
	6a Budget 2017/18 and Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18 to 2020/21
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	7 To approve the recommendations from the Audit and Regulatory Committee meeting held on 14th February 2017 relating to:
	7a External Audit Plan 2016/17
	7b Appointment of External Auditors - Public Sector Audit Appointments Opt-in
	Appointmrent of External Auditors - Public Sector Audit Appointments Opt-in Appendix 1
	Appointmrent of External Auditors - Public Sector Audit Appointments Opt-in Appendix 2

	7c Treasury Management Update: Mid-Year Report 2016/17
	7d Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2017/18
	9 Pay Policy Statement 2017/18
	Pay Policy Statement 2017/18 Appendix


